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VI.

The Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company
confirm that the contents in this annual report are true,
accurate and complete and have no false representations,
misleading statements or omissions, and they will
individually and collectively accept legal responsibility for
such contents.

Details of absent directors

Director Mr. Shi Pingyang was absent at the Board meeting
due to other business duties, and authorised Director Mr.
Wang Baoping to attend and vote on his behalf.

BDO Limited has issued an unqualified audit report to the
Company.

Yang Guoping (#ZEF), the person-in-charge of the Company,
Jiang Yun (3%&), the person-in-charge of accounting affairs
and, Hu Jun (#AE), the head of the accounting institution
(person-in-charge of accounting), warrant the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the financial report in this
annual report.

Profit distribution plan or plan to convert capital reserve into
share capital approved by the Board during the Reporting
Period.

Audited by BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public
Accountants LLP, and according to the Company Law and the
Articles of Association, the Company would distribute its profit
as the plan below: based on the total outstanding shares of
2,952,434,675 at the end of 2023, a cash dividend of RMB0.35
(including tax) would be distributed for every ten shares,
totalling RMB103,335,213.63.

The profit distribution plan is subject to the approval at the
2023 AGM of the Company, with detailed implementation
measures and time to be announced subsequently.

Risks disclaimer of the forward-looking statements.
The forward-looking statements in this report do not

constitute an actual commitment of the Company to
investors. Investors should be aware of the investment risks.

[
.
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IMPORTANT NOTICE
EERT

VII.

VIII.

XI.

Unless otherwise

Any appropriation of fund by the controlling shareholder and
its related parties for non-operating purpose?

No.

Any provision of external guarantee in violation of the
stipulated decision making procedure?

No.

Whether more than half of Directors are unable to warrant
the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the annual
report disclosed by the Company?

No.

Material risk alert

During the Reporting Period, there were no material risks
within the Company. The report contains the description of
the possible risks related to the Company and the
countermeasures to them. Please refer to "Management
Discussion and Analysis — Potential Risks”.

Others

N/A.

illustrated in this report, the currency for

amounts herein is RMB. Certain amounts and percentage numbers
in this report have been rounded. Any discrepancies in any table

between totals and sums of the amounts

listed are due to

rounding.

This report is prepared in Chinese and English, respectively, and
the English version shall prevail if any ambiguities arise from the
understanding of the Chinese and English texts.
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DEFINITIONS
E®

Unless otherwise stated in context, the following terms should have
the following meanings in this report:

“A Share(s)”
[ARE ]

‘AGM”
[FEBRRAE]

“Articles of Association”
[RE)EIE]

“Audit Committee”
ERES i

“BDO”
DAL Eag e

“Board”
EX3-

“Board of Supervisors”

[BE%g)

“CG Code”
[eRERSTA
“China” or "PRC”
[FhE

“Company” or “Dazhong Public
Utilities”

[RBEHRIARRR KRR

“CSRC”
(hEEES ]

“Dazhong Business Management”

[ KR

&

o>
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FEARREDR  BIEXERBEIE - THHAZE
BEENTEE

domestic share(s) of the Company with nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
EEXMETEHERERARBI00THARTIRARE

annual general meeting of the Company

ARBAFERRAE

the articles of association of the Company (amended in 2022)

ARBECRRIEIR)(E 20225 &7])

the audit committee under the Board

ARREEERITLES

BDO Limited
AR ERREAMELEHAERAR

the board of directors of the Company

ARBIEFE

the board of supervisors of the Company

ARREEE

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules

R LETRAMECI AN EEERTA

the People’s Republic of China [References to China in this report do not
include Hong Kong SAR, Macao SAR and Taiwan)
iz A\ REME - AR HhEANRATEEES b ERPIERITHE

AN -
"=

Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd* (EEXBAAEE (£H)
&7 BBR A A, a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the
PRC on January 1, 1992
FPERBZABEX(RE)RHERRAF -
&7 A BR A A

—RIR 199241 B 1 BEF B A

China Securities Regulatory Commission
HEESFEBERELZES

Shanghai Dazhong Business Management Co., Ltd.* (LB KRN EEEGRA
Al], a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on March 10, 1995 and
owned as to 90% by Shanghai Dazhong Business Management Employee Share
Ownership Committee* (/B ARGEEEAR AR ITIFRE) and 10% by three
individual shareholders who are Independent Third Parties
EBARBLEEEERAT - —ER1995F3A 108 EFREFMAZHBRAF -
Wi EBEARCEERER DR ITHRE =2 KB 1% 1 M E IR D
RI#EH 90% K& 10%



“Dazhong Commerce”
[ KR

“Dazhong Factoring”

[KRARE

“Dazhong Financial Leasing”

[ KRREHEE]

“Shanghai Gas Chongming”

[ EBRRERA]

“Dazhong Jiading Sewage”

[KREEI5K]

“Dazhong Logistics”

[KFEITHR

“Dazhong Logistics Delivery”

[ KR B i |

“Dazhong Transportation”

[ KRR EE

DEFINITIONS
T8

Shanghai Dazhong Transportation Commerce Co., Ltd.* (L ARRBEHEE R
‘A A]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on June 25, 2008
EPBRBRBEBERAR - —H2008F6 A25BEFEFMA LA AR A A

Shanghai Dazhong Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.* (LB KR EREERA
Al), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on December 3, 2021, a
subsidiary of the Company
EERBREEREBRAR
RAREHFRAA

—RER2021F 12 ASHAEFBIFEMARZAABR AT

Shanghai Dazhong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.* (EBXBRMEHEEGR AT,
a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on September 19, 2014
FERERMEMEERDA - —HR2014FIAIBEFEIMALOER DA

Shanghai Gas Chongming Co., Ltd.* (LR EAER AT, a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on April 18, 1992, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shanghai Gas

FPERREAERDAF] - —ER1992F4 A 18R EFRREEMAZNERRR] - B
/X%RE’J£§¥/AT

Shanghai Dazhong Jiading Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.* (LB AR ZE/SKERE
BMRAA]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on March 17,
2006

FBABETESKEEERAR - —MER2006F3R17AERBEFMAZH AR

NG

Shanghai Dazhong Run Logistics Shares Co., Ltd.* (E/B KRE T REHER
‘AA]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on March 19, 1999, a
subsidiary of the Company

EHBRFETORBMNDARAR - —HER199F3A19REFEZEMALNER
NA BRERRBEFRA

Shanghai Dazhong Run Logistics Delivery Co., Ltd., a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on August 3, 2023, a subsidiary of the Company, a
subsidiary of the Company
FERZETYOREZERA
A RARFNFAA

A —ER2023F8 A3HERBEFEMAZHERA

Dazhong Transportation (Group) Co., Ltd.* (KBEXRB(EE)BRHBERADF), a
joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the PRC on June 6,
1994, whose A shares (Stock Code: 600611.SH) and B shares (Stock Code:
900903.SH) have been listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since August 7,
1992 and July 22, 1992, respectively

ABRZBE(EE)RNDERAT - R199%4F6R6BEFHGZMEZABRNODBRA
Al EAR (B H5% - 600611.5H) & BRZ ({7 5% - 900903.5H) 2 BB 199248
A7BMM1992F7A22B E LR LT

KRLH 2023FF#H
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DEFINITIONS
E®

“Dazhong Wanxiang”

[ KREF]
“Director(s)”
£

“Employee Share Ownership
Committee”

(B TR e
“Final Dividend”
[ REARR B

“Group” or “the Group”

[ [ANEE

“H Sharel(s)”

[HAZ

"HK$”

[7&7T]

“Hong Kong Listing Rules”

[F& EmAA

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

[ BB A

“IPO”
PO

“Jiangsu Dazhong”

[TIER AR

DaZhong Public Utilities Annual Report 2023

Shanghai Dazhong Wanxiang Auto Repair Co., Ltd.* [ EEAREBH/IHEEEGR
‘A A]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on December 26,
1991, and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Dazhong Business
Management
LPBEXBREFAEEREARAR - —HRI1991F12726 AR BIFEMMAIZH AR
NE HARCEREEZERSE

the director(s) of the Company
AREESR

Shanghai Dazhong Business Employee Share Ownership Committee* (/8K R
PEEBERAGBRISRS)
FPERREEEBERAFBISRS

the final dividend of RMB0.35 per ten shares (tax inclusive] for the year ended
December 31, 2023
BE2023F12A3NBLFENRBABRES10RARK0IST ()

the Company and its subsidiaries (or the Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the context may require], or where the context so requires, in
respect of the period before the Company became the holding company of its
present subsidiaries, refers to such subsidiaries as if they were subsidiaries of
the Company at the relevant time

RARREFAT (RN EME  ARRREFERA—FMZZEFAR) » RN
BRAME RARAKRELRKFRARINERAGRNEHARE - AEZEFLAF
(BUZEFRAREERERRRARNFAA)

overseas listed foreign share(s) in the registered share capital of the Company,
with nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and traded in Hong Kong dollars
ARBEMBRAFEREAEARE1.00TT 2RI EWINER - RE BB RZATER
EH - RBTRS

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEERBT

the rules governing the listing of securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(as amended or supplemented from time to time)

BEBMR RS LR (ERRERT M 5T)

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMARGMBRRAR

Initial Public Offering
BRARER

Jiangsu Dazhong Water Group Co., Ltd.* (T AFKIEEEGRAF]), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on April 4, 1995
IEHAZKBEEBRAR - —HR1995F4A4BEPREMA LA BRAA]



“Latest Practicable Date”
(R ERATEHH]
“Listing”

=

“LNG”
[LNG]

“LPG”
[LPG]

“Model Code”

[ AE <7l

“Nantong Dazhong Gas”
[FAATMER]
“NDRC”

[BIR#ENE]

“Nomination Committee”
[REZEE

“Remuneration and Appraisal

Committee”
[FEExEZEeE]

“Reporting Period”
[ &5 HA

“RMB” or "Renminbi”
(AR

“Selling Shareholders”
[E R AR

“SFO”
[ % R A 1%RBI)

“Shanghai Dazhong Gas”

[ LBRZMR]

DEFINITIONS
T8

March 28, 2024, being the latest practicable date for certain information
contained in this report

202453 H280 - BIAREMEE TERNKEERATHH

the listing of the H Shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

HIRR B BB R AT EAR T

Liquefied natural gas
BAIELRAR

Liquefied petroleum gas
BAL B R

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules
BB LETRAMECIMBCLTETAESTETERRZNRLETRD

Nantong Dazhong Gas Co., Ltd.* ([M@BARMRARBMR AT, a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on December 11, 2003
MBARMRRERAR - —HAR2003F12ANBETEFMALNBRAF]

National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC* (R #E A R HF1E B
RERNAELZES
TEARANBEERERNNELZES

the nomination committee under the Board of the Company

ARREEERELBE
the remuneration and appraisal committee under the Board of the Company
ARREEEHFMEERZE S

the year from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023
B2023F 1 A1HBRE2023F12A31BILFE

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

B A T A R

Shanghai Gas Group and Wuxi Transportation Co., Ltd.* (£ X EHRQF)
MREENMESHZTERRAA

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BFREDIFESNBER S LAE G ETEER] - R A N EK

Shanghai Dazhong Gas Co., Ltd.* (LB RXRMRABR AT (formerly known as
South Shanghai Gas Co., Ltd.* (I A LEBMATMEEEERAF)), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on January 3, 2001
FPERZRRERAR (AIEALESRATHEIEEERLAGF) - —HEMR200141 4
SREFRBFMAZNERAE

KROE 20235 54



DEFINITIONS
E®

“Shanghai Gas”
[ LB

“Shanghai Gas Group”

AR

“Shanghai Stock Exchange” or

“SSE”
[ B3]

“Shanghai Yixiang”

[ Ea8kH ]

“Sharel(s)”
[% 15 |

“Shareholder(s)”
(A% 5]

“Shenzhen Capital Group”

[ A

“Strategic Development
Committee”

[BREREZES]

“Supervisor(s]”

(S5

“Yuan” and “ten thousand Yuan”
and “one hundred million Yuan”

[T &x- &)

DaZhong Public Utilities Annual Report 2023

Shanghai Gas Co., Ltd.* (EBMABRAA, a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on December 27, 2018
FEREARAT - —RR2018E12A27BERBEFTME I BER QA

Shanghai Gas (Group) Co., Ltd.* (F/8MAR (£E) BRAE]), a limited Lliability
company incorporated in the PRC on February 12, 2004

PERR (RE)BARAR - —BR2004F2 3128 EFEFMKIHBERR A
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (/8% 5 5 A1)

FEBESRZSM

Shanghai Yixiang Automobile Test Co., Ltd.* (/BB EELRIBR AR,
a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on April 28, 1997, and an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Dazhong Business Management
FEBRFERBBERABRART - —ER1997F4A 28R EREFMAZHAR L
Al HARCEREKZERR

A Shares and H Shares
ARZ FIH A%

holder(s) of the Share(s)

SUESEEIN

Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd.* (FRIITEIF L EELEE AR AF]), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on August 25, 1999
RINTRFFREESEERAR - —MER1999F8A25 R ER HFMAZH AR L
=

the Strategic Development Committee under the Board of the Company

ARBEESERERETES

the supervisor(s) of the Company

NAFESR
RMB, RMB10 thousand, and RMB100 million

ARBT - AREEBT ARBET



As at the Latest Practicable Date, details are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Guoping (#5BF) (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Liang Jiawei (%] (Chief Executive Officer]
Mr. Wang Baoping (T & F)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shi Pingyang (5 %)
Mr. Jin Yongsheng (& 7k &)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Guofang (ZE )

Ms. Li Yingqi (=& H)

Mr. Liu Feng (%]i£)

Mr. Yang Ping (15 )

SUPERVISORS
Ms. Zhao Siyuan (#25) (Chairman)]
Ms. Li Ping (Z5%)
Mr. Cao Jing (&

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ms. Zhao Fei (i8¢
Dr. Ngai Wai Fung (Z2{& &)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Liang Jiawei (32 #)
Dr. Ngai Wai Fung (Z2/Z &)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Li Yingqi (Z58%) (Chairman)]
Mr. Jiang Guofang (ZE )

Mr. Liu Feng (%/1£)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Feng (2I&) (Chairman)]
Mr. Yang Guoping (45 Bl F)
Mr. Jiang Guofang (ZE )

REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE
Mr. Jiang Guofang (ZB35) (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Guoping (45 Bl F)

Mr. Liu Feng (%/1£)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFEH

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Yang Guoping (#5B1F) (Chairman)

Mr. Liang Jiawei (235 )

Mr. Yang Ping (%5 )

REGISTERED OFFICE
518 Shangcheng Road
Pudong New Area
Shanghai

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
10/F, Block 1, Zhongteng Building,

2121 Longteng Avenue, Xuhui District

Shanghai

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 8204B, 82/F, International Commerce Centre

1 Austin Road West

Kowloon

Hong Kong

STOCK NAME
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.

STOCK ABBREVIATION
DzUG

SHARE LISTING

A Share: Shanghai Stock Exchange

Stock Code: 600635

H Share: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 1635

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR

Jia Yuan Law Office
7/F & 17/F, No. 238 Des Voeux Road Central
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

A SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE PRC

China Securities Depository & Clearing Corporation Limited
(CSDCC) Shanghai Branch

188 South Yanggao Road,

Pudong New Area,

Shanghai, China

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
17M Floor/Shops 1712-16 17/F, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.dzug.cn
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I. KEY ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL
INDICATORS FOR THE RECENT TWO YEARS

(1) Key accounting data

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
FEMBERR

—  EZFFEERENMEER

(—) TESTEE

Unit:'000 Currency: RMB B For ®E: AR

Change

over the

corresponding

period last

2023 2022 year (%)

HLE E&F

(=] 2 18 3R

Key accounting data FTESHEE 20234 20225 (%)

Revenue LG 6,335,775 5,812,621 9.00

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to ZANAA#A ARG ER N/A

the owners of the Company i A, (E18) 212,544 (332,591 AN A

Net cash flows from operating activities 48 & /EB)E £ H)

REREFHR 689,833 417,429 65.26

Change over

the end of the

corresponding

period last

2023 2022 year (%)

HLL &

=] 2 18 0

Key accounting data FTESHEE 20234 20224 (%)
Net assets attributable to equity FEBRARARER

holders of the Company FEE 8,262,791 8,180,577 1.00

Total assets WEE 22,521,687 23,245,923 (3.12)

(2) Key financial indicators (Z) X ERKEE

Change

over the

corresponding

period last

2023 2022 year (%)

AHLE E&F

5] 2 18 R

Key financial indicators FTERKEE 20234 20224 (%)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share HEARgkikes (&) N/A

(RMB per share) (7t 1%) 0.07 (0.11) i A

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share mEERKE(EE) N/A

(RMB per share) (7t 1) 0.07 (0.11) i A

Weighted average returns on net assets JN#E 195 & E W X Up 5.77

(%) (%) percentage

points

H#n5.77 18

3.16 (2.67) Elal

KROE 20235 54
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMBER

According to IFRS
Accounting Standards

RMB'000

Revenue and profit

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before income tax
expense

Income tax expenses

Profit/(loss] during the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Dividends

Earnings per share
Attributable to ordinary
shareholders of
the parent company

Assets and liabilities

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Interests attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ARETT

WA R FHE

Lo

BR A5 52 59 2 A
w i/ (B18)

PSR

FREF(BR)

BER:
AREERA
R
el

BEREAR
ERRRRHN
FR Y

EERER
FRBEE
MEBE
nERE
nEREFE

BERERRDERE

FRBEE
BEFE

GERARRMAE

M
ey 3

DaZhong Public Utilities Annual Report 2023

(REPR MK R EERETHER)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 20204 20214 20224 20235
5,609,649 4,952,510 5,687,531 5,812,621 6,335,775
689,463 778,447 493,920 (299,486) 402,880
(55,932) (184,105) (101,745) 45,417 (99,245)
633,531 594,342 392,175 (254,069 303,635
526,473 515,231 303,356 (332,591) 212,544
107,058 7911 88,819 78,522 91,091
177,146 162,384 147,621 88,573 103,335
0.18 0.17 0.10 (0.11) 0.07
15,407,671 14,529,073 14,646,352 14,786,801 14,397,792
6,829,494 8,734,135 9,027,764 8,459,122 8,123,895
8,305,472 8,831,101 8,139,919 (9,323,088) (8,462,056)
1,475,978 96,966 887,845 (863,966 (338,161)
13,931,693 14,432,107 15,534,197 13,922,835 14,059,631
4,739,059 4,612,208 5,574,165 (4,402,435) (4,379,122)
9,192,634 9,819,899 9,960,032 9,520,400 9,680,509
8,007,112 8,587,274 8,659,565 8,180,577 8,262,791
1,185,522 1,232,625 1,300,467 1,339,823 1,417,718




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OVERVIEW 58
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INDUSTRY REVIEW
1. The Company’s business during the Reporting Period
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The Company is principally engaged in public utility and
financial investment businesses, which are the two major
sources of profit of the Company. In particular, public utility
includes (1) city gas, (2] environmental municipality, (3] urban
transportation; and (4) logistics and transport, and financial
investment business includes (1) non-banking financial

business and (2] venture capital business. During the BAREIL -
Reporting Period, there was no material change in the

Company's principal business.

Public utility NHEE

(1) City gas ARD =,

The company is mainly engaged in city gas business
which is in the downstream demand side of natural gas,
including residential and commercial gas. The scope of
the Company’s gas business includes gas sales and gas
installation engineering services and the business
model is to procure gas from the upstream suppliers,
sell the gas to end users via self-built urban pipeline
network, and also provide relevant distribution services.
The primary gas supply biller in Shanghai is Shanghai
Gas Co., Ltd., and those outside Shanghai are primarily
PetroChina and Sinopec. The business operations
mainly concentrate in Yangtze River Delta Region. The
Company's subsidiaries Shanghai Dazhong Gas and
Nantong Dazhong Gas are the sole supplier of piped
natural gas in the South Puxi Area in Shanghai and
Nantong, Jiangsu Province, respectively, with good
reputation in Shanghai and the Yangtze River Delta.
Shanghai Dazhong Gas owns a natural gas pipeline
network of 7,000 km in length, serves more than 2
million household users; Nantong Dazhong Gas has a
natural gas pipeline network of 3,000 km in length,
serves 640,000 household users. During the Reporting
Period, Shanghai Dazhong Gas achieved natural gas
sales of 1.02 billion cubic meters, a year-on-year
increase of 5.92%; Nantong Dazhong Gas achieved
natural gas sales of 380 million cubic meters, a
year-on-year increase of 7.13%.
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(2)

Major performance drivers: taking ERP as the starting
point, we cooperate with many units in the industry to
actively explore extended services for diversified
development; continue to increase the promotion of
value-added business such as gas insurance, stoves,
and alarms, increase the proportion of gas value-added
service revenue; and further properly addressed gap
between gas purchase and sale and meter
management. We have strengthened the level of
account management, actively promoted the pre-deposit
sales model, and steadily promoted the standardization
of organizational structure.

Environmental municipality

The Company is mainly engaged in sewage treatment
and infrastructure investment and operations in the
environmental and municipal fields. The sewage
treatment business mainly engages in the investment,
construction and operation of city domestic sewage and
industrial sewage treatment plants. Currently, a number
of sewage treatment plants under the Company are
operated by two major subsidiaries, i.e. Dazhong Jiading
Sewage and Jiangsu Dazhong. The current
infrastructure investment project operated by the
Company is the Xiangyin Road Tunnel in Shanghai
invested, constructed and operated under BOT
arrangement.

The main model of the Company's sewage treatment
business is to conduct physical, chemical and
biochemical treatment of domestic sewage, industrial
and commercial sewage, and initial rainwater and other
sewage collected through the urban sewage pipe
network, followed by discharge into the receiving water
bodies after meeting the appropriate national
environmental protection standards. In accordance with
the concession agreements entered into with local
governments, the local governments make regular
payments based on water volumes and unit prices.
Currently, the Company operates 9 wastewater
treatment plants in Shanghai and Jiangsu with a total
capacity of 440,000 tons per day, in which our
subsidiary, Dazhong Jiading Sewage, has realised a
capacity of 175,000 tons of urban sewage per day, and
the discharge standards have reached the class A+ of
Shanghai’s highest level; our subsidiary, Jiangsu
Dazhong, conducts operation mainly in Yunlong district,
Jiawang district, Peixian and Pizhou of Xuzhou city, and
together with Donghai county of Lianyungang, with the
total scale of 265,000 tons per day.

DaZhong Public Utilities Annual Report 2023

FEEERFHEZ : AERPAM
FHETEZREMEE BER
REZILERRNEERS : 58
MARER TR (LA - hEss
EHEEHRHTENEENE 2
R RIGEREWBAIGL 58
MUFEHEEMREEE TIE 8
{EEFREEKE  BBHETER
FOHEREL BRI EAMSERE
EAEL -

REMIER

ANANBRETREAREBHE)S
KEERABREIREEE )5
IKEEIERBE R BT AEIRISK
A0 T3 BE 7K B 3 iR O 4% 8 2 R A
B BRAR TEZFI5KE
BB RIHEFRARAREEEGK
FTEHARES - AREAES
M EIERRIEIA B BIABOT HU I
B BRMELH DEAREE
o

DRSS KEREBEBEREA A
BB TS KE BT ENETE
5K T ZEEK - FIEIRK K
H5KETHE LB R AL
BRI EFERERRREER
BEAAEESZ KB 2 IBIE -
BB 5 IR ] & W
&) BEMEEEE IR EK
EMBEE THEE - BEAIAA
LS TEHRLBEIRTKERE
W HBEIRRE ) RALEBWE, B o
Heh» FRBIARETESKEE
P A7 58N - HKIEEE
B EEmHES SRR EN —
WA+ FRRNIERARAF B A
T BESRTIHEGRMTELE
&~ EF & A00m 8 K 2B N T PO 4E
EGBFEZEREGE  BEER
SR 2658 MEH o



(3)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Xiangyin Road Tunnel is now at the operation phase
and is one of important river-crossing channel
connecting both banks of Pujiang River in Shanghai and
received a total annual vehicular throughput of nearly
22.5 million vehicle times. The Company is responsible
for daily operation, maintenance and safety
management, ensuring obstacle-free and the safe
operation of the tunnel. In addition,the Company has no
other ongoing or planned municipal projects.

Major performance drivers: Strengthen informatization
construction, establish energy consumption and
equipment management systems, and promote
intelligent management through refined maintenance of
equipment to ensure sustained and stable operation
and reduce operation and maintenance costs. Steadily
promote the technological upgrading of existing projects
to increase their capabilities. Actively expand
high-quality projects in the industry to the outside
world, and further broaden and optimize the Company’s
business layout in environmental and municipal
administration.

Urban transportation

The wurban transportation service business of the
Company mainly focuses on the comprehensive
transportation, which is operated by Dazhong
Transportation. It primarily engages in taxi operation,
car rental and other market segments, and provides
comprehensive transportation and ancillary services
such as taxi and car rental, service and tourism etc. At
the end of 2023, Dazhong Transportation possessed
6,793 taxis and 3,434 rental cars, developing smart
transportation via the “Dazhong Chuxing” (KRR 1T
platform.

Major performance drivers: Actively explore the
traditional taxi industry + Internet model, deepen
resource integration and optimal allocation by
combining functions such as "Dazhong Chuxing the app”
and "96822" service hotline; actively implement flat
management mechanisms, promote the centralization
process, and deepen Empower platform management
and improve operational efficiency.
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Logistics and transport

The Company's subsidiary Dazhong Logistics is a
modern service company that provides comprehensive
solutions for cargo transportation. It possesses the
qualification of Dangerous Goods Transportation (Class
Il flammable gases) in Shanghai, and is the largest
logistics company in the capacity of the third party
licensed for LPG distribution in Shanghai. During the
Reporting Period, Dazhong Run Logistics Delivery, a
wholly-owned subsidiary specializing in dangerous
goods transportation, was established to carry out
refined management of hazardous chemicals
transportation business. Dazhong Logistics has multiple
management systems such as vehicle management
system, intelligent dispatching system, operation
management system and TMS system, and provides
high-quality services and standardized settlement
mechanism through the "Dazhong Logistics App” and
“96811" dispatching platform.

Major performance drivers: Through the self-built
Dazhong Logistics Public Information Service Platform
and Dazhong Supply Chain Collaborative Innovation
Service Platform, and with the help of information
technology, we provide “Internet + supply chain”
management that integrates various logistics operation
resources in society which demonstrate new business
formats and models; focus customer needs, accelerate
the deep integration of the Internet, the Internet of
Things and the supply chain, and provide users with
efficient and convenient logistics vehicle services.

DaZhong Public Utilities Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2. Financial Investment business

(1)

(2

Non-banking financial business

The non-banking financial services business is operated
by its holding subsidiaries Dazhong Financial Leasing,
Dazhong Factoring and Dazhong Commerce, which are
mainly engaged in financial leasing and factoring
business etc. Dazhong Financial Leasing mainly
provides sales-leaseback and direct leasing services to
customers, and its financial leasing charges net
spreads as a main source of profit. During the
Reporting period, business in supply chain finance
developed rapidly, factoring business continued to
advance steadily, and platform finance made significant
progress.

Major performance drivers: Continue to promote the
“technology-driven, small and decentralized” consumer
finance cooperation model. For the market segment to
be precise and thorough, leverage on the sales growth
trend of domestic new energy vehicles, deepen the
supply chain finance business and continue to expand
the business scale.

Venture capital business

The Company’s venture capital business is conducted
mainly through direct investment and equity
participation in special-purpose funds, private funds and
other channels, covering multiple fields, such as PE,
merger and acquisition, and private placement in the
security secondary market. There are four major
venture capital platforms invested by the Company,
which are Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd, Shanghai
Huacan Equity Investment Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership), Shanghai Xingye Venture Capital Co., Ltd.*
(EBEERXIEEBRAA]) and Dacheng Huicai
(Shenzhen] Industrial Partnership (Limited Partnership)
("Dacheng Huicai”).

Major performance drivers: Make direct investment and
follow-up investment with the help of high-quality
investment platforms, while leveraging the Company's
industrial resource advantages to achieve synergistic
integration effects; strengthen post-investment
management, establish an effective communication
mechanism for capital and projects through multiple
channels, and increase the probability of project exit,
improve the efficiency of investment funds, and strive to
create stable investment returns.
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(1]

(2]

Industry information
City gas

In recent years, China’'s total natural gas supply has
increased rapidly, the proportion of natural gas in the energy
consumption structure will continue to increase, and demand
will continue to grow.

In August 2023, the Work Safety Commission of the State
Council issued the “National Urban Gas Safety Special
Rectification Work Plan” and launched a national urban gas
safety special rectification action. In September, the National
Energy Administration released the "Natural Gas Utilization
Policy (Draft for Comments)”. Compared with the 2012
“Utilization Policy”, the new policy broadens the field of
natural gas utilization, optimizes the direction of utilization,
and promotes high-quality development of the natural gas
industry. In October, the Shanghai Municipal Development and
Reform Commission issued the “Shanghai Pipeline Natural
Gas Distribution Price Management Measures” to strengthen
pipeline gas price management to promote the healthy
development of the urban pipeline natural gas industry.

Wastewater treatment

At present, the sewage treatment industry is relatively mature
and the industry concentration is not high. It is characterized
by a large number of enterprises, insufficient scale, and
regional dispersion. Standard upgrading and renovation
projects of existing projects, harmless disposal of sludge and
refined management have been the focus of industry
development in recent years.

In November 2023, the “Guiding Opinions on Standardizing
the Implementation of the New Mechanism for Cooperation
between Government and Social Capital” was issued.
Regulations and supervision play a crucial role in the guiding
opinions, which promote efficient project operations. The new
mechanism will bring new opportunities and promote the
healthy and sustainable development of cooperation between

government and social capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Urban transportation

Dazhong Transportation is an important comprehensive
transportation service provider in Shanghai and the Yangtze
River Delta region. In June 2023, the re-enacted “Shanghai
Municipal Code of Service for Passenger Transport of Taxis”
began implementing, which is conducive to furthering the
healthy, sustainable development of the taxi industry,
resolving new situations and issues arising in the industry
and providing a basis for regulating passenger transport
operation and service activities of taxies within the
administrative division of Shanghai.

Logistics and Transport

Small businesses and low industry concentration characterize
the dangerous goods transportation industry where the
company operates. To strengthen safety supervision of
hazardous chemicals storage and transportation, regulatory
authorities have introduced a number of regulatory policies in
recent years, including restricting incremental qualifications
and supervising existing companies. As a result of continuous
strict supervision, small and medium-sized enterprises will
face increased compliance costs and operating costs.
Companies with poor compliance and low economies of scale
will be eliminated at an accelerated pace, leaving room for
consolidation in the industry.

Non-banking financial services

In the first half of 2023, the National Administration of
Financial Regulation was established, and issued the “Notice
on Promoting the Standardized Operations and Compliance
Management of Financial Leasing Companies” to guide
financial leasing companies to provide specialized and
professional financial services for the real economy in
October. This move may have three impacts on the industry:
stronger supervision, unified ideas for supervising
homogeneous businesses, and more stringent business
supervision requirements.
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Venture capital business

In the first half of the year, China Securities Regulatory
Commission issued the “Administrative Measures for
Registration of Initial Public Offering of Stocks”, and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange launched a listing mechanism for novel,
distinctive and specialized technology companies, as a
supplement to the Main Board Listing Rules, thereby further
expanding the listing framework for Hong Kong market and
providing more facilities for high-tech, high-potential
companies to seek listing and financing in Hong Kong. In the
second half of the year, the “Initiatives to drive the
High-Quality Development of the Beijing Stock Exchange” was
issued. The Beijing Stock Exchange is an important part of
China’s multi-level capital market system and has broadened
financing channels for small and medium-sized enterprises in
the growth stage.

During the Reporting Period, the State Council promulgated
the first administrative regulation for the private equity fund
industry, the “Regulations on the Supervision and
Administration of Private Equity Investment Funds”, and the
China Securities Regulatory Commission revised the
“Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of Private
Equity Investment Funds (Draft for Comments]”, the industry’s
highest departmental regulation, and publicly solicited
opinions. Currently, China’s private equity fund industry has
undergone a further upgrade in its regulatory system and
intensity of supervision, and it is moving towards a more
standardized and differentiated approach to the development
of the industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Major operation during the Reporting Period

In 2023,
million,

the Company recorded a total revenue of RMB6,335.78
representing an increase of 9.00% as compared to
RMB5,812.62 million for the corresponding period of last year.
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company was
RMB213 million, representing an increase of RMB545 million
compared with the same period last year.

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 9.00% on a year-on-year basis
from RMB5,812.62 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB6,335.78 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.
Revenue contribution from the four segments remained relatively
stable during the Reporting Period.

Piped gas supply

Revenue generated from piped gas supply operations increased by
8.94% from RMB5,295.32 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to RMB5,768.89 million for the year ended December 31,
2023. Revenue generated from piped gas supply operations was
91.10% and 91.05% of the Group's total revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Wastewater treatment

Revenue generated from wastewater treatment operations
increased by 16.22% from RMB278.37 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to RMB323.53 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023. Revenue generated from wastewater treatment
operations was 4.79% and 5.10% of the Group's total revenue for
the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Public infrastructure projects

Revenue generated from public infrastructure projects increased by
1.94% from RMB19.58 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to RMB19.96 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.
Revenue generated from public infrastructure projects was 0.34%
and 0.32% of the Group’s total revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2023, respectively.
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Transportation services

Revenue from transportation services decreased by 9.91% from
RMB134.28 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB120.97 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. Revenue
generated from transportation services was 2.31% and 1.91% of the
Group's total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2023, respectively.

Financial services

Revenue from financial services business increased by 20.39% from
RMB85.07 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB102.42 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. Revenue
generated from financial services was 1.46% and 1.62% of the
Group's total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2023, respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by 17.55% from RMB791.71 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB930.64 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023. Gross profit of piped gas supply
operations increased by 13.67% from RMB527.19 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB599.28 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023. Gross profit margin for piped gas supply
increased 0.43 percentage points from 9.96% for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to 10.39% for the year ended December 37,
2023.

Selling and distribution costs
Selling and distribution costs increased by 1.90% from RMB199.50

million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB203.29 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 28.90% from RMB402.70
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB519.08 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023. The increase is mainly due
to the increase in personnel remuneration as the company’s
performance growth, increase in social security and Mandatory
Provident Fund base during the Reporting Period.

Net investment income and gains

Net investment income and gains increased by 318.66 million from
RMB(385.96) million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB(67.30) million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The
increase was primarily due to the fluctuations in fair value of
financial assets.

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates increased by 10,494.80% from
RMB3.06 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB324.20 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The
increase was primarily due to the available profits of associates,
including Dazhong Transportation and Huacan Fund increased by
RMB580 million compared with last year. The available profits of
Shenzhen Capital Group, Shanghai Dianke Intelligent Systems Co.,
Ltd. and Suchuang Gas decreased by RMB256 million compared
with the same period of last year.

Profit before tax

As a result of above, profit before tax increased by RMB702.37
million from loss of RMB299.49 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to profit of RMB402.88 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

Net profit

As a result of above, net profit increased by RMB557.70 million
from loss of RMB254.07 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to profit of RMB303.63 million for the year ended December
31, 2023.

Total comprehensive income

As a result of above, the total comprehensive income increased by
RMB509.04 million from RMB(247.12) million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to the total comprehensive income of
RMB261.92 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TEHRERESH

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Overview

The Group finances its liquidity requirements primarily through
cash flow generated from operating activities and proceeds from
interest-bearing bank loans, debt instruments and other
borrowings. Its primary uses of cash include cash paid for
purchasing goods and labour services, cash paid to and on behalf
of employees, tax payment, and cash paid relating to other
operating activities. The Group has not used any financial
instruments for hedging, nor used any net investment amounts in
foreign currencies for hedging via monetary loans and/or other
foreign exchange hedging instruments.

The table below sets out the analysis of key financial data of the
Group as at the end of the Reporting Period:

BEER  THReERARMERE

BmE

AEBEIZEBRLRBAELTRTREN
KErBERITER  BHTAREMBERAE
RERHARBESHLBNES - AKED

2ReAEEEEERR BRXEBHN
MRS INEBRTARSBTIXNMNR
T XNWEERE I HEMEEZEH
BRANEE - NEEBESH S /T A MY
HRE THENBREFENEEREER
R,/ E A SR T B 1T $ 0

TR ARERRERRO T BB
DT

Unit: RMB’000 B ARBTT
Item 2023 2022 Change Change(%) Reason(s)
EH 2023% 02F BRI BRE% RE
Share of results of 324,201 3,060 321,141 10,494.80 Mainly due to the available profits of associates, including Dazhong
associates Transportation and Shanghai Huacan Equity Investment Fund
PEBENTEE Partnership [Limited Partnership) increased RMB580 million compared
with the same period last year. The available profits of Shenzhen
Capital Group, Shanghai Seari Intelligent Systems Co., Ltd. and
Suchuang Gas decreased RMB256 million compared with the same
period of last year.
IERARAREHNEDEARAATRE  LEEEREREEEAHD
£2(ERAR)SAANTZARAR LFRBEMARKOL0ET : #
HANARER  LBEHERZABRNERRANFARRERFN
AEERER EERBRS ARE256MET -
Investment income and (67,297 (385,964 318,667 N/A~ Mainly due to fluctuations in the fair value of financial assets.
revenue, net TER TEREBEENDABEKEY-
RERARKEFR
Income tax [expenses)/credit (99,245) 45,417 144,662 318.51 Mainly due to the increase in total profit this year.
sk (%) B TERAENBREEM -
Prepayment and other 187,131 394,315 (207,184) (52.54) Mainly due to the fact that dividends receivable of RMB165 million at the
receivables end of the previous period were received during this reporting period.
AN FRREM MR TEALHRERRM BT RAREHKE -
Net cash flows generated 689,833 417,429 272,204 65.26  Mainly due to during the Reporting Period, the net cashflow of sales and
from operating activities purchases of goods of the subsidiaries,namely Shanghai Dazhong Gas,
BEEHFELERERE Nantong Dazhong Gas increased compared with same period of last
F8 year; the wastewater treatment fees of the subsidiaries, namely
Dazhong Jiading Sewage, Jiangsu Dazhong increased compared with
the same period last year; Shanghai Xiangyin Road Tunnel Construction
Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary received franchise subsidy last
period, however, there is no such cash flow impact in this period.
IERRREHF LA LEARME  BRARMAHERRBEHRNFR
ERBEERHAEN  FRAARET K ITHARREIMN5KEE
ERLFRSEN: FRELENRRBERRERARAT AR
BEWER FRELERERYE
Net cash flows (used in)/ (866,522) 136,414 (1,002,936) [735.21) Mainly due to the decrease in the Company’s asset- liability ratio during

generated from
financing activities
BEED (A EERE

e
MEFE
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the Reporting Period, and the net cash flow of borrowed funds minus
debt repayments significantly decreased compared with the same
period last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bank borrowings

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had total bank borrowings of
approximately RMB3,496.15 million, which was decreased by
11.02% from RMB3,929.18 million as of December 31, 2022.

The Group's long-term interest-bearing borrowings and short- term
interest-bearing borrowings as of December 31, 2023 were
RMB337.27 million and RMB3,158.88 million, respectively. The
following table sets forth the maturity profile of the loans
repayable of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and December 31,
2023:

Unit: RMB'000

—FR

Within one year

One to two years —EMF
Two to five years —ERF
More than five years AFE
Total HBEr

Corporate bonds and notes

For details of corporate bonds and notes, please refer to the
section headed “Particulars of Corporate Bonds".

Gearing ratio’

As of December 31, 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio was 83.08%,
representing an decrease of 9.72 percentage points from 92.80% as
of December 31, 2022.

Pledged assets

As of December 31, 2023, bank borrowings with an aggregate
amount of RMB423.92 million (as of December 31, 2022:
RMB673.50 million) were secured by the Group’s assets. For
details, please refer to note 34 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

! Gearing ratio is calculated by total debt divided by total equity at the end of the
Reporting Period and multiplied by 100%. Total debt is defined as payables
incurred not in the ordinary course of business.

THBERESH

RITER

HZE2023F 128318 REBMRITERE
A A AR L9615H 8T - WA £2022
F1I2A3TENAREK3,92918B B LA L
11.02% ©

HZE2023F128318  AEBRBTEE
HEEHTEERS N ABARKIIT27TES
TR ARYS 15888 B8 » TRHFIIAEE
HZ=20229F12A318 %2023 12 A31HEE
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December 31,
2022
2022412 H31H
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2023
20234 12H31H

3,158,881 3,465,884

167,808 137,386

74,894 325,678

94,569 236

3,496,152 3,929,184
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBEFRESH

Contractual and capital commitments

For details of contractual and capital commitments, please refer to
notes 40 and 46 of the financial statements in this annual report.

Contingent liabilities

As of December 31,
liabilities.

2023, the Group saw no significant contingent

Discussion and Analysis of Operation

In 2023, under the leadership of the board of directors, the
Company will adhere to the established development strategy and
implement various key tasks. The main business will continue to
develop steadily and all aspects of work will show a good trend.

During the Reporting Period, the Company achieved revenue of
RMB6,335.78 million, a year-on-year increase of 9.00%; the profit
for the vyear attributable to the owners of the Company was
RMB213 million, a year-on-year increase of RMB545 million.

/. Maintain a steady and healthy development on public utility
business

1. City gas sector

(1) Shanghai Dazhong Gas seizes the opportunity of business
market recovery and steadily expands its growth; it has
completed two projects: “replacement of gas appliance
connection hoses for residential users of existing
pipeline natural gas” and “installation of gas alarms for
elderly people living alone” of the city government.

(2)  Nantong Dazhong Gas actively strives for policy support,
completes the adjustment of non -residential gas
prices, and implements the linkage of residential gas
prices; completes the development of a comprehensive
smart gas management platform; actively introduces
new materials and new technologies, and
comprehensively promotes the use of smart gas meters
and self-closing valve.

DaZhong Public Utilities Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Transportation services sector

Faced with severe challenges in the overall economic
environment, Dazhong Transportation maintains firm
confidence, gives full play to the advantages brought by
institutional reform, digital transformation and industrial
resource integration, proactively adapts to changes in the
market environment, properly responds to various risks, and
maintains a steady development trend. During the Reporting
Period, Dazhong Transportation further increased its holdings
in Shanghai Shuxun Information Technology Co., Ltd.

Environmental and municipal infrastructure sector

(1) Dazhong Jiading Sewage insists on meeting emission
standards and optimizing various production operations;
the Company optimizes power consumption costs
according to local conditions, steadily promotes
distributed photovoltaic projects, and makes positive
contributions to energy conservation and emission
reduction. At the same time, it is also actively preparing
for energy-increasing technical transformation projects.

(2)  Jiangsu Dazhong continues to implement refined
management, controls production costs through the
application of new technologies and centralized
procurement of pharmaceuticals, and establishes a
dynamic asset management system to fully cover all
aspects of “management, use, maintenance and repair”
of equipment in each factory.

(3)  Xiangyin Road Tunnel Company adheres to standardized
management of daily operation and maintenance to
ensure the safety and smooth flow of the tunnel. The
Company conscientiously implements the requirements
of special investigation and rectification actions for
major accident hazards, and conducts multiple
emergency plan drills and safety education and
training.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEFRESH

4.

1.

1.

Logistics and transportation sector

Dazhong Logistics successfully completed the transportation
support task for the delegation of foreign dignitaries at the
6th China International Import Expo and received a letter of
commendation from the Shanghai Foreign Affairs Office.
Hazardous chemical distribution fleets continue to develop
new businesses while strengthening safety management. The
Jiangdong Road charging station went online smoothly and
achieved profitability that month, and it continues to explore
new charging station locations and new charging station
businesses.

Deepen the transformation of non-banking financial
industry

Dazhong Financial Leasing continues to expand its business
around the two key areas of “consumer finance and platform
finance”. The supply chain finance business has developed
rapidly, and consumer finance has made breakthroughs in the
“vehicle installment” projects. Dazhong Factoring Company is
making steady progress in business.

Strengthen post-investment management of existing
projects

The Company strengthens the post-investment management
of existing projects on the venture capital platform, speeds up
the exit of projects and withdraws funds through various
channels. During the Reporting Period, the Company's direct
investment projects and projects invested through equity
participation in special funds were operating smoothly. The
Company regularly analyzes and sorts out the invested
projects one by one, and arranges exit plans in a timely
manner to control risks and obtain returns. Hwatsing
Technology project achieved good returns in the second half
of the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Strengthen the standardization and institutionalization of
the Company’s internal management

The Company continues to strengthen internal management
in production and operations, and strengthens the safety
working mechanism of “prevention beforehand, supervision
during the incident, and summary afterward”, which
effectively guarantees the company’'s safe production work,
and no safety accidents occurred throughout the year. The
Company continues to improve performance appraisal
management, optimize the human resources performance
management system, and formulate a “three-year talent
development action plan” to strengthen talent reserves and
build a talent echelon. The company continues to strengthen
information disclosure management to ensure timely,
accurate and complete company information disclosure,
actively manages investor relations, expands external publicity
windows, has won multiple honorary awards, and established
a good corporate image. The Company gives full play to the
role of auditing, carries out internal supervision objectively,
independently and impartially, and carries out daily
supervision and special audits to ensure timely discovery and
prevention. The Company’'s general party branch actively
carried out the second batch of educational work on the study
and implementation of Xi Jinping’'s socialist thought with
Chinese characteristics for a new era, and organized various
branches to carry out a large-scale research activity on
“going to the grassroots, listening to voices, and promoting
development” and achieved good results.

ANALYSIS OF CORE COMPETITIVENESS

(1

Service Quality Advantage

With high-standard service quality and a spirit of
professionalism and excellence, the Company has earned a
solid market reputation. During the Reporting Period, the
Company once again ranked among the “Top 100 service
enterprises of Shanghai in 2023". Subsidiaries such as
Dazhong Gas and Dazhong Logistics, serving as key suppliers
for the 6th China International Import Expo, deeply
implemented General Secretary Xi Jinping’s important
directive to make the expo “better and better.” With a high
sense of responsibility and mission, they diligently carried out
various tasks, contributing wisdom and strength to the
country’s economic development and high-level opening-up
with practical actions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEFRESH

(2)

(3)

Regional Industry Advantage

Shanghai Dazhong Gas provides supply services covering
seven administrative regions west of the Huangpu River and
south of the Suzhou River in Shanghai. Nantong Dazhong Gas
mainly undertakes the construction of gas pipelines, urban
gas transmission and distribution, natural gas sales, and gas
appliance sales in Nantong [including Gangzha District,
Chongchuan District, Economic and Technological
Development Zone, and Sutong Science and Technology
Industrial Park etc]. The sewage treatment projects of
Dazhong Jiading Sewage and Jiangsu Dazhong are mainly
operated in the form of BOT, focusing on regional sewage
treatment.

The company has a stable regional service scope and tenure,
with minimal fluctuations in market and business model
dynamics. As the demand for natural gas and sewage
treatment in the region grows, it will continue to generate

stable revenue for the company.
Advantage in Sound Corporate Governance

As a publicly listed company in both Shanghai and Hong
Kong, the Company is subject to supervision from regulatory
authorities in both regions, domestic and overseas markets
and attracts attention from investors. The Company strictly
adheres to various regulatory requirements in both regions
and has developed a comprehensive corporate governance
structure and standardized operating model over the years.
During the year, the Company received the “Excellent
Practice Case of the Board of Directors” and the “Best
Practice Case of the Board of Directors of Listed Companies
in 2023 awarded by the China Association for Public
Companies.

In recent years, the Company has regarded ESG management
as an important strategic support, systematically
incorporating ESG elements into its daily management at a
higher level, integrating resources to optimize its energy
structure, and achieving a low-carbon economy. During the
Reporting Period, the Company’s ESG rating was assessed as
“A+" by China Chengxin Green Finance and it was recognized
as an “Excellent Practice Case of ESG for Listed Companies
in 2023" by the China Association for Public Companies.
Additionally, it successfully entered the “First National Cup
ESG Golden Bull Awards — Top 50 Carbon Neutrality
Enterprises”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(4) Advantage in Investment Experience

The Company has invested in several high-quality investment
platforms through equity participation, engaging in extensive
cooperation in various aspects and dimensions to enhance its
mergers and acquisitions and resource integration
capabilities. Shenzhen Capital Group, in which the Company
holds equity, ranks among the top in the domestic venture
capital industry in terms of the number of invested
enterprises and the number of invested enterprises became
listed.

During the Reporting Period, the Company's core
competitiveness remained unchanged.

ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS

During the Reporting Period, the equity investments by the
Company amounted to around RMB50.50 million, decreased by
62.91% year-on-year.

(1) Material equity investments

Unit: Ten Thousand Yuan; Currency: RMB

THBERESH

4) RELRNEZR
NEBBE2RZFMSTEEREFE
ZHEZHERFEZEE  RITGHE
MERBERES - ARIZROFRAIRE
RECEHE RECELITHEER
MEIRITEATS -
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BRERASR
WEBHA RRYEYNINEREENAARE
5,050.008 7T ' Ltk EFREFTF562.91% ©

(1 EXKRERE

Blu:8rx %BE&:ARE

Profit and

Whether it is Whether to Investment Estimated  loss impact Whether  Disclosure
subject’s major Investment ~ Accumulative consolidate  Account Itemllf Partners Term Progress as of the balance earnings ~ for the involving  Date Disclosure Indexes
Investee Main business ~ investment Investment method amount stake  accounts applicable) Source of funds (if applicable] ~ (If any] sheet date (if any) period litigation ~(if any) (if any)
BHRETE BEME L2 RERR HERERBRAN Bitha BERE  BEEY
RRRLARE E:22 1 REEE R RELE RRILEH REHR (ng&R) REXR (ng&R) (%) ERER (0%)  AEBEYERESE (0B (0A)
Ihangjiagang Boren Equity Private equity Yes Capital 5,050.00 5324% No Financial assets at ~ Self-raised Long term The investee company [ 56.64 No May 31, For detalls, please
Investment Partnership investment increase fair value has completed 03 refer to
(LP) through profit business Announcement
or loss. registration of No. 2023-021
change disclosed by the
Company on the
website of
Shanghai Stock
Exchange
FRERCRERARBE LERERE R ki 505000 GV g% &8 56.64 T mE A

(Ra%)

Total / / / 505000 53.26%

(2) Financial assets at fair value
For details regarding financial assets at fair value please
refer to note 32 of the financial statement in this annual
report.

Sale of material assets and equities

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
material disposals of assets and equities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEFRESH

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CONTROLLED SUBSIDIARIES
AND EQUITY PARTICIPATED COMPANIES

FEREREBEAFTISN

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB B BE:ARK

Registered Operating
Company name capital Business scope Total assets Net assets revenue Net profit
ARER dAMEEX SEEE mgE FEE EELION Xl
Dazhong Transportation (Group) Co., Ltd. 2,364,122,864.00 Modern logistics and transportation  18,480,902,090.15  9,522,459,353.12  4,529,671,307.80 378,336,147.61
ARRAE (RE) BHERAR BRORZBES
Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd 10,000,000,000.00 Venture capital institution 52,810,298,501.23  27,716,694,483.77  1,881,422,515.19  1,624,597,423.92
AU R EREERAR EESiS-v 1
Shanghai Dazhong Gas Co., Ltd. 1,000,000,000.00 Gas supply 5,652,797,614.76  1,800,743,148.57  4,183,173,057.90 62,470,228.83
LERRMRERAF MR E

USE OF PROCEEDS

On December 5, 2016, the Company completed the public offering
of 478,940,000 H Shares (excluding overallotment) (comprising
435,400,000 new H Shares offered by the Company and 43,540,000
H Shares sold by the Selling Shareholders]. The issue price under
the public offering was HK$3.60 per H Share. The net proceeds
(after deducting the underwriting fees and commissions,
transaction levy and trading fee] received by the Company were
approximately HK$1,444.5 million. On January 9, 2017, the
Company further completed the public offering of 54,703,000
additional H Shares [(comprising 49,730,000 new H Shares issued
and allotted by the Company and 4,973,000 H Shares sold by the
Selling Shareholders) due to the partial exercise of the
over-allotment options at the issue price of HK$3.60 per H Share.
Additional net proceeds [(after deducting the underwriting fees and
commissions, transaction levy and trading fee] of approximately
HK$175.0 million were received by the Company. Therefore, the
total net proceeds received by the Company (after deducting the
underwriting fees and commissions, transaction levy and trading
fee) amounted to approximately HK$1,619.5 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On March 29, 2019, the Board proposed that the purposes of the
total proceeds should be changed ("Proposed Change”), with the
piped gas supply business and wastewater treatment business
consolidated. The Proposed Change enabled the Company to more
effectively plan its financial resources, and the Board believed that
such change could enhance the Company's future business
development opportunities, to better fit the Company’'s existing
business needs, accelerate the Group's sustainable development,
and reinforce the Group’s overall market position. The Proposed
Change was approved by the AGM held on June 12, 2019; for more
details, please refer to the Company's circular dated April 25,
2019.

On December 3, 2020, the Board proposed to adjust the original
plan for the use of proceeds raised from H Shares of the Company,
changing the original 25% of proceeds for “investment in other
public utility businesses” to “investment in equity projects in
relation to public utility industry chain”, in order to participate in
the relevant links of the extended industry chain based on the
public utility industry, for the interaction with the Company’s public
utility business, and the realisation of significant growth of its main
business on public utility projects. The change of use of proceeds
by the Company will enable the Company to better allocate its
financial resources. The Board considers that the change will help
the Company seize future market opportunities, which is in line
with the strategic development planning of the Company, and is
beneficial to the sustainable development of the Group. The change
was approved by the first extraordinary Shareholders” meeting in
2020 held on December 28, 2020; for more details, please refer to
the Company's circular dated December 7, 2020.

Other than the above change, the purposes of the Total Net
Proceeds saw no changes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBEFRESH

As of December 31, 2023, the uses of proceeds were as follows:

Percentage such Opening

item would use balance as of

in the net January 1,

Items proceeds Net proceeds 2023
HRHZER BZE

BRZAERA 2023%1A1A

EH BEZEAL  AERERE BRI
[million HK$) (million HK$)

(B8ETL) (BBETL)

B E2023F12A318 - KRR AHBEMS
FRENFERABROT

As of

December 31,
2023, amounts Remaining net Estimated timetable to use
already used proceeds unused proceeds
8z

2023128318 EHRZBEEHA
ZERCHAz ZABMEHE FEAXBAMEIEN
HELHE FE EIRAX
[million HK$) [million HK$)  [Note)
(B8%T) (Bg&AT) (M)

l

For investment in public utility projects, including but 65% 1,052.70 990.40
not limited to gas supply, water supply, wastewater

treatment, solid waste treatment, transportation and

other projects.

RENBEXEEE  BEETRAMEMHE

KEkEE - BERE  RBESRA -

[i

[ii) For investment in equity projects in relation to public 25% 404.90 17.33
utility industry chain.
i) RERELMELEFEBHEORERAR -

[iii) For funding the Company’'s working capital and other 10% 161.95 143.30
general corporate purposes.

i) BN ARENZEEE REM—ROEME

62.30 990.40 December 31, 2024 or
before
202412 A3 B Z AT

387.57 17.33  December 31, 2024 or
before
2026E 123182 AT

18.65 143.30  December 31, 2024 or
before

202612831 B S 2R

Total 100% 1,619.55 1,151.03 468.52 1,151.03

@t

Notes: B EE -

1. The estimated timetable is made by the Group on the best estimation of future 1. B ERABRIEFENSHREREAEEZ

market conditions in terms of the then market conditions, which may change
from time to time.

2. Affected by the existing economic situation and investment environments, the
Company is prudent on using the proceeds for investment projects to control
risks; therefore, the Company has adjusted the above estimated timetable for
the remaining net proceeds.

As of December 31, 2023, all remaining unutilised proceeds had
been deposited into the Company's accounts, and planned to be
utilised in terms of the suggested purposes. The actual time of use
will be subject to market environments and business development
pace. The Company has been closely monitoring the market
conditions and business development, and expecting to use the
unutilised proceeds before the end of 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

Industry pattern and trend
Gas Industry

The Company's downstream sales of natural gas mainly
target gas companies in various cities. Currently, a diversified
market competition pattern has been formed, with central
state-owned enterprises, state-owned enterprises, foreign
enterprises, and private enterprises as the main entities. The
State Council and the National Development and Reform
Commission respectively issued the “Implementation Plan for
Aging Renovation of Urban Gas Pipelines(2022-2025)" {3 #4
REBEECENBEE T 2(2022-2025)) and the “Interim
measures for central government’s earmarked investment on
upgrading of urban gas pipelines, etc. and
government-subsidised housing” (MMM RE BEFEZ(LEHk
EMREUELZEIRTABEAREEHEEELTIE
providing clear guidance and support for strengthening the
renovation of metering tables and the maintenance and
inspection of gas pipeline networks. This is conducive to
optimizing gas transmission and distribution, reducing the gap
between gas supply and sales, and further releasing profit
space for urban gas enterprises.

Sewage treatment industry

In recent years, there has been a proliferation of participants
in China's sewage treatment industry, leading to intense
competition. The main participants in the market differ
significantly in the areas where their sewage treatment
projects are located, as well as in the scale and scope of
their operations within the various segments of the sewage
treatment sector. With the advent of the “14th Five-Year
Plan” period, the division of labor in the environmental
protection industry has become more specialized and refined.
In the future, the sewage treatment industry will focus more
on technological innovation, refined management, and
resource utilization. High treatment efficiency, small footprint,
and stable water quality will be the key development
directions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBEFRESH

Urban transportation industry

In terms of the urban transportation industry, Shanghai taxi
industry is a publicity card which directly affects the business
environment and city image. In the recent years, the
development of taxi industry has been given a lot of attention.
Shanghai City Government issued Shanghai Transportation
Development White Paper (2022 edition) in 2022, has well
identified the goals, strategies and actions of the
transportation development in the future ten years. The White
Paper has put forward requirements and specifications for the
total number of taxis, tariff mechanism, service pattern, and
shift the function from focusing on transportation to
coordinating transportation and developing smart, green, and
sustainable development. In the future, actively promoting the
business model of “patrol and Internet integration,” which
fully integrates patrol taxis with the internet, will further
enhance the operational efficiency and competitiveness of
patrol taxis.

Logistics and transportation industry

Achieving high-quality economic development relies on the
effective support of the logistics industry. The core
competitiveness of logistics enterprises will gradually shift
from cost efficiency competition in simple logistics links to
competition based on comprehensive service quality. In the
future logistics market competition, emphasis will be placed
on service quality, reflecting new characteristics of high
quality and value. Additionally, the widespread application and
deep integration of next-generation information technology
with the logistics industry will further promote overall quality
improvement and efficiency enhancement in the industry.

Financial leasing industry

Financial to physical is becoming the future trend of financing
and leasing industry. In October, the National Administration
for Financial Regulatory Administration issued the “Notice on
Promoting Standardized Operation and Compliant
Management of Financial Leasing Companies” which requires
enhancing the professional capabilities of serving the real
economy and standardizing leased assets and leasing
business models. Influenced by this, financial leasing industry
associations in various regions across the country have
successively issued business proposals, advocating for
increased support for various entities, further clarifying the
development direction of the financial leasing industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Venture capital industry

In December, the Central Economic Work Conference first
proposed “encouraging the development of venture capital
and equity investment” to boost the construction of a modern
industrial system. According to a report by CVSource, in
2023, regardless of investment quantity or scale, the
semiconductor and electronic equipment, IT, and
biotechnology/medical health industries ranked among the
top three in China’s equity investment market. Therefore,
under the comprehensive registration system, the investment
model of “rooting in the industry + empowering enterprises”
will replace the previous approach. Venture capital
institutions will need to explore high-quality projects with real
growth, innovation, and technological content based on
in-depth research into the industrial chain.

Development strategy of the Company

Facing the downward pressure on the domestic economy, the
Company will adhere to the operating strategy of “seeking
progress in stability; prioritize stability”. We will promote
steady growth and healthy development in our two main
businesses: public utilities and financial venture capital.
Furthermore, the Company will strengthen support through
informatization, leverage the centralized control and business
support capabilities of the company headquarters,
continuously improve corporate governance, and take multiple
measures to ensure the completion of various annual
business objectives.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHRERESH

(Il) Operation plans

1.

Continuously optimize industrial investment layout and
solidify the cornerstone role of the public utility sector

The company will actively expand investments in high-quality
projects in the public utility sector and seek acquisition
opportunities, explore new energy businesses, and
continuously explore new profit growth points.

Safety management, constant vigilance

The company will continuously improve various safety
systems, clarify management objectives and responsibilities,
hold regular safety meetings, systematically carry out risk
classification and control, and conduct hazard identification
and remediation to ensure a manageable safety situation.

Establish a multi-level, comprehensive talent development
system

The company will launch a three-year talent construction
action plan, accelerate the enhancement of the company's
human resource allocation, introduce high-level management
talents with group control capabilities and international
business operation thinking, and explore various ways to
promote the growth of existing talents.

Accelerate the exit process of existing investment projects

The company will improve the exit mechanism for investment
projects for platform companies and equity funds, explore
various exit channels, reasonably grasp the timing of exits,
and enhance the profitability of investment businesses.

Reasonable control of the asset-liability ratio, further
enhancement of cash flow

The company will continue to focus on the “cash flow” and
“asset-liability ratio” red lines, arrange financial income and
expenditure reasonably, strengthen cash flow management,
effectively control the asset-liability ratio, and improve the
company’s operating efficiency and quality
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Enhance risk control capabilities, and maintain constant
vigilance in internal control management

The company will continuously strengthen internal control,
enhance risk management concepts, provide training to
employees on risk and internal control management, improve
internal supervision and inspection levels, and adhere to
effective evaluation of internal control management.

Potential risks

During the production and operation process, the Company
will actively take various measures to mitigate various
operational risks. However, the following risks and
uncertainties still exist in the actual production and operation
process:

Risk of unexpected fluctuation on nature gas price

The current pricing policy of urban gas enterprises generally
involves a cross-subsidy model where non-residential users
subsidize residential users. The terminal selling price of gas
Is determined by the local government pricing authority. Due
to the periodic adjustments made by the government pricing
authority, there may be a lag in price adjustments relative to
market changes. Moreover, the purchase price of gas is
significantly influenced by domestic supply and demand as
well as international market prices. If the procurement cost
increases due to a rise in gas purchase prices, the
Company’s operational performance may be significantly
affected, as the pricing flexibility between upstream and
downstream is limited.

The Company actively promotes the competent government
departments to improve the mechanism for linking prices
between upstream and downstream sectors, accelerating cost
transmission.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBEFRESH

Risk of changes to environmental protection policy

The environmental protection industry is heavily influenced by
policy-driven factors. In recent years, the government has
continuously intensified the implementation of environmental
policies and formulated urban pollution emission standards.
The government’s efforts to address environmental issues
have also imposed stricter requirements on the company's
environmental management. If there are changes in national
environmental policies in the future leading to adjustments in
technical standards related to the issuer’'s industry, it will
impose certain pressures on the issuer’'s production and
operation.

All subsidiary sewage treatment companies manage their
operations strictly according to local sewage discharge
standards to ensure standard-compliant discharge. Through
centralized procurement, further control over procurement
quality is exercised to reduce procurement costs. In addition,
all sewage treatment plants upgrade their sewage treatment
equipment on a regular basis and bring in new technologies
for sewage treatment process in order to improve their
capabilities of environmental improvement.

Risk of safety

Natural gas is a kind of flammable and explosive gaseous
fuel that is easy to cause explosion and fire accidents, posing
serious threats to safety of people and properties. Natural
gas pipelines are also vulnerable to extremely harsh
environments and sabotages, thereby resulting in leakage and
safety accidents. Meanwhile, aging issues with obsolete
pipeline networks in cities also became an increasingly
salient safety hazard. Safety accidents, once occurring, will
cause immeasurable losses to companies and also affect
reputation and corporate images of companies.

In order to avoid gas-related safety accidents, the Company
learned hard from other gas accidents and fully implemented
the main responsibility for work safety. The Company always
follows the guideline of “safety first, prevention foremost, and
comprehensive management”, strengthens supervision and
management of workplace safety and strictly carries out a
workplace safety management policy as part of job
description of its employees, all according to the national
workplace safety policy and standards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Risk of exchange rate fluctuations

The Company’s accounting currency is RMB and now has part
of funds raised from listing of H Shares and retained in USD.
Due to effects of changes in overall operation of the national
economy, national macroeconomic condition, monetary
policies and international environment, the RMB/USD
exchange rate fluctuations would pose a risk of exchange
loss.

The Company will keep close track of changes to domestic
and overseas exchange rate markets, and closely monitor
risks arising from exchange rate fluctuations to minimize
their effects on the Company’s assets.

Risk of changes in value of financial assets and investment
income

Fluctuations of financial market prices are closely connected
with values of financial assets held by the Company and will
affect the size and ability of monetization of the Company’s
financial assets. Meanwhile, the Company's investment
income mainly comes from affiliates such as Dazhong
Transportation and Shenzhen Capital Group, with
considerable effects on the Issuer’s profits. If the
macroeconomic condition and capital market are
unfavourable, it will affect the growth in the Company's
investment income, thereby adversely affecting the Company’s
profitability.

The Company will keep close track of progress of domestic
and overseas investment projects, prudently select investment
targets with a focus on principal security, and continuously
improve its investment management and risk control process
to create relatively robust investment income.
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BOARD REPORT
EFERE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business activities of the Group included piped gas
supply, wastewater treatment, infrastructure projects,
transportation services and financial services. For details, please
refer to the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report.

The breakdown of the Group’s revenue by operational segments is
as follows:

Public Utility Services AREERK
Piped gas supply EBERAME
Wastewater treatment VKR IR
Infrastructure projects NHERRHEIEE
Transportation services RBBRTS
Financial Services SRR
Financial leasing BMERE

Total #Et

Details of the principal business activities of major subsidiaries are
set out in note 23 to the financial statements of this annual report.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’'s
principal activities during the Reporting Period.

RESTRICTED ASSETS AS OF THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Please refer to cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits set
out in note 33 and borrowings set out in note 34.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group, the risks which may be
encountered, discussions on the future business development and
analysis of the Group using key financial performance indicators
are set out in the section headed "Management Discussions and
Analysis” of this annual report. For details of important matters
which had impacts on the Group, please refer to the section
headed “Important Matters” of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, purchases from the five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group, Shanghai
Gas, accounted for 64.55% and 49.46% (2022: 69.29% and 51.23%)
of the total purchases of the Group, respectively. Save as disclosed
above, none of Directors, their close associates, or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
issuers’ share capital] has any interest in the five largest suppliers
of the Group.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, overall sales from the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for 10.25% of the overall
sales of the Group.

Relationship with employees

The Group is of the view that employees are the most important
assets of the Group and attaches great importance to maintaining
good relationship with employees. The Group is committed to
provide our staff with a stable working environment and continues
to uphold the principles of impartiality, fairness and merit-based
employment, and constantly improves the criteria for personnel
selection and appointment. The Group has offered employees with
competitive remuneration package, which includes basic wages,
bonuses and other staff benefits. The Group also provides social
insurance and other benefits to employees, such as basic pension

insurance, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, housing and
personal accident insurance. Basic pension insurance, basic

medical insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds are
contributed by the Group and the employees at a certain proportion
in accordance with the relevant local requirements. The work injury
insurance and maternity insurance are generally paid by the Group.
The Group reviews the performance of its employees annually, the
results of which are applied in his or her annual salary review and
promotion appraisal. During the Reporting Period, the “Three-Year
Talent Development Action Plan” was formulated to strengthen
talent reserves and build a talent echelon. The Group also provides
on-the-job training to its employees from time to time. For details,
please refer to the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) Report of Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.
(EBRFZAREE(EE)RMHARAFR]), which will be published on
the website of Hong Kong Stock Exchange on March 28, 2024.
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Relationship with suppliers

With respect to the Group's piped gas construction business, the
Group outsources to independent third-party professional
contractors with requisite qualifications. The Group generally
selects third-party contractors from a list of qualified constructors
and has established long-term strategic relationship with certain
contractors. The contracting fees are individually negotiated and
project-specific, and in line with market standards. The Group
oversees the projects to ensure that the construction of the
pipelines is carried out in accordance with all the relevant
standards and regulations. The construction is also supervised by
third-party professional supervision companies engaged by the
Group, in addition to the Group's own on-site supervision
engineers.

The suppliers for piped gas business also include upstream gas
distributors. The Group's piped gas supplier in Shanghai is
Shanghai Gas. The Group’s piped gas supplier in Nantong Area is
CNPC, etc. In Shanghai, guidance procurement price of piped gas
is set by Shanghai Housing and Urban-Rural Development
Regulatory Commission. In Nantong Area, the Group's procurement
price of piped gas is negotiated with the upstream piped gas
supplier pursuant to the benchmark gateway station prices set by
NDRC. The Group will also purchase at the spot price.

The Group conducts the wastewater treatment and public
infrastructure projects business mainly through BT and BOT
contracts. The Group mainly engages third-party professional
designing companies and construction companies who act as
contractors during the construction phase of such projects. The
Group values its relationship with suppliers and has established
long-term relationship with several of its contractors in respect of
construction, repair and maintenance of the projects.

Relationship with customers

The Group is committed to provide safe and reliable services to our
customers. The Group is responsible for the repair and
maintenance services to customers for pipelines on their premises
and related accessories. The Group operates the service centre,
where end users can make payment or schedule repair and other
services. The Group’s safety and service department sets safety and
maintenance measures and monitors the implementation of such
measures. It has a maintenance schedule pursuant to which the
maintenance crew performs inspection and maintenance work on
the Group's pipeline network. The Group also engages third-party
contractors to perform certain regular pipeline inspection and
maintenance works and closely monitors the operations of such
contractors.
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The Group charges different retail prices for residential and
non-residential end users pursuant to the relevant regulations.
Retail prices for non-residential usage, such as by industrial and
commercial end users are generally higher than those for
residential usage. Local DRC and/or price bureau may adjust the
retail prices from time to time due to various reasons. For certain
non-residential users with a high consumption of piped gas, the
Group generally enter into individual supply agreements with them.

The Group conducts nature gas business and sewage treatment
business based on concession agreement signed with local
governments. The Group is entitled to operate the plants for a
concession period in exchange for service fees payable to the
Group by the relevant local governments. The fees received by the
Group during the concession periods are based on the treatment
volume and the unit price set forth in the relevant concession
agreements. The Group charges sewage treatment fee of basic
volume on a monthly basis, and it charges sewage treatment fee of
overloaded volume on an annual basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is subject to various PRC environmental laws and
regulations, including, but not limited to, the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC ({FBIERIZE(REE)), the Law of the PRC
on Appraising Environment Impact ({FEIRIEFZEFIE X)) and the
Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
((FREI7K5B587%)). The Group has adopted various measures to
promote environmental protection, reduce the emission of
greenhouse gas, noise and hazardous waste, improve the efficiency
of the use of raw materials and reduce the consumption of natural
resources. For details, please refer to the 2023 Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) Report of Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (EBRBAAEZE (£EB) RHBR AT,
which will be published on the website of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on March 28, 2024.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS OF SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure the adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations (particularly, those that have
significant impact on the Group, including but not limited to the
Company Law of the PRC, the Securities Law of the PRC, Code of
Corporate Governance for Listed Companies ({_ETRFAEZER))
issued by the CSRC, the Hong Kong Listing Rules (including the CG
Codel, and the listing rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’'s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rule s and regulations are brought to the attention
of relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to
time.
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To the best knowledge of the Company, it had complied with all
material aspects with relevant laws and regulations which have
significant impact on its business and operation during the year
ended December 31, 2023.

PROPERTIES, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the properties, plants and equipment of
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements of this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 19 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results and financial position for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the independent auditor’s report,
financial statements attached to this annual report with
accompanying notes.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.35
per ten Shares (including tax], amounting to RMB103,335,213.63 in
aggregate, from the Company’s retained distributable profit for the
year ended December 31, 2023.

The aforesaid dividend distribution proposed is subject to the
consideration and approval at the annual general meeting of the
Company ("AGM”) to be convened on June 18, 2024. If the
distribution proposal is approved at the AGM, it is expected that the
final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2023 will be paid
within 2 months after the AGM to the Shareholders [(i.e. on or
before August 16, 2024). Please refer to 2023 AGM circular of the
Company to be published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's
website for the details regarding the closure of the register of
members of the Company and declaration and payment of
dividends.

There was no arrangement under which a Shareholder had waived
or agreed to waive any dividends during the Reporting Period.
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TAX RELIEF

Pursuant to the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ({# % A R £ F1E
& A FT1§ 8L 5)), the Implementation Regulations of the PRC
Individual Income Tax Law ((FEE AR LB EAPTSHEE 5K
1)), the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation
to the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled
by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative) (Guo Shui Fa [2009]
No. 124) KEIRBRBERBERHE GEEREXH KB EFEEEM
% (A7) B (BB % [2009] 124 5%)), the Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation on the Questions Concerning the Levy
and Administration of Individual Income Tax After the Repeal of Guo
Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) (IR #i #5542
BRI E[1993]) 045 KX MFEEILRBBBEAMSRAER BN
HI)(EIFT K [2011] 348 5R)), other relevant laws and regulations and
other regulatory documents, the Company shall, as a withholding
agent, withhold and pay individual income tax for the individual
holders of H shares in respect of the dividend to be distributed to
them. However, the individual holders of H shares may be entitled
to certain tax preferential treatments pursuant to the tax treaties
between the PRC and the countries (regions] in which the individual
holders of H shares are domiciled and the tax arrangements
between Mainland China and Hong Kong (or Macau].

For individual holders of H shares in general, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf
of the individual holders of H shares in the distribution of the
dividend. However, the tax rates applicable to individual holders of
H shares overseas may vary depending on the tax treaties between
the PRC and the countries (regions] in which the individual holders
of H shares are domiciled, and the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax on behalf of the individual holders of H
shares in the distribution of the dividend accordingly.

For non-resident enterprise holders of H shares, i.e., any
shareholders who hold the Company's shares in the name of
non-individual shareholders, including but not limited to HKSCC
Nominee Limited, other nominees, trustees, or holders of H shares
registered in the name of other groups and organisations, the
Company will withhold and pay the enterprise income tax at the tax
rate of 10% for such holders of H shares pursuant to the Notice of
the State Administration of Taxation on the Issues Concerning
Withholding the Enterprises Income Tax on the Dividends Paid by
Chinese Resident Enterprises to H Share Holders Who Are
Overseas Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897)
(BRHEBERERTEEREEMRIN H BOFERE XIS
P BRI B X AT 1577 B B )R8 A0 3 ) (B 7% £1[2008] 8975%)).
Should the holders of H shares of the Company have any doubt in
relation to the aforesaid arrangements, they are recommended to
consult their tax advisors for relevant tax impact in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and other countries (regions) on the possession
and disposal of the H shares of the Company.
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The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims all liabilities
whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax treatment of the
individual holders of H shares and for any claims arising from any
delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax
treatment of the individual holders of H shares or any disputes
over the withholding mechanism or arrangements.

AGM and Closure of Register of Members of H Shares

The AGM will be held on June 18, 2023, while the notice of the
AGM will be published and dispatched to Shareholders of the
Company in the manner as stipulated on the Hong Kong Listing
Rules on April 26, 2023.

In order to determine the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
June 13, 2024 to June 18, 2024, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares will be registered. Only Shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on June 13, 2024 or their proxies or duly authorised
corporate representatives are entitled to attend the AGM. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all properly
completed transfer documents accompanied with relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H Share registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
June 12, 2024.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY

A summary of the financial information for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out in the section
headed “Five-year Financial Summary” of this annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
Reporting Period are set out in the section “Changes in Shares and
Information of Shareholders” of this annual report and in note 43
to the financial statements in this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the names, places of incorporation and issued/
registered share capital of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 23 to the financial statements in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities
of the Company.

CAPITAL RESERVE, SPECIAL RESERVE AND SURPLUS
RESERVE

Changes in capital reserve, special reserve and surplus reserve of
the Group and the Company during the Reporting Period are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and note
44 to the financial statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors in office during the Reporting Period and up to the
Latest Practicable Date are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Guoping (%5 B F) (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Liang Jiawei (R3238] (Chief Executive Officer]
Mr. Wang Baoping (X Z F)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shi Pingyang (52 %)
Mr. Jin Yongsheng (& 7k &)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Kaiguo (EFAE) (retired on June 28, 2023)
Mr. Jiang Guofang (Z B 7] (appointed on June 28, 2023)
Ms. Li Yingqi (ZE58%)

Mr. Liu Feng (21I£)

Mr. Yang Ping (%5 )
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The Supervisors in office during the Reporting Period and up to the
Latest Practicable Date are as follows:

Ms. Zhao Siyuan (B ) (Chairman)

Mr. Zhuang Jianhao (3£#2)&) (retired on June 28, 2023)
Ms. Zhao Fei (7] (resigned on February 16, 2023)
Ms. Li Ping (&%) (appointed on June 28, 2023)

Mr. Cao Jing (B %) (appointed on February 16, 2023

On February 17, 2023, the Company held the 20th meeting of its
11th session of Board of Directors, (1] deliberated and passed the
Proposal on Mr. Jin Bo Resigning as the Vice President and Board
Secretary of the Company, as Mr. Jin Bo, the vice president and
Board Secretary of the Company, resigned as the vice president
and Board secretary of the Company due to personal reasons; (2)
deliberated and passed the Proposal on Appointment of Mr. Jiang
Yun as a Vice President of the Company, appointing Mr. Jiang Yun
as a vice president of the Company for a period from the date of
the proposal being deliberated and passed by the Board meeting to
the expiration of the tenure of the 11th session of the Board of
Directors; and (3] deliberated and passed the Proposal on
Appointment of Ms. Zhao Fei as the Board Secretary of the
Company, appointing Ms. Zhao Fei as the Board secretary of the
Company for a period from the date of the proposal being
deliberated and passed by the Board meeting to the expiration of
the tenure of the 11th session of the Board of Director.

The Company issued the Announcement of Shanghai Dazhong
Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. on Resignation of Employee
Supervisor and Election of Employee Supervisor on February 17,
2023, indicating that the employee representative supervisor
Ms. Zhao Fei no longer served as a member of the 11th session of
Board of Supervisors of the Company due to work arrangement
adjustment. The Tst meeting of the 11th Workers™ Congress held by
the Company on February 16, 2023 democratically elected Mr. Cao
Jing as the employee representative supervisor of the 11th session
of the Board of Supervisors of the Company for a period from the
date of election at the Workers™ Congress to the expiration of the
tenure of the 11th session of Board of Supervisors.

On March 30, 2023, the Company held the 21st meeting of its 11th
session of Board of Directors, deliberated and passed the Proposal
on General Election of the Board of Directors of the Company,
nominating Mr. Yang Guoping, Mr. Liang Jiawei and Mr. Wang
Baoping as candidates for executive director of the 12th session of
Board of Directors; nominating Mr. Shi Pingyang and Mr. Jin
Yongsheng as candidates for nonexecutive director of the 12th
session of Board of Directors; and nominating Mr. Jiang Guofang,
Ms. Li Yingqi, Mr. Liu Feng and Mr. Yang Ping as candidates for
independent nonexecutive Director of the 12th session of Board of
Directors. The identities of the aforesaid candidates for directorship
need to be submitted to the 2022 annual general meeting of the
Company for deliberation.
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The Company held the 18th meeting of the 11th session of Board of
Supervisors on March 30, 2023, deliberated and passed the
Proposal on General Election of Board of Supervisors of the
Company, nominating Ms. Zhao Siyuan and Ms. Li Ping as
supervisor candidates for the 12th session of Board of Supervisors,
provided that the identities of the aforesaid supervisor candidates
need to be submitted to the 2022 general meeting of the Company
for deliberation.

On June 28, 2023, Mr. Wang Kaiguo, the independent nonexecutive
Director, ceased to serve as independent nonexecutive Director due
to expiration of his tenure, no longer serving as the chairman of
the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

The Company held the 2022 annual general meeting on June 28,
2023, deliberated and passed the Proposal on General Election of
the Board of Directors of the Company, agreeing to elect Mr. Yang
Guoping, Mr. Liang Jiawei and Mr. Wang Baoping as executive
Directors of the 12th session of Board of Directors; Mr. Shi
Pingyang and Mr. Jin Yongsheng as nonexecutive Directors of the
12th session of Board of Directors; and Mr. Jiang Guofang, Ms. Li
Yingqgi, Mr. Liu Feng and Mr. Yang Ping as independent
non-executive Directors of the 12th session of Board of Directors.

The Company held the 1st meeting of the 12th session of Board of
Directors on June 28, 2023, deliberated and approved the
appointment of Mr. Yang Guoping as the chairman of the 12th
session of Board of Directors for the same period as the tenure of
the 12th session of Board of Directors; and deliberated and
approved appointment of Mr. Liang Jiawei as president of the
Company, Mr. Jiang Yun as a vice president and CFO of the
Company, Ms. Zhao Fei as the Board Secretary and Mr. Cao Jing
as the authorized securities representative of the Company. The
tenures of the aforesaid individuals are the same as the tenure of
the 12th session of Board of Directors.

On June 28, 2023, Mr. Zhuang Jianhao, the Chairman of the Board
of Supervisors, ceased to serve as the Chairman of the Board of
Supervisors due to expiration of the tenure of the 11th session of
Board of Supervisors.

The Company held the 2022 annual general meeting on June 28,
2023, deliberated and passed the Proposal on General Election of
the Board of Supervisors of the Company, agreeing to elect
Ms. Zhao Siyuan and Ms. Li Ping as Supervisors.

The Company held the Tst meeting of the 12th session of Board of
Supervisors on June 28, 2023, deliberated and approved the
appointment of Ms. Zhao Siyuan as the chairman of the 12th
session of Board of Supervisors for the same period as the tenure
of the 12th session of Board of Supervisors.
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Further details of the Directors and Supervisors are set forth in the
section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and the senior
management of the Company are set out in the section “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN A
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors and Supervisors
had interests in any business apart from the Group’'s businesses
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS" INTERESTS IN
CONTRACT, TRANSACTIONS OR ARRANGEMENTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting
Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors had any material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract, transactions
or arrangements of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or Supervisor or an entity connected
with a Director or Supervisor has a material interests was entered
into or subsisted during the Reporting Period.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Board Report —
Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions —
Continuing Connected Transactions — 3. Title transfer agreements
and financial leasing agreements signed on 14 November 2022" of
this annual report, during the Reporting Period, no contracts,
transactions or arrangements of significance were entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Reporting Period, no rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company were granted to any Directors and Supervisors or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement which enabled the Directors or Supervisors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company had purchased liability
insurance cover for certain legal actions brought against the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management. Save as the
aforementioned, the Company did not have any arrangement with a
term providing for indemnity against Lliability incurred by the
Directors and the Supervisors during their tenure.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
sufficient public float as required by the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
being the date of the Latest Practicable Date.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or applicable laws of the PRC where the Company is
established.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group paid a charitable
donation of RMB250,000.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Below is the information required to be disclosed in compliance
with Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Provision of Cylinder LPG Transportation Services
disclosed on December 28, 2023

On December 28, 2023, Shanghai Gas Chongming engaged
Dazhong Logistics Delivery (a subsidiary of the Company] to
provide the Cylinder LPG Transportation Services for multiple
times, pursuant to which Shanghai Gas Chongming entrusts
Dazhong Logistics Delivery to provide services for
transporting, completion of distribution, connection and
installation and safety check for its cylinder LPG to the
vicinities of Chongming Island, Hengsha Island and Changxing
Island in Chongming District, Shanghai, the PRC (specific
areas subject to further determination by both parties), while
Shanghai Gas Chongming shall pay service fee to Dazhong
Logistics Delivery.

Dazhong Logistics Delivery is a subsidiary of the Company.
Shanghai Gas is a substantial shareholder of Shanghai
Dazhong Gas, a subsidiary of the Company and therefore is a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1)
of the Listing Rules. Shanghai Gas Chongming is wholly
owned by Shanghai Gas. Therefore, Shanghai Gas Chongming
is a connected person of the Company by virtue of being an
associate of Shanghai Gas. According to the Listing Rules, the
Cylinder LPG Transportation Services and transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute connected transactions of
the Company. According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules,
if a series of transactions all take place or are completed
within the same 12-month period or relevant transactions are
connected with each other, such transactions shall be
calculated on an aggregate basis and treated as a single
transaction. As the Group has conducted relevant
transactions with Shanghai Gas Chongming in the past twelve
months, such transactions shall be calculated on an
aggregate basis. As the highest applicable percentage ratio in
respect of the Cylinder LPG Transportation Services and
transactions contemplated thereunder is higher than 0.1% but
less than 5%, the Cylinder LPG Transportation Services and
transactions contemplated thereunder is subject to the
announcement requirement but are exempted from the
circular and independent shareholder’s approval requirement
under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated December 28, 2023.
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Domestic Factoring Business Contract dated December
14, 2023

On December 14, 2023, Dazhong Factoring (a subsidiary of
the Company) entered into a Domestic Factoring Business
Contract with Dazhong Wanxiang, pursuant to which Dazhong
Factoring has agreed to provide factoring financing to
Dazhong Wanxiang and Dazhong Wanxiang has agreed to
transfer its accounts receivable in Master Contracts to
Dazhong Factoring, while Dazhong Factoring will conduct
factoring service of accounts receivable with rights of
recourse for Dazhong Wanxiang.

Dazhong Factoring is a subsidiary of the Company. Dazhong
Business Management is a Substantial Shareholder of the
Company and therefore is a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Dazhong Wanxiang is a subsidiary of Dazhong Business
Management. Therefore, Dazhong Wanxiang is a connected
person of the Company by virtue of being an associate of
Dazhong Business Management. According to the Listing
Rules, the Domestic Factoring Business Contract and
transaction contemplated thereunder constitute a connected
transaction of the Company. According to Rule 14A.81 of the
Listing Rules, if a series of transactions are all entered into
or completed within the same 12-month period or are
otherwise related such transactions shall be calculated on an
aggregated basis and treated as a single transaction. As the
Group conducted relevant transactions with Dazhong
Wanxiang within the past twelve months, such transactions
shall be calculated on an aggregated basis and as the
highest applicable percentage calculated on an aggregated
basis exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%, the Domestic
Factoring Business Contract and transaction contemplated
thereunder are subject to the announcement requirement but
are exempted from the circular and independent
shareholder’s approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated December 14, 2023.
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Provision of cylinder transportation services disclosed
on August 29, 2023

On August 29, 2023, Shanghai Gas Chongming engaged
Dazhong Run (a subsidiary of the Company] to provide
cylinder transportation services for several times, pursuant to
which Shanghai Gas Chongming entrusts Dazhong Run to
provide services for transporting, completion of distribution,
connection and installation and safety check for its bottled
LPG to the vicinities of Chongming Island, Hengsha Island and
Changxing Island in Chongming District, Shanghai, the PRC
(specific areas subject to further determination by both
parties), while Shanghai Gas Chongming shall pay service fee
to Dazhong Run.

Dazhong Run is a subsidiary of the Company. Shanghai Gas is
a substantial shareholder of Shanghai Dazhong Gas, a
subsidiary of the Company and therefore is a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1) of the
Listing Rules. Shanghai Gas Chongming is wholly owned by
Shanghai Gas. Therefore, Shanghai Gas Chongming is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being an
associate of Shanghai Gas. According to the Listing Rules,
cylinder transportation services and transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute connected transactions of
the Company. According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules,
if a series of transactions all take place or are completed
within the same 12-month period or relevant transactions are
connected with each other, such transactions shall be
calculated on an aggregate basis and treated as a single
transaction. As the Group has conduct relevant transactions
with Shanghai Gas Chongming in the past twelve months,
such transactions shall be calculated on an aggregate basis.
As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
cylinder transportation service and transactions contemplated
thereunder is higher than 0.1% but less than 5%, the cylinder
transportation services and transactions contemplated
thereunder is subject to the announcement requirement but
are exempted from the circular and independent
shareholder’s approval requirement under chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated August 29, 2023.
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Domestic Factoring Business Contract dated on May
16, 2023

On May 16, 2023, Dazhong Factoring (a subsidiary of the
Company) entered into a Domestic Factoring Business
Contract with Dazhong Wanxiang, pursuant to which Dazhong
Factoring has agreed to provide factoring financing to
Dazhong Wanxiang and Dazhong Wanxiang has agreed to
transfer its accounts receivable in Master Contracts to
Dazhong Factoring, while Dazhong Factoring will conduct
factoring service of accounts receivable with rights of
recourse for Dazhong Wanxiang.

Dazhong Factoring is a subsidiary of the Company. Dazhong
Business Management is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Dazhong Wanxiang is a subsidiary of Dazhong
Business Management. Therefore, Dazhong Wanxiang is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being an
associate of Dazhong Business Management. According to the
Listing Rules, the Domestic Factoring Business Contract and
transaction contemplated thereunder constitute a connected
transaction of the Company. According to Rule 14A.81 of the
Listing Rules, if a series of transactions are all entered into
or completed within the same 12-month period or are
otherwise related such transactions shall be calculated on an
aggregated basis and treated as a single transaction. As the
Group conducted relevant transactions with Dazhong
Wanxiang within the past twelve months, such transactions
shall be calculated on an aggregated basis and as the
highest applicable percentage calculated on an aggregated
basis exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%, the Domestic
Factoring Business Contract and transaction contemplated
thereunder are subject to the announcement requirement but
are exempted from the circular and independent
shareholder’s approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated May 16, 2023.
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Provision of cylinder transportation services disclosed
on April 28, 2023

On April 28, 2023, Shanghai Gas Chongming engaged
Dazhong Run (a subsidiary of the Company] to provide
cylinder transportation services for several times, pursuant to
which Shanghai Gas Chongming entrusts Dazhong Run to
provide services for transporting, completion of distribution,
connection and installation and safety check for its bottled
LPG to the vicinities of Chongming Island, Hengsha Island and
Changxing Island in Chongming District, Shanghai, the PRC
(specific areas subject to further determination by both
parties), while Shanghai Gas Chongming shall pay service fee
to Dazhong Run.

Dazhong Run is a subsidiary of the Company. Shanghai Gas is
a substantial shareholder of Shanghai Dazhong Gas, a
subsidiary of the Company and therefore is a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1) of the
Listing Rules. Shanghai Gas Chongming is wholly owned by
Shanghai Gas. Therefore, Shanghai Gas Chongming is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being an
associate of Shanghai Gas. According to the Listing Rules,
cylinder transportation services and transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute connected transactions of
the Company. According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules,
if a series of transactions all take place or are completed
within the same 12-month period or relevant transactions are
connected with each other, such transactions shall be
calculated on an aggregate basis and treated as a single
transaction. As the Group has conduct relevant transactions
with Shanghai Gas Chongming in the past twelve months,
such transactions shall be calculated on an aggregate basis.
As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
cylinder transportation service and transactions contemplated
thereunder is higher than 0.1% but less than 5%, the cylinder
transportation services and transactions contemplated
thereunder is subject to the announcement requirement but
are exempted from the circular and independent
shareholder’s approval requirement under chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated April 28, 2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Cylinder LPG Uniform Delivery and Safety Service
Contract entered on December 28, 2023

On December 28, 2023, Shanghai Gas Chongming and
Dazhong Logistics Delivery (a subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the Cylinder LPG Uniform Delivery and Safety
Service Contract, pursuant to which, Shanghai Gas
Chongming entrusts Dazhong Logistics Delivery to provide
uniform transportation service by automobiles for its cylinder
LPG in the region of Shanghai, the PRC, while Shanghai Gas
Chongming shall pay service fees to Dazhong Logistics
Delivery. The expected annual total transaction amount under
the Cylinder LPG Uniform Delivery and Safety Service
Contract by Shanghai Gas Chongming and Dazhong Logistics
Delivery will not exceed RMB25 million. The Cylinder LPG
Uniform Delivery and Safety Service Contract shall take effect
immediately after signing, with the validity period from
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024. Since January 2023,
the total transaction amount is RMB3.0311 million.

Dazhong Logistics Delivery is a subsidiary of the Company.
Shanghai Gas is a substantial shareholder of Shanghai
Dazhong Gas, a subsidiary of the Company and therefore is a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1)
of the Listing Rules. Shanghai Gas Chongming is wholly
owned by Shanghai Gas. Therefore, Shanghai Gas Chongming
is a connected person of the Company by virtue of being an
associate of Shanghai Gas. According t o the Listing Rules,
the Cylinder LPG Uniform Delivery and Safety Service
Contract and transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company. As the
highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the annual
cap is higher than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Cylinder LPG
Uniform Delivery and Safety Service Contract and
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to the
requirements of reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements,
independent shareholder’s approval requirement
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

but are exempted from the circular and
under
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Materials Procurement Contract entered on 30 March
2023

On 30 March 2023, Shanghai Dazhong Gas, a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Materials Procurement Contract with Shanghai Gas Operation
Service Company, pursuant to which, Shanghai Dazhong Gas
will procure water heaters, gas appliances, range hoods, gas
cookers, alarms and accessories, dishwashers, water
purifiers and filters, clothes dryers, heating and cleaning
services for heating from Shanghai Gas Operation Service
Company, and Shanghai Dazhong Gas will pay the selling
prices of the goods and service fees to Shanghai Gas
Operation Service Company. The maximum annual cap under
the Materials Procurement Contract for the year ended
31 December 2023 is RMB12,000,000. The Materials
Procurement Contract shall be effective upon execution. The
effective period of the contract was from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2023. During 2023, Shanghai Dazhong Gas
purchased water heaters, gas cookers, gas appliances, range
hoods and other materials from Shanghai Gas Operation
Service Company, and a total purchase price of RMB7.4348
million was payable.

Shanghai Gas holds 50% of the equity interests in Shanghai
Dazhong Gas and is a substantial shareholder of Shanghai
Dazhong Gas. Accordingly, Shanghai Gas is connected person
of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing
Rules. Shanghai Gas Operation Service Company is
wholly-owned by Shanghai Gas. Therefore, Shanghai Gas
Operation Service Company is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Shanghai Gas, and
the transactions contemplated under the Materials
Procurement Contract constitutes continuing connected
transactions of our Group.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined under
the Listing Rules] in respect of the Annual Cap is higher than
0.1% and less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under
the Materials Procurement Contract and the Annual Cap are
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements, but are exempted from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Title transfer agreements and financial leasing
agreements signed on 14 November 2022

On November 14, 2022, Dazhong Financial Leasing, being a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
title transfer agreement and a financial leasing agreement
with Dazhong Business Management, Shanghai Yixiang and
Dazhong Wanxiang consecutively. The assets were transferred
from Dazhong Business Management, Shanghai Yixiang and
Dazhong Wanxiang to Dazhong Financial Leasing. Meanwhile,
the assets should be leased back to Dazhong Business
Management, Shanghai Yixiang and Dazhong Wanxiang, who
were obligable to pay rent. According to the title transfer
agreement, the transferor agrees to sell and the transferee
agrees to purchase the assets at a consideration of
RMB65,000,000, as determined by the contractors after
consultation with reference to the value of the assets, which
is approximately valued at RMB88,474,790.34. According to the
financial leasing contract, the assets shall be leaseback to
the Lessee during the lease term at the total rental amount
of RMBé&9, 905,564.76, which shall be paid by the Lessee in
cash in twelve quarterly instalments to Lessor. The maximum
annual cap for the Leaseback under the Leaseback
Agreement is RMB24,666,854.92 (comprises an annual rent of
RMB23,301,854.92 and an one-off handling charge of
RMB1,365,000 for the first year payable by the Lessees),
which is determined based on the annual rent payable by the
Lessees to the Lessor pursuant to the Leaseback Agreement.
The term of the agreement is 36 months, commencing from
the date of payment of the Consideration by Lessor. Since
January 2023, the total transaction amount is
RMB23,301,854.92.
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Dazhong Financial Leasing is a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Dazhong Business Management is the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Shanghai Yixiang and
Dazhong Wanxiang is the subsidiary of our substantial
Shareholder, Dazhong Business Management. Therefore,
Shanghai Yixiang and Dazhong Wanxiang are associates to
Dazhong Business Management and thus are regarded as the
connected parties of the Company. The title transfer
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Since the highest applicable
percentage ratio in respect of the title transfer is more than
0.1% but less than 5%, the title transfer is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The leaseback also constitutes a continuing connected
transaction for the Company under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules. As all applicable percentage ratios [other than the
profit margin) in respect of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but
are less than 5%, the leaseback is only subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements,
but is exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules.

Sale and leaseback of asset agreements signed in
2021

On June 18, 2021, Dazhong Financial Leasing (a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company] entered into a title transfer
agreement and a financial leasing agreement with Dazhong
Business Management, Shanghai Dazhong Xingguang,
Dazhong Wanxiang and Shanghai Yixiang. The assets were
transferred from Dazhong Business Management, Shanghai
Dazhong Xingguang, Dazhong Wanxiang and Shanghai Yixiang
to Dazhong Financial Leasing at the price of RMB145,000,000.
Meanwhile, the assets should be leased back to Dazhong
Business Management, Shanghai Dazhong Xingguang,
Dazhong Wanxiang, and Shanghai Yixiang which are also
obliged to the total rent payment and service charges of
RMB158,988,183. The term of tenancy is 36 months. The
maximum annual cap for the Leaseback under the Leaseback
Agreement is RMB55,026,061 (comprises an annual rent of
RMB51,981,061 and an one-off handling charge of
RMB3,045,000 for the first year payable by the Lessees],
which is determined based on the annual rent payable by the
Lessees to the Lessor pursuant to the Leaseback Agreement.
The term of the agreement is 36 months, commencing from
the date of payment of the Consideration by Lessor. Since
January 2023, the total transaction amount is
RMB51,981,061.
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Dazhong Financial Leasing is a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Dazhong Business Management is the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Shanghai Dazhong
Xingguang, Dazhong Wanxiang and Shanghai Yixiang are the
subsidiaries of our substantial Shareholder, Dazhong
Business Management. Therefore, as the associates of
Dazhong Business Management, Shanghai Dazhong
Xingguang, Shanghai Dazhong Wanxiang and Shanghai Yixiang
are the connected persons of the Company.

The title transfer constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Since the
highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the title
transfer is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the title
transfer is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements, but is exempt from the independent
shareholders” approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The leaseback also constitutes a continuing connected
transaction for the Company under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules. Since the highest applicable percentage ratio in
respect of the annual caps is more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the leaseback is subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements, but is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Loan cross-guarantee agreement signed in 2020

On March 30, 2020, the Company entered into a loan cross
guarantee agreement with Dazhong Business Management,
based on which the two parties would provide each other with
cross guarantee worth accumulatively up to RMB500 million
per year, i.e. the Company would provide Dazhong Business
Management with guarantee worth accumulatively up to
RMB500 million per year, and Dazhong Business
Management would provide the Company with guarantee
worth accumulatively up to RMB500 million per year,
agreeing on the cross guarantee provided by the two parties
for their respective financial loans or financing ("Cross
Guarantee”). The Company and Dazhong Business
Management would, according to the loan cross-guarantee
agreement as well as the two parties’ requirements, sign
additional guarantee contracts with lending banks or financial
institutions. The loan cross-guarantee agreement took effect
on June 22, 2020, with a term of 36 months. The proposed
annual cap under the loan cross-guarantee agreement for the
years from June 22, 2020 to June 21, 2021, from June 22,
2021 to June 21, 2022, and from June 22, 2022 to June 21,
2023 ("Proposed Annual Cap under the Loan Cross-guarantee
Agreement”) is RMB500 million, respectively. Since January
2023, the aggregate guaranteed amounts is Nil.
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The scope of the Cross Guarantee between the Company and
Dazhong Business Management under the loan cross
guarantee agreement covers all debts under the loan
contracts and guarantee contracts to be signed with banks or
financial institutions, including but not limited to: principal,
interest, penalty (compound] interest, liquidated damages,
indemnity and various incidental expenses. In order to protect
the interests of both parties, the Company and Dazhong
Business Management agreed to provide counter guarantee
and assume the joint and several guarantee liability of the
guarantor. When appropriate, the counter-guarantee
agreement will be signed in addition. The use of loans shall
conform to the national industry policies, and the business
scope permitted in the business license.

Dazhong Business Management is the substantial
shareholder of the Company, and both the chairman of the
Board of Directors Mr. Yang Guoping and the Executive
Director of the Company Mr. Liang Jiawei are Directors of
Dazhong Business Management. Therefore Dazhong Business
Management is the connected person of the Company.

The loan cross-guarantee agreement and the to-be-executed
transactions thereunder (including the Proposed Annual Cap
under the Loan Cross-guarantee Agreement) constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules. Since the highest applicable
percentage ratio in respect of the loan cross-guarantee
agreement and the to-be-executed transactions thereunder
(including the Proposed Annual Cap under the Loan Cross-
guarantee Agreement) is more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the loan cross-guarantee agreement and the to-be-executed
transactions thereunder (including the Proposed Annual Cap
under the Loan Cross-quarantee Agreement) are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements, but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Master gas purchase agreements with Shanghai Gas
Group signed in 2015

During 2023, Shanghai Dazhong Gas and other subsidiaries
purchased natural gas from Shanghai Gas in its ordinary
course of business at the total consideration of RMB3,078.53
million.
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On December 16, 2015, Shanghai Dazhong Gas entered into a
framework gas purchase agreement [(the “Framework
Agreement”) with Shanghai Gas Group in connection with the
purchase of piped gas, pursuant to which the parties
confirmed and agreed on the expected annual supply volume
of piped gas and other volume based parameters each year.
The Framework Agreement has a term of 20 years from
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2033.

The annual cap for the purchase of natural gas by the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2023 is RMB4,000 million.
According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the price
of the natural gas purchased by the Group from Shanghai Gas
is fixed by the relevant local competent authorities. As
Shanghai Gas Group is a connected person of the Company,
and Shanghai Gas is spun off from Shanghai Gas Group to
undertake natural gas business, the purchase of the natural
gas by Shanghai Dazhong Gas from Shanghai Gas constitutes
continuing connected transactions of the Group upon Listing.

The above continuing connected transactions had followed the
policies and guidelines when determining the prices and
terms of the transactions conducted for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions as described above and
confirmed that, during the Reporting Period, such
transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has sent a letter to the Board
and confirmed, with respect to the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions:

(i) nothing has come to its attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company's
board of directors;
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(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to its attention
that causes the auditor to believe that the transactions
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to its attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
its attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value in
respect of each of the disclosed continuing connected
transactions.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into certain
transactions with parties regarded as “related parties” under the
applicable accounting standards. Details of the related party
transactions entered into by the Group during the Reporting Period
are disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements. Save as
disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions”™ in this annual report, the
related party transactions disclosed in note 47 are not “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case
may be) in Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, or they
were exempt from reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

PERFORMANCE OF NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

To ensure that Dazhong Business Management does not compete
with the Company, Dazhong Business Management entered into a
non-competition agreement with the Company on November 2,
2016 ("Non-competition Agreement”) which took effect upon listing.
Details of the Non-competition Agreement are set out in the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders — Non-competition
Agreement” of the prospectus of the Company dated November 23,
2016.
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Dazhong Business Management had provided the Company with a
written confirmation to confirm that, as of December 31, 2023, it
had complied with the undertakings under the Non-competition
Agreement. The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors] have reviewed the status of compliance with the
undertakings under the Non- competition Agreement by Dazhong
Business Management and have confirmed that, as far as they can
ascertain, Dazhong Business Management has complied with the
undertakings thereunder throughout the period.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not entered into any
equity-linked agreements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

For details regarding subsequent events please refer to note 52 of
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH CG CODE

The Company has adopted the CG Code set out in Appendix C1 to
the Hong Kong Listing Rules upon Listing. The Board is of the view
that the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code throughout the Reporting Period.

Further information on the corporate governance practices of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Specific enquiries have been made to all Directors and Supervisors
and Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

The Company has also adopted the Securities Dealing Code
governing securities transactions by the employees of the Company
who may possess or have access to unpublished inside information
in relation to dealing securities with terms no less favourable than
the Model Code. The Company was not aware of any matters in
relation to breaches of the Securities Dealing Code by any
employee of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by BDO.

BDO will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointing BDO
as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM. The Company has not changed its auditor in the past three
years.

By order of the Board

Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.
Chairman of the Board

Yang Guoping

March 28, 2024
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FORMULATION, IMPLEMENTATION OR
ADJUSTMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND POLICY

1. Formulation of cash dividend policy

The Company actively returns benefits to investors by
scientific, sustainable and stable dividend decision —
making and supervision mechanism. The Company has
formulated clear cash dividend policy and its
implementation and adjustment mechanism in the
Company's Article of Association, based on the Listed
Companies Regulatory Guidance No.3 — Cash Dividends
Distribution of Listed Companies (Notice of CSRC [2013]
No.43) (LT RAREERSIE 3 H—LWRARRENAL)).

2. Implementation of cash dividend policy

During the Reporting Period, the Company implemented
the profit distribution plan for 2022 according to the
profit distribution policy: based on the Company’s total
share capital of 2,952,434,675 shares before the
implementation of this profit distribution plan, cash
dividend of RMBO0.03 (tax inclusive) would be distributed
for each share, amounting to a total cash bonus
distribution of RMB88,573,040.25. Such profit
distribution policy had been considered and passed at
the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company held
on June 28, 2023 and such profit distribution had been
completed on August 18, 2023. The profit distribution
complied with the Articles of Association and relevant
requirements.

3. Adjustment of cash dividend policy during the
Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not
adjust the cash dividend policy.

PERFORMANCE OF UNDERTAKINGS

Undertakings of the de facto controller of the
Company, shareholders, related parties, acquirer and
the Company during or subsisting to the Reporting
Period applicable

During the Reporting Period, there were no undertakings of
the de facto controller, shareholders, related parties, acquirer
and the Company during reporting period or subsisting to the
Reporting Period applicable.
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IMPORTANT MATTERS
ERER

I1l. MAJOR CONTRACTS AND PERFORMANCE =. EXERAREBITER
() Guarantees (=) ERER
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB B BE:ARK
Guarantees given by the Company externally (excluding those provided to subsidiaries)
LAUMERER (FAEBTLINER
Commencement

Relationship between date of guarantee Guarantee

guarantor and listed Guaranteed (Agreement Commencement  Expiry date of ~ Type of Guarantee Guarantee is Guarantee Is there a counter for related
Guarantor company Guarantee amount execution date)  date of g g g fully fulfilled  overdue overdue amount  guarantee parties Relationship

BRAELHAF BRELAH BRRACE RERBES
ERE HEE BERA EREE (BHEER) HRERA ERIAR EREE  Efiz ERETES RERAONSE RAFERER ER BEBE
Total quarantee incurred during the Reporting Period [excluding those provided to subsidiaries) 0
RERNERSERAS (TREHFARNER
Total balance of guarantee as at the end of the Reporting Period (A] [excluding those provided 0

to subsidiaries|
BEMRERBEA N (TREHTRARNNER
Guarantees provided by the Company to subsidiaries
AARATRARNHTARNERER
Total quarantee amount to subsidiaries during the Reporting Period 1,925,970,509.95
REBRETLARRSLRA
Total balance of guarantee to subsidiaries as at the end of the Reporting Period (B) 1,015,872,819.02
BEHRETLAZRBEAMB)
Total quarantees (including those provided to subsidiaries) provided by the Company
AAREREERER (REHTRANER

Total guarantee amount [A+B) 1,015,872,819.02
ERERE (M)
Total amount as a percentage of the net asset value of the Company (%) 12.29%
BREFELAFEEMLA
In which:
Ea:
Guarantee amount provided to Shareholders, parties which have de facto control and their related parties (C) 0
ARR  ERESAREERHREEROLEC
Debt guarantee amount provided directly or indirectly to parties with gearing ratio exceeding 70% (D] 0
ERIBRAEEAREBRIMORERYRRENELZREED)
Total guarantee amount in excess of 50% of net asset value (E) 0
EREERETAENHBANLEE
Total amount of the above three items (C+D+E) 0
LR=BEREFA (C404E)
Statement on the contingent joint liability in connection with unexpired guarantees /
RABERIEAZSRFEEEHS
Details of guarantees provided by the Company /

ERERHA

IV. ENTRUSTING OTHERS TO MANAGE CASH ASSETS

1. Entrusted wealth management
(1]

Overall entrusted wealth management

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB

Type Source of funds

Rl

. B AETHRERETHEOE

R
~

4

1. ZETXEBER

(1] ZiTEHERIEL
B BE:ARK
Outstanding Overdue
Amount balance amount
3B HA SR Uk )
BAEE KREIHE ot}

Banking WM products
RITIEMER
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IMPORTANT MATTERS
EEER

(2] Individual entrusted wealth management (2) BEIEZTEIIEL
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB B ¥E: AR
Whether
there is any
entrusted
wealth
Whether  management
Amount EWM EWM Method of Annual rate of  Actual return Actual through  plan in the
Trustee Type of EWM of EWM start date expiry date  Source of funds  remuneration return lor loss recovery legal future
E3i3:00) ZREH ERkE ERUE REEB ARRER
EEA EREHRY ZEENER BRAM RLEAH EERE HWREA FlgiEz FEEX FR HERA  EREHGE
Bank of Shanghai Banking WM 100,000,000.00 February 6, March 30, Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.0%=2.6% 25920392 Yes Yes Yes
products 2023 2023
E: K RTRBER 2023/2/6 2023/3/30 BEFAL miaEE I = &
Rural Commercial Bank ~ Banking WM 100,000,000.00 June 19, 2023  December 20, Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.5%-3.1% 1,260,835.31 Yes Yes Yes
products 2023
R BITENER w3019 WBNAN EFEE mEERE = = =
Bank of China Banking WM 30,000,000.00 May 29, 2023 December 1,  Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.99% 450,737.22  Yes Yes Yes
products 2023
PERIT ROEHER 0230529 20B/12 AEEE m5EE = = =
Bank of China Banking WM 30,000,000.00 August 14, December 27,  Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.60% 283,605.79  Yes Yes Yes
products 2023 2023
PERT RTRBER 2023/8/14 031221 EBEE miaEE I = &
Industrial Bank Banking WM 10,000,000.00 September December 27, Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.46% 62,624.66  Yes Yes Yes
products 25, 2023 2023
2ES 5 BITEHNER w2306/5 w2 EEEE mEERE = = =
Rural Commercial Bank ~ Banking WM 30,000,000.00 April 26, June 29, Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.71%=3.04% 136,687.80  Yes Yes Yes
products 2023 2023
R ROEHER 0230626 2023/6/29 AEEE m5EE = = =
Rural Commercial Bank ~ Banking WM 90,000,000.00 2023/4/26 December 21, Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.99%-3.27% 1,009,496.65  Yes Yes Yes
products 2023
BAET RTRBER 2023/4/26 03120 EBEE miaEE I = &
Shanghai Pudong Banking WM 70,000,000.00 May 4, 2023 June 5, 2023 Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.80% 168,777.78  Yes Yes Yes
Development Bank products
BEHS BITEHNER 2023/5/4 2023/6/5 AEAS mEER = = &
China Minsheng Bank ~ Banking WM 20,000,000.00 October 9, November 14, Proprietary funds ~ Market pricing 2.0%-2.9% 46,731.27 Yes Yes Yes
products 2023 2023
RERM ROEHER w3109 WBME EFES m5EE = 2 =
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ERELIWS

BASIC INFORMATION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As a dual-listed Company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Company has remained in
strict compliance with the Articles of Association, relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and listing rules of Shanghai Stock
Exchange during the Reporting Period. The Company has also
complied with the Hong Kong Listing Rules during the Reporting
Period. The Company is committed to rigorous corporate
governance and risk management.

Corporate governance

During the Reporting Period, the Company strictly followed
the Company Law, Securities Law, Code of Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies and relevant laws and
regulations promulgated by the CSRC, the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as well as the
requirements under the Articles of Association of the
Company. The corporate governance structure was constantly
optimized to enhance operational capabilities, and the internal
control mechanism was improved to push forward the
standardisation of the Company. Currently, the Company has
formed a governance mechanism with clear authorities and
responsibilities and checks and balances as well as an
effective internal control mechanism in compliance with the
requirements of listed companies, and is operated strictly in
accordance with the legislation.

The condition of the Company's corporate governance is as
follows:

1. Shareholders and general meeting: The Shareholders of
the Company shall have the legal rights stipulated in
the laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association; in accordance with the relevant stipulations
and requirements under the listing rules of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, relevant regulation under the
Main Board Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Articles of Association, the Company holds and
convenes general meetings and ensures they,
particularly minority shareholders, enjoy equal status
and rights and assume corresponding obligations.
During the Reporting Period, one annual general
meeting, in compliance with the relevant requirements
under the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles of
Association, were held by the Company through the
combined way of on-site and video conference. The
Company hired practising solicitors to attend general
meeting to confirm and witness the convening
procedures, resolutions and the identity of attendants,
so as to ensure the resolutions were lawful and valid.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors and the Board: The Board of the Company
adheres to the sustainable development strategy,
strictly follow the rules and regulations of CSRC and
stock exchange to conduct works, and effectively
promote the standardised operation and scientific
decision-making of the Board. In 2022, the number of
independent non- executive Directors stood at 4 with the
total number of Directors unchanged (i.e. 9 directors),
which provides supports to scientific and compliant
decision-making of the Company. The corporate
governance structure is well-established, the Board, the
Board of Supervisors and management of the Company
are comprehensive and diversified. There are Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee and Strategic Development
Committee under the Board. The Company implements
investment decision, internal control and supervision,
appointment and dismissal of staff and performance
evaluation with a clear division of rights and
responsibilities, legal and compliance management.
During the Reporting Period, 7 Board meetings, 7 Audit
Committee meetings, 1 Nomination Committee meeting,
1 Remuneration and Appraisal Committee meeting and
1 Strategic Development Committee meeting, in
compliance with the relevant requirements under the
Company Law of the PRC and the Articles of
Association, were held by the Company

Supervisors and the Board of Supervisors: The
Company's Board of Supervisors consists of 3
Supervisors, and one of them is the employee
Supervisor who is elected at the meeting of
representatives of employees of the Company. The
members of the Board of Supervisors earnestly perform
their duties with the spirit of being responsible to all
Shareholders, and supervise the legality and
compliance of the Company’s financial position and
performance of Directors and senior management.
During the Reporting Period, 6 Board of Supervisors
meetings, in compliance with the relevant requirements
under the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles of
Association, were held by the Company.
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Information Disclosure and Transparency: In accordance
with the requirements of the Administrative Measures
for the Disclosure of Information of Listed Companies
and the Management System for Information Disclosure,
the secretary to the Board is responsible for the
information disclosure and investor relationship
management. The Company strictly complies with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations at both
listing places to fulfil the responsibilities of disclosure
in a truthful, precise and complete manner, so as to
ensure the timeliness and consistency of information
disclosure at both listing places. The Company regularly
discloses its financial data to investors and the
stake-holding parties; the complete disclosure which
contains some information regarding Board
performance, corporate governance, financial status etc.
needs to go through the shareholders’ meeting's review
of Board report, Supervisory Board report, financial
report, independent Directors report and Audit
Committee report etc.

Investor Relations and Stakeholders: The Company
always attaches importance to investor relationship
management. Through investor hotlines, E-interaction of
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, reception of visits and
onsite investigation by personal investors and
institutional investors, it keeps communication with
investors. During the Reporting Period, the Company
held the 2022 annual and 2023 first quarter
Performance Roadshow, Collective Reception Day for
Listed Companies in Shanghai and interim Performance
Roadshow, engaging in thorough communication with
investors through such online channels. For seven
consecutive years, the company has publicly disclosed
the “Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) Report”
and has disclosed social responsibility reports for
fourteen consecutive years. During the Reporting
Period, while maintaining stable and sustainable
development, the company actively reported back to
investors and successfully completed the profit
distribution for the year 2022.

There was no material discrepancy between corporate
governance and relevant requirements of CSRC during the
Reporting Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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COMPLIANCE WITH CG CODE

The Company has adopted the CG Code set out in the Hong Kong
Listing Rules upon Listing. The Board is of the view that the
Company had complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code throughout the Reporting Period.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS,SUPERVISORS AND EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Specific enquiries had been made to all the Directors and
Supervisors, and the Directors and the Supervisors had confirmed
that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the whole
Reporting Period.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the
transactions of securities of the Company upon the Directors and
the relevant employees (who likely possess insider information of
the Company) ("Securities Dealing Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standards set out in the Model Code. The
Company was not aware of any matters in relation to breaches of
the Securities Dealing Code by any employee of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

Up to the Latest Practicable Date, the Board consisted of nine (9]
members, including three (3) executive Directors, two (2]
non-executive Directors, and four (4) independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Guoping (%5 B F) (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Liang Jiawei (R3238] (Chief Executive Officer]
Mr. Wang Baoping [ & F)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shi Pingyang (52 %)
Mr. Jin Yongsheng (& 7k &)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Guofang(ZE35)

Ms. Li Yingqil Z= B )

Mr. Liu Feng(21%)

Mr. Yang Ping(#5 )
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Biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family, or other material relationships among members of
the Board.

Board meetings
During the Reporting Period, the Board had convened 7 Board

meetings. In which, the Chairman of the Board and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors held 2 meetings, during which

EXERENBRAFRIES  EERSR

EEAB|—ff-

BARBIAA BEEEKE 2RI EEE -
B RRKEMEKREE -

ExEge=

\REMAN EFXECARTAEETEGH
EREERTIFEBIFRTESTRITT 2R
CRLERTEEHE - TRH

g% X

no Executive Directors were present. The following table sets forth NEERBEHALARAESTESEALR
the attendance rate of the Directors at the meetings of the Board RAGHHFEE
and general meetings of the Company during the Reporting Period:
Il. Directors of the Company discharged their duties . ESETEBEBR
(I} Attendance of the Directors at Board meetings and I EFZNEFSHRRAEH
general meetings =P
Attendance at
general
meetings
Attendance at Board meetings 2m
SMEFEHR RRAEER
Failure to
Attendance by attend in  Attendance at
Whether Due attendance way of person for two general
independent for the year Attendance in communication Attendance by Absence consecutive meetings
Name of Director  Director (times) person (times) _ltimes)  proxy (times) (times) meetings (times)
N KEESM DY LY REEEMA LERRASH
Bzpg REBUES EzeR¥ BBELERY SMRE ERHERE BRERH RHEZMER e |
Yang Guoping No 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
Liang Jiawei No 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
REE & &
Wang Baoping No 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
TET & &
Shi Pingyang No 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
L¥E & &
Jin Yongsheng No 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
Jiang Guofang Yes 3 3 1 0 0 No 0
Li Yingqi Yes 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
Fgn = &
Liu Feng Yes 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
2z IS &
Yang Ping Yes 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
Wang Kaiguo Yes 4 4 2 0 0 No 1
(resigned)
THE (BEE) IS &
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No. of Board meetings held in the year 7
Including: On-site meetings 1
Meetings by way of communication
<
Meetings held both on-site and by way
of communication 3

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure the balanced distribution of power and to enhance
independence and accountability, the positions of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer of the Company are held by
Mr. Yang Guoping (B EI¥) and Mr. Liang Jiawei (2 3= #),
respectively.

The chairman of the Board provides leadership for the Board and is
responsible for formulating corporate and business strategies and
making significant corporate and operational decisions. The chief
executive officer focuses on the business development and is
responsible for the daily operation and management and oversees
the implementation of the Company’s business strategies and
plans.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Board had complied with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Listing Rules that (1) the Board of
a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive directors; (2) at least one of the independent
non-executive directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or appropriate accounting or related financial
management expertise; and (3) the number of independent
non-executive directors must represent at least one-third of the
Board.

The Company had received a written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each
executive Director and a letter of appointment with each
nonexecutive Director and independent non-executive Director. The
term of office for all non-executive Directors is three years. All
Directors have been appointed for a term ending on the expiration
of the term of the current session of the Board and shall be
entitled to be re-election for a term of three years when the term
of office expires. The appointment and removal of Directors shall
be approved by Shareholders at the general meeting.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND THE
MANAGEMENT

The responsibilities of the Board and the management of the
Company have been clearly defined in the Articles of Association.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance, and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
Directors shall take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective operation. All Directors have full and
timely access to all the information of the Company as well as the
services and advice from the joint company secretaries and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company. The
Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required
from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company.

The management of the Company, under the leadership of the chief
executive officer of the Company, is responsible for, among other
things, resolutions of the Board and
implementing the Company’s business plans, investment proposals.
The management of the Company shall report to the Board in a
timely manner to enable the Board to make informed decisions in
the overall interest of the Company.

implementing the
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

ALl Directors had participated in continuous professional
development program during the Reporting Period in order to keep
abreast of their responsibilities, duties and obligations as directors
of a dual-listed company.

Every newly appointed Director including Mr. Jiang Guofang will
receive formal, comprehensive and tailor-made induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure his/her proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business as well as
his/her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations. Mr. Jiang Guofang confirms that he has obtained the
legal advice referred to under rule 3.09D of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules on June 28, 2023, and understands his obligations as a
director of a listed company under Hong Kong Listing Rules.
Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for Directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be
issued to Directors where appropriate. In addition, relevant reading
materials including legal and regulatory updates will be provided to
the Directors for their reference and studying.

All the Directors have provided a record of training they received to
the Company. According to the records maintained by the
Company, as of December 31, 2023, all Directors received training
in compliance with the code provisions relating to continuous
professional development under the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Directors participated in the
following training:

ERELSRS
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FAMEER (BRIEERIEARER)  UHEE
2E R -
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Types of training

Name of Director EEHE EIER
Executive Directors HiITEE

Mr. Yang Guoping (15 & F) 15 B ¥ S A& ABC
Mr. Liang Jiawei (232 %) REREEE ABC
Mr. Wang Baoping [T & F) FEFRAE ABC
Non-executive Directors FPITEE

Mr. Shi Pingyang (5 )¥) SEEFRE ABC
Mr. Jin Yongsheng (& 7K 4 ) RKERE ABC
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE

Mr. Jiang Guofang (ZE ) ZEF A ABC
Ms. Li Yingqi (Z=5E%5) FEBZT ABC
Mr. Liu Feng (21i%) 211& 5 A4 ABC
Mr. Yang Ping (15 ) A ABC
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Notes:
A: Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums
B: Attending in-house training relating to the ongoing compliance obligations,

corporate governance and other related topics

C: Reading newspapers, publications and updates relating to the economy, general
business, public utility industry or Directors” duties and responsibilities, etc.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, for providing
professional support to the Board's scientific decision making. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’'s website and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange's website and are available to the
Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date,
the Audit Committee comprised the following Directors:

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Yingqi (%) (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Guofang (Z B 7] (appointed on June 28, 2023)
Mr. Liu Feng (2II£)

Mr. Wang Kaiguo (EFAE) (retired on June 28, 2023)

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other things:

o Providing advice to the board on appointment, reappointment

and dismissal of external accountants, reviewing the
terms of employment of external
accountants and handling any questions relating to the
resignation or dismissal of the accountants.

remuneration and

o Reviewing and checking whether the accounting firm is
independent and objective and the audit procedure is valid,
and assessing the impact of non-audit services provided by
external accounting firms on their independence, and
discussing and communicating on the audit scope, audit plan,
audit method and major issues found in audit.

o Reviewing the Company’s annual internal audit work plan,
supervising the formulation and implementation of internal
audit system; reviewing the internal audit work report,
evaluating the results of internal audit work, and supervising
the rectification of major problems; guiding the effective
operation of internal audit department.
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° Auditing the Company’s financial information and its
disclosure, and commenting on the authenticity,
completeness and accuracy of the financial reports; focusing
on the major accounting and audit issues of the financial
reports of listed companies, and paying special attention to
the possibility of fraud, fraud and material misstatement
related to financial reporting; supervising the rectification of
financial reporting problems.

° Supervising and reviewing the integrity, rationality,
appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal control
system and system of the Company and its controlling
subsidiaries; evaluating the Company's existing or potential
risks and proposing suggestions to improve the Company's
risk management.

° Confirming the related parties of the Company, reporting to
the Board of Directors and the board of Supervisors, and
reporting to the relevant staff of the Company the related
party as confirmed.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held 7 meetings.
The Audit Committee has prudently reviewed the Financial Report
for the year ended December 31, 2022, listened to the company’'s
report on the construction of the internal control system and the
self-assessment work for the year 2022, annual preliminary
schedule and work plan for 2022, preliminary opinion of annual
audit and audit performance for 2022, Financial Statements of the
Company for 2022, Internal Control Evaluation Report of the
Company for 2022, Performance Report of the Audit Committee for
2022, Review of the “Internal Audit Work Report for the Year 2022"
submitted by the company’'s audit department, 2022 Audit Work
Summary of BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants
LLP and BDO Limited, Reappointment of Domestic Audit firm and
Internal Control Audit firm for 2023, Reappointment of Overseas
Audit firm, the Review of Daily Related-party Transactions for 2023,
2023 First Quarterly Report, Semi-annual Report and abstracts
2023, and 2023 Third Quarterly Report.
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The attendance records of members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

B ZBGKBEMHECSERIINT

No. of Attendance in Attendance by Absence
meetings person (times) proxy (times) (times)
ZERE

Director Name EEgE R FEHEXRH IR BRERE
Ms. Li Yingqi FRBELL

(ZFREH) 7 7 0 0
Mr. Jiang Guofang ZBF L4

(Z=E55) 2 2 0 0

Mr. Liu Feng (2II£) B S 7 7 0 0
Mr. Wang Kaiguo FHREI%E

(£ FIE) 5 5 0 0

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee FHEZXEES

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date,
the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee comprised the
following Directors:

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Guofang(ZBZ5) [Chairman)
(appointed on June 28, 2023)
Mr. Liu Feng (2I£)
Mr. Wang Kaiguo (EFE) (retired on June 28, 2023)

Executive Director
Mr. Yang Guoping (15 B )

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee is responsible for,
among other things:

o Researching on the assessment criteria for Directors,
managers and other senior management staff, conducting
assessment on and establishing formal and transparent
procedures to formulate compensation policies and making
recommendations.

o Formulating the assessment criteria for Directors, managers
and other senior management staff, conducting assessment
on and establishing formal and transparent procedures to
formulate compensation policies and making
recommendations.

° Studying and reviewing the remuneration policies and
packages of Directors, managers and other senior
management staff and supervising the implementation of the
remuneration system.
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° Reviewing and approving executive compensation proposals
based on the Company’ s policies and objectives set out by
the Board.

° Considering the remunerations paid and time commitment and

duties required by similar companies and the employment
conditions of other positions in subsidiaries of the Company.

° Reviewing and approving compensations payable to the
executive Directors and other members of senior
management for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, to ensure such compensations are in
accordance with the terms of relevant contracts, and in case
of inconsistency with the contractual terms, the
compensations are fair and reasonable and not excessive.

° Ensuring that none of the Directors or any of their associates
is involved in determining their own remunerations.

° Other duties delegated by the Board.

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the Directors and senior management for the Board's approval and
the Board shall have power to veto remuneration plans or
proposals which are not in the interests of Shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee held 1 meeting. It strictly observe the Company Law,
Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies, Articles of
Association and the Rules and Procedure of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee and other rules to carry out the work with a
duty of due diligence. Carefully deliberated on the Performance
Appraisal Scheme of Senior Management Team in 2022 and
Performance Appraisal Scheme of Senior Management Team in
2023 Based on the actual situation of the company, relevant
opinions were proposed. After thorough communication and
discussion, according to the Performance Appraisal Scheme of
Senior Management Team in 2022, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee of the Board decided not to issue performance
assessment awards to the assessment targets. The Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee formulated the Performance Appraisal
Scheme of Senior Management Team in 2023 from the perspective
of standardising the remuneration mechanism, and established an
incentive mechanism with regard to the combination of
responsibilities, power and interests of the senior management
team and a long-term mechanism with rational distribution
structure.
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The attendance records of members of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee are set out below:

FMEERZ BB HFERSREINNT

No. of Attendance in Attendance by Absence
meetings person (times) proxy (times) (times)
ZERE
Director Name EENR ERAE FEHEXRHE IR B RE
Mr. Liu Feng (2]i&) Bl 5 (F/E) 1 1 0 0
(Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Guofang ZEFRE 0 0 0 0
(ZBIZT)

Mr. Yang Guoping 15 B 5 A 1 1 0 0
(15 B )

Mr. Wang Kaiguo FHREI%E 1 1 0 0

(EFIER)

Details of remuneration of all the Directors, Supervisors and
certain members of the senior management for the year ended
December 31, 2023 are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date,
the Nomination Committee comprised the following Directors:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Feng (2I&) (Chairman)]

Mr. Jiang Guofang (2E175) (appointed on June 28, 2023)
Mr. Wang Kaiguo (£ E) (retired on June 28, 2023

Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Guoping (15 B )

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things:

° The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other
things:Studying the selection criteria and procedures of
Directors, managers and other senior management members
to be appointed by the Board of Directors and making
recommendations.

o Identifying qualified candidates from a broad range.
o Reviewing the candidates and making recommendations.
° Making recommendations to the board on the appointment or

reappointment of Directors and the succession plan of
Directors [especially the chairman and manager).
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° Assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.
° Checking, at least annually, the structure, size and composition

of the Board (including skills, knowledge and experience), and
making recommendations on the any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s strategy.

° Other duties delegated by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 1
meeting. It strictly observe the Company Law, Code of Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies, Articles of Association and the
Rules and Procedure of the Nomination Committee and other rules
to carry out the work with a duty of due diligence. Carefully
deliberated and approved the review and amendment of the Board
Diversity Policy, as well as the proposal for the board's term
renewal and re-election.

The attendance records of members of the Nomination Committee
are set out below:

EERELIWS
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REZBGKEMHECHEHRIINT

No. of Attendance in Attendance by Absence
meetings person (times) proxy (times) (times)
ZHERK

Director Name EENR R FEHEXRH IR BERE
Mr. Liu Feng B S 1 1 0 0
Mr. Wang Kaiguo FHREI%E 1 1 0 0
Mr. Yang Guoping 15 B 5 A 1 1 0 0
Mr. Jiang Guofang ZBF L4 0 0 0 0

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EHEERASTILBE

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects setting out in the Board
Diversity Policy adopted by the Company, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, and where necessary, recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to implement our corporate strategy and
achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendations to the Board.
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The following tables summarise the Board's diversity in terms of TEBRESSTHR  FRRREFHL

gender, age and length of service: % it

No. of Directors

EEAY

Gender % 5l
Male 5 8
Female k4 1
Age Fir
Below 50 S50BRIA T 1
50 to 59 5058 £ 59 5% 4
60 to 69 605 E 695% 4
70 or above 70BR A £ 0
Length of service as Director EEREEE
Less than 3 years DIR3EF
3 to 5 years 3E5F 1
5 years or more SERMNE 2
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES

The Nomination Committee studies on the selection criteria,
selection procedures and tenure of the directors and senior
management of the Company in accordance with the requirements
of the relevant laws, administrative regulations, other regulatory
documents, the Articles of Association and the Hong Kong Listing
Rules and based on the actual situation of the Company. The
resolution resulting from this process will be submitted to the
board of directors for consideration and approval, and then be
followed and implemented. The selection and appointment
procedures for directors and senior management are as follows: (I]
the Nomination Committee shall actively communicate with the
relevant departments of the Company for studying on the demand
for new directors and senior management of the Company and
formulating documents thereon; (ll] the Nomination Committee
shall broadly search for candidates suitable for assuming the roles
of directors, managers and other senior management from the
Company, the Company's holding (investee) companies and talent
markets; (Ill) gather information about the primary candidates,
including their professions, academic qualifications, titles, detailed
work experience, all part-time jobs, etc. and formulating
documents thereon; (IV] seek consent from the nominated persons
to the nomination, or they shall not be suitable as candidates for
directors and senior management; (V) convene the meetings of the
Nomination Committee for conducting qualifications examination on
the primary candidates based on the credentials for directors and
senior management; (VI] recommendations and the relevant
documents in relation to the director candidates and the new
candidates for senior management shall be tendered to the board
of directors 10 days before the election of new directors and the
engagement of new senior management; (VIl] perform other follow-
up work according to the decisions made by the board of directors
and the feedbacks.

Strategic Development Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date,
the Strategic Development Committee comprised the following
Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Guoping (#5B1<F) [Chairman)
Mr. Liang Jiawei (23]

Individual Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Ping (15 )
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The Strategic Development Committee is responsible for, among
other things:

° Studying the Company’'s long-term development strategy
planning and making recommendations.

° Tracking and supervising the Company’s existing development
strategy planning.

° Other duties delegated by the Board.

The Strategic Development Committee is a specialised working
institution set up by the Board, mainly responsible for the studying
of the Company's long-term development strategy planning and
making recommendations.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 1
meeting. It strictly observe the Company Law, Code of Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies, Articles of Association and the
Rules and Procedure of the Nomination Committee and other rules
to carry out the work with a duty of due diligence. The Strategic
Development Committee conducted in-depth analysis and research,
and put forward rational suggestions for the Company’'s 2023 work
plan. After the suggestions were implemented, the comparatively
satisfactory results were achieved by the Company.

The attendance records of members of the Strategic Development
Committee are set out below:
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BREREZEGNENHFELEHIINT

No. of Attendance in Attendance by Absence
meetings person (times) proxy (times) (times)
ZERE
Director Name EEgE R FEHEXRHE IR HRE R
Mr. Yang Guoping BT EE (£/E) 1 1 0 0
(5B F) (Chairman)
Mr. Liang Jiawei REBEEE 1 1 0 0
(RE=E)
Mr. Yang Ping (#5F) 15 FE4E 1 1 0 0
Corporategovernance functions TtEERBE
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the EEBRERTLEEARTRITREXE
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. A2 VIEFTESI BT -
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The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies

and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management,
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

the Company’s policies and

the compliance of the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code

and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures

in this Corporate Governance Report.

INFORMATION ON GENERAL MEETING

lll. General Meeting

Directory to designated
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Information on the general meetings

1. Attendance of shareholders in the 2022 annual general
meeting and the respective numbers of shares are as
follows:

Attendance of shareholders

KRAEIERH A

L RER02FFEEREAR L6
R R BRI T

and the respective BREFEERLR A Shares H Shares Total
No. of shares HEERGER AR H & &&t
No. of shareholder and proxy HE&HEaREMKIE AR 19 1 20

attending the meeting

No. of shares carrying voting HEEZEHRRTFAE TR
rights held by the AR 0 B8 (AR)
shareholders attending the
meeting (share)

Percentage of the shares H R SRR PR A ROR
carrying voting rights held R BE R RIA RORE
by the shareholders F% 157 48 B &Y 151 (%)

attending the meeting
among the total No. of
shares carrying voting rights
of the Company (%)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders’ requests to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Articles 76 of the Articles of Association, Shareholders
requesting to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting shall follow the following procedures:

(i) Two or more Shareholders who collectively hold 10% or more
of the voting shares at the proposed meeting may make a
proposal to the Board of Directors on holding an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by signing
one or several written requests with same content in same
format and define the meeting agenda. The Board shall
convene such meeting as soon as possible upon receipt of the
aforesaid written request. The aforesaid number of shares
held shall be calculated as of the date when the written
request was put forward by the Shareholders.
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(i) In case that the Board does not agree to convene such
extraordinary meeting, or fails to reply within 10 days after
receipt of the aforesaid written request, the holder(s) of more
than 10% ordinary shares (including the holder(s] of
preferred shares with restored voting rights], either
individually or jointly, shall have to right to propose such
meeting to the Board of Supervisors, and file such request in
writing to the Board of Supervisors.

While the Board of Supervisors agrees to convene such
extraordinary meeting, it shall give the notice of meeting within 5
days after receipt of the written request. The change of original
request in the notice shall obtain the consent of the relevant
Shareholder(s) in advance.

While the Board of Supervisors fails to give the notice of meeting in
the due date, it shall mean that the Board of Supervisors does not
convene and preside over the meeting; the holder(s] of more than
10% ordinary shares (including the holder(s] of preferred shares
with restored voting rights), either individually or jointly, for more
than 90 consecutive days shall convene and preside over such
meeting on their own.

The expenses reasonably incurred by Shareholders in convening
and chairing such meeting due to the failure of the Board to hold
such meeting on the aforesaid request shall be borne by the
Company, and shall be deducted from any payment due by the
Company to non-performing Directors.

Proposals at the general meetings

Pursuant to Article 81 of the Articles of Association, when the
Company convenes a general meeting, the Board, the Board of
Supervisors and Shareholder(s), individually or jointly, holding more
than 3% of the Company’'s Shares shall have the right to propose
resolutions to the Company.

Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding more than 3% of the
Company’s shares may propose interim resolutions in writing to the
convener(s) 10 working days before the general meeting is
convened. The convener(s) shall issue a supplementary notice of the
general meeting within 2 days after receiving the resolutions to
announce the contents of the interim resolutions.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a
notice of general meeting, the convener(s) shall not make any
amendments to the proposals included in the notice of general
meeting or add any new proposals.
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The Board shall examine the proposals of the general meeting in
accordance with the Articles of Association in the best interests of
the Company and the shareholders. Proposals not set out in the
notice of general meeting or not complying with the Articles of
Association shall not be submitted to the general meeting for
voting and resolution by the Board.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Company in writing,
and may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the Company by means of facsimile, email or post. The details of

contact are as follows:

Secretary to the Board’'s office of the Company

Address: 10/F, Block 1, Zhongteng Building, No0.2121 Longteng
Avenue, Xuhui District, Shanghai, the PRC

Facsimile:  +86(21) 64288727

Email: dmbstock(ddzug.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s] must provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises that it is accountable to its stakeholders and
considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group’'s business performance and strategies.

To promote effective communication, the Company has established
a Shareholder communication policy and maintains a website at
www.dzug.cn, where information and updates on the Company’'s
business developments and operation, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available
for public access.

The policy is regularly reviewed by the Board to ensure its
effectiveness. During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed
the Shareholder communication policy and considered that it was
effectively implemental.

The directors confirmed that for the year ended December 31,2023

there were no significant changes in the Articles of Association of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

A statement by the Company’'s independent auditor in respect of its
reporting obligations with respect to the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the independent auditor’'s report of this
annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
(including BDO and BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public
Accountants LLP), in respect of audit services for the annual report

TRELSRS
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for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to HK$1.3 million BRI EFEML R BIB0EBATRAR

and RMB1.5 million, respectively. “.*—151501%73 °

Current appointment RESE

Name of the domestic ARk HIES S BDO China Shu Lun Pan S RHIES 3
accounting firm Certified Public (%%%@é%)

Accountants LLP

Remuneration of the ARk ES e RMB1.5 million ARBEI1508 T
domestic accounting firm

Term of audit of the BNEETAI R EFTFR 24 years 2L

domestic accounting firm

Name of the domestic BNEETRI B AT Lin Shengyu, Li Jingya
certified public affestags
accountant

Continuous auditing term of RAETAIEKFEM&ET 3 years, 2 years
domestic certified public R E R AR R EEF IR
accountant

Name of the overseas XN RES e BDO
accounting firm

Remuneration of the XN RTIES e HK$1.3 million
overseas accounting firm

Name of the overseas BN ETRD B FT Chau Ka Kin
certified public aftestants
accountant

Term of audit of the BN ETRVEFTERTFMR 8 years

overseas accounting firm
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Name Remuneration

=x R

Accounting firm for  REBIEH|IERT BDO China Shu Lun M {Z€&TRIEHAT RMB400,000
internal control FETENETEFT Pan Certified (FH®rELHe%) ARELOETT

Public Accountants
LLP

audit

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has built a set of corporate rules, including detailed
internal control and risk management policies that govern all major
aspects of its operations in each department, including operational
procedures, responsibility allocation,
reporting hierarchy and internal assessment criteria. By doing so,

resource management,

the Company can allocate adequate resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budgets, which are
related to the environmental, social and governance performance of
issuer, in accounting, financial reporting
functions. The internal control and risk management policies are

internal audit and
subject to review and amended to reflect changes in market
conditions, applicable rules and regulations and risk profiles of the
Company’s various business segments.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems by identifying, evaluating

and managing significant risks.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems. The Company has
established an internal audit department which is responsible for
internal audit function and independent review on the adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control system. The
internal audit department examines major matters relating to
accounting practices and material controls and provides the Audit
Committee with its findings and suggestions for improvement.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board reviewed the
risk management and internal control system for 2 times and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries, and
considered the risk management and internal control system to be
effective and adequate.
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Description of self-inspection and rectification in the
special operation on corporate governance of listed
companies

After the self-inspection, the company has found no issues
requiring rectification. The company strictly adheres to the
requirements of regulations such as the Company Law,
Securities Law, and the Code of Corporate Governance for
Listed Companies, continuously improving its corporate
governance structure, and enhancing governance standards
and practices.

Joint company secretaries

Ms. Zhao Fei (#7R), one of the Company’s joint company
secretaries, is responsible for advising on the Board on
corporate governance and compliance matters and in charge
of the preparation and documentation for general meetings
and Board meetings of the Company.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and to ensure
the compliance with the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Dr. Ngai Wai Fung (ZR1EI&) (the
director and group chief executive officer of SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries), a Fellow of the
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators]) in the
United Kingdom, a member of HKICPA, a Fellow of
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom and a member of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators] as a joint company secretary to assist Ms. Zhao
Fei (7], in discharging her duties and responsibilities as
company secretary of the Company. The key contact person of
Dr. Ngai Wai Fung and the Company is Ms. Zhao Fei.
Ms. Zhao Fei and Dr. Ngai Wai Fung have participated
relevant professional training for no less than 15 hours for
the purpose of being compliance with the Rule 3.29 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules respectively.

Risk discovered by the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors has no objection to the supervision
during the Reporting Period.

ERELSRS

— LHARREERTHEERER

RER

KAE R FESERMAERMB
o RNEERRIERBCRRNE) - (BFHFE)
R EMRARPREERN) SRANEK - 3
5 AL - TETRAATDA
K EME IR -

= N
?ETD%Z\\ Aly

B Gl E

ARBBEARWEBRLLAAERE
ZeEREEEARAMREERMHE
@ TABEARABRRAGNEEES

ZNBELERE

REFRENDEER  YHERETE
BLMRA - RATNBERNLER
BEEL (FECEREEE (FE)A
BAREENEETREH  BEQT
REAE(REERMNELAS)E
REE  HEEFHFARAELS (A1
RAWERTHRABLAR)EREE
BREHMAEEE RERTARE
A EREBRFPRARES
B)RRBEARTNWE  HHBERLL
BITEEREARRRARMEEZBRE
T-REEFLINIBBREARBRLZ
T RBEHRR - BREEIRAREF
TRBE2ERNDRISNEFHEEER
ol - FFAEE LETRAIFI.29KH0R
5o

EESRR QA 72V

EEHREHANEESTRERS -

KROE 20235 54

95



96

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIWS

Establishment and implementation of the assessment
mechanism and incentive mechanism for senior
management during the Reporting Period

The Company has an advanced performance evaluation
system for senior management. The Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee under the Board is responsible for the
formulation of remuneration policy and determination of
remuneration plan. In 2023, the actual payment of
remunerations of senior management was based on the 2023
Performance Assessment Plan for Management, which was
approved by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and
the Board, and the signed annual performance appraisal
target (task) books.

Whether to disclose internal control self-evaluation
report

Please refer to the Internal Control Audit Report of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. for 2023 ({ L/BARR
PAEE (KE) BRHBR AT 2023 FAFBIZEFIFET RS D) which
will be disclosed on Shanghai Stock Exchange’'s website
(www.sse.com.cn) dated March 29, 2024 for the relevant
information of the Company’'s internal control audit report
during the Reporting Period.

Description of the internal control audit report

BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP,
the internal control auditor of the Company issued a standard
unqualified internal control audit report for the Company.
Please refer to the Internal Control Audit Report of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. for 2023 ({_ EEXR
PAEE (KE) BRHBR AT 2023 FAFBIZEFIFET RS D) which
will be disclosed on Shanghai Stock Exchange’'s website
(www.sse.com.cn) dated March 29, 2024 for the relevant
information of the Company’'s internal control audit report
during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Below sets out the biographical details of the current Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company as of the
Latest Practicable Date.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Guoping (#BI¥), aged 67, joined the Company in
January 1992 and was appointed as the chairman of the Board and
a Director on January 1, 1992. Mr. Yang is the chairman of the
Strategic Development Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee. He is the chairman and general manager of Dazhong
Transportation, the director of Shanghai Dazhong Gas, the director
of Dazhong Business Management, the vice president of Shenzhen
Capital Group, and the director of Songz Automobile Air
Conditioning Co., Ltd. (B2 Z/REZEFRMDBR AT (stock
code: 002454.57), the director of Shanghai Jiaoyun Group Co., Ltd.
(B8R BEEEBKRMHAERAE) (stock code: 600676.SH), Nanjiang
Public Utilities Development Co., Ltd. (AR AR ZEREKMD B R A )
(stock code: 000421.5Z) and the independent director of Shanghai
Shentong Metro Group Co., Ltd. (LG F @R MDERAF]) (stock
code: 600834.SH]. Mr. Yang was the independent director of Bright
Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. tRAFHESERMH AR AR (stock
code: 600708.SH) from August 2015 to September 2021, the
independent director of Shanghai Shentong Metro Group Co., Ltd.
(B8 HR@EtEI D BIRAA]) (stock code: 600834.SH) from May 2017
to May 2020. Mr. Yang is currently the council standing director (32
G EFIEE] of the third session of China Association for Public
Companies [ ETAR]#HE), the vice president of China Taxicab
and Car Rental Association and the president of the third session
of Shanghai Association of Micro-credit [ E/8/NSBER R RHE).
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EF - EFREREEAR

Mr. Liang Jiawei (R E®) aged 50, joined the Company in
September 2000 and was appointed as an executive Director on
July 28, 2015. Mr. Liang is a member of the Strategic Development
Committee. He has been the chief executive officer of the Company
since June 2015. Mr. Liang has been the director of Dazhong
Transportation since April 2016. Mr. Liang is currently the director
of Dazhong Business Management, the director of Shanghai
Dazhong Gas, the director of Shenzhen Capital Group, the vice
president (legal representative) of the Listed Companies Association
of Shanghai ((E/& ETAE1#HE) and the council director (2 E &2
%] of the seventh session of Shanghai Association of Joint-stock
Companies (E/8MRMH A FIEES &) He was accredited twice as
outstanding secretary to the Board ({EFZ E &M E) by the Listed
Companies Association of Shanghai (/& EHRAAIBE) in April
2013 and May 2015, respectively. Mr. Liang was accredited as the
excellent secretary to the Board of listed companies (EMARIER
E M) in the eighth, ninth and tenth selection of New Fortune Gold
Medal Secretary to the Board (381 &2 EMW) held by the New
Fortune Magazine (¥18/ = %45 ). He was also accredited as one of
the 100 Best Board Secretaries of Companies Listed on the Main
Board of China in 2013 (2013FEHR B R LT AR BEZEMW by
Securities Times in September 2014. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor
degree in administrative management from Shanghai University (&
AAREZ] in July 1995 and a master degree in business
administration from Preston University in the United States in
November 2002.

Mr. Wang Baoping [JXE¥), aged 64, was appointed as the
executive Director on June 22, 2020, and is also the chairman of
Nantong Dazhong Gas. Mr. Wang was the vice general manager of
Shanghai Gas Group and Shanghai Gas. He obtained his degree in
television and information processing from the Evening College of
Shanghai Polytechnic University [ E/8 T KXZ2®& K2) in 1987.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Pingyang (% ¥3¥) aged 50, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on May 27, 2022. Mr. Shi is now the
Chairman of Shanghai Gas, the chairman of Shanghai Shenneng
Chengyi Equity Investment Co., Ltd., the chairman of Shanghai ICY
Capital Management Ltd., director of Shanghai Jiulian Group Co.,
Ltd and Shanghai LNG Company Limited. Mr. Shi served at various
positions of Shenergy (Group) Company Limited* (FREE (&) AR
~A]) from July 2007 to November 2013 and from July 2018 to
December 2021 including general manager of investment
management department etc. From July 2014 to July 2018, he
served at various positions of Huaibei Shenwan Power Generation
Co., Ltd* (EJLEBZEEABMR A A including deputy general
manager. From November 2013 to July 2014, he served as an
assistant to director of the preparatory department of Anhui
Huaibei Pingshan Power Plant* (Z# 4L F L EE). Mr. Shi
received his bachelor degree in boiler major from Xi'an Jiaotong
University (FAZZRBAZ) in July 1996.

Mr. Jin Yongsheng (£ K%), aged 61, has served as the
non-executive Director since June 22, 2020. Mr. Jin is the President
of Council of shareholders affairs of ENN Energy Holdings Limited
("ENN Energy’]). From 2006 to 2017 and August 2018 to August
2023, Mr. Jin served as non-executive director in ENN Energy
Holdings Limited. Mr. Jin received a bachelor degree with major in
public finance from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics in
1986, and an E.M.B.A from Peking University in 2005. Mr. Jin
possesses the lawyer qualification in China.
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EF - EFREREEAR

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guofang (Z Bl 3) aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on June 28, 2023 and currently
serves as an independent director of Dazhong Transportation and
independent non-executive director of Tian An China Investment
Company Limited. He was the vice general manager of Shenwan
Hong Yuan Group (A& ZRIR&E], the chairman of SYWG BNP
Paribas (FREE22) and SWS MU Fund Management Co., Ltd (A&
ZEESEIRE AR AT, the executive vice president and Hong Kong
chairman of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. (FRIRE B % 5
&1 BBR 2 Al), a director and executive vice president of Shanghai
Shenyin Securities Co.* [ F/8HIRFEH A A]), the general manager
(EE) of the People’s Bank of China (B ARRTT), and deputy
director (BIEE&) of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (F[E
TR #R77). Mr. JIANG received his master degree from
Universidade Aberta Internacional Da Asia (Macau) (S5 (EF9)
BRAFKXZ) in February 1999.

Ms. Li Yingqi (ZZ %), aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on May 27, 2022 and currently serves as a
professor and PhD tutor of Shanghai National Accounting Institute
(EBBEIR 25 26%). Ms. Li is enjoying special government
allowances from the State Council. She also serves as a consultant
expert of the internal control standards committee of the Ministry
of Finance* (M EEBAZBIFHIIZEEZE®). Ms. Li is currently an
independent director of Eastern Air Logistics Co., Ltd. (R %
miE BB ARl (stock code: 601156.SH), Shanghai Modern
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and China Post Technology Co., Ltd
(stock code: 688648.SH]. Ms. Li received her doctoral degree in
management from Fudan University (R B RX2) in June 2009. She is
a senior member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants [(non-practicing). She also holds the qualification
certificate for independent directors issued by the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Feng (2li#), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on May 27, 2022. Mr. Liu is currently a
senior partner and a director of the board of directors of Beijing
Dacheng (Shanghai) Law Firm (LA (L&) EEMEHFT). Mr. Liu
serves as an independent director of Shanghai Jiaoda Withub
Information Industrial Co., Ltd. (B R AERFEEEXRMDBRA
A]) (stock code: 8205.HK] and China Post Technology Co., Ltd. (F
R RMHBMRAF). He was a senior partner of Shanghai
Shengda Law Firm (_E/8 M HRZEERMEHPT) from October 2003 to
June 2016. Mr. Liu is a legal expert for the Information Network
Security Association of Jiangsu Province, a civil and administrative
consulting expert of Supreme People’'s Procuratorate (&= AR
R RFBITHEMAER), director of Intellectual Property Business
Committee of Shanghai Lawyers Association (/& 1120 %2 &%
EWEMKZEE), mediator of Shanghai Economic and Trade
Mediation Center (/8 ZmEFMF 1)), director of Intellectual
Property Business Committee of Shanghai Lawyers Association*(_E
EBTAMBE MFBEEEKZ B ), the vice president of Disciplinary
Committee, the director of Shanghai Intellectual Property Service
Industry Association, member of Intellectual Property Research
Association of Shanghai Law Society ( E/ETAS & MM ERTTE),
member of Intellectual Property Association of China (Shanghai
Pilot Free Trade Zone (FEI(L/8) EHESARENBEEHS),
professional of third-party supervision and assessment mechanism
for compliance of enterprises involved in the case in Shanghai,
specially appointed expert of China Civil Arts Legal Service Center,
member and committee member of the legal advisory committee of
Shanghai Association for Science and Technology, member of the
Consumer Rights Protection Legal Expert Service Group of
Shanghai Consumer Protection Commission, specially invited
mediator of Shanghai Pudong Professional People's Mediation
Center. He has also served as a member of the Expert Discussion
Committee of the Shanghai Higher People’s Court for many times.
Mr. Liu received his master degree of business administration from
Shanghai Jiaotong University (LE/8 3238 AK2) in July 2000. He has
been a qualified lawyer in the PRC since 1996. He also holds the
qualification certificate for independent directors issued by the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yang Ping (# ), aged 55, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on May 27, 2022, the director of China Asset
Management 30 Forum. He was the chief executive officer and
president of Sailing Capital, chief investment officer and member of
the Management Committee of China Everbright Limited. Mr. Yang
obtained a doctoral degree in economics from the Shanghai
Academy of Social Sciences in July 2005.
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EF - EFREREEAR

Supervisors

Ms. Zhao Siyuan (&), aged 52, joined the Company in April
2014 and was appointed as a Supervisor of the Company in April
2014. She has been the director, vice general manager of Dazhong
Transportation since May 2021 and the chairman of Dazhong
Business Management (the Company’s shareholder] since June
2019. Ms. Zhao was accredited as excellent secretary to the Board
(BFESEWE) by the Listed Companies Association of Shanghai
(8 EM2AHWE) in May 2015. Ms. Zhao obtained a bachelor
degree in law from Shanghai University (£ K2 in July 1993.

Ms. Li Ping (Z=5¥), aged 52, is the general manager of the audit
department of the Company. Ms. Li served as a financial manager
and assistant to the general manager of Dazhong Transportation
Commerce Co., Ltd.* (KRRBEBEMRAE]) from October 2009 to
January 2016. She joined the Company in February 2016 and has
served as an assistant to the general manager of the accounting
and finance department and deputy general manager of the audit
department since then, and the general manager of the audit
department since January 2019. She obtained a degree in
economics from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in July
1998.

Mr. Cao Jing (E& % %), aged 59, joined the Company in January
1998 and served as a Supervisor since February 2023. Mr. Cao
served as the authorized representative of securities affairs of the
Board (BHEEHENR K] since April 2008; the deputy general
manager of the investment and development department of the
Company since February 2016; the director of Jiangsu Dazhong
since February 2019; and the supervisor of Dazhong Commercial
Factoring since December 2021.
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Senior Management

The executive Director Mr. Liang Jiawei (£323%) concurrently holds
a senior management position in the Group. For his biographies,
please refer to the section above.

Mr. Jiang Yun (3 ¥), aged 47, He is currently the vice president
and chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Jiang is also a
supervisor of Dazhong Transportation and Shanghai Dazhong Gas.
He also served as the financial manager and vice financial
controller (person-in-charge of work] of Dazhong Transportation
from May 2015 to March 2019. He was appointed as the vice
financial officer (person-in-charge of work) of the Company on
March 29, 2019. He obtained the China senior accountant
qualification in December 2013. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
finance from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/8B AE] in July
2005 and a master’s degree in accounting (MPAcc] from Shanghai
National Accounting Institute (L/BBIK &5 2F%) in October 2009.

Ms. Zhao Fei (7)), aged 45, is currently the secretary to the
Board, the general manager of the legal affairs department of the
Company and the supervisor of Shanghai Seari Intelligence System
Co., Ltd* (E/BEREREEGRMABRAF]). Ms. Zhao currently
serves as a joint company secretary of the Company. She passed
the PRC judicial exam and received the qualification of legal
profession AR ELZ & 17 by Ministry of Justice of the People’s
Republic of China (FZE AR H*FME SEER) in February 2007. She
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics (/88148 K28 in July 2000 and a master's
degree in law from Fudan University (fE B X&) in January 2011.
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EF - EFREREEAR

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

Information to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules

After making specific inquiries by the Company and confirmed by
the Directors and Supervisors, after the date of publication of the
Company's 2023 interim report and up to the Latest Practicable
Date, there are no other changes in the information of Directors
and Supervisors that are required to be disclosed under Rules
13.51(2) (a) to (e) and (g) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules which are
subject to disclosure under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at December 31, 2023,
the beneficial interests or short positions of the Directors,
Supervisors and the chief executives of the Company in any Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations [within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Sections 7 and 8 of the SFO [including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFOJ; or (b) pursuant to Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to
be kept therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code set out in
Appendix C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Approximate Approximate

Number of percentage of percentage of
Shares interest in the relevant type of
Name Nature of interest Type of shares held M@ Company (%) shares (%)
BERSG hARQFER GHEBRGER
#®E ERMHE % 45 % 5l FgEM #HMAESL(%) BMABDL(%)
Director
B=x
Mr. Yang Guoping®®  Beneficial owner A Shares 2,097,861 (L) 0.07 0.09
15 B 3 55 A ) BEREAA AR
Mr. Liang Jiawei“® Beneficial owner A Shares 222,300 (L) 0.01 0.01
Rrzig o W0 EnA A ARZ
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Notes:
(1) [L)—long position

(2) As at December 31, 2023, the total number of issued shares of the Company
was 2,952,434,675, including 2,418,791,675 A Shares and 533,643,000 H Shares.

(3) Mr. Yang Guoping (#5E1) holds 14,229,800 shares in Employee Share
Ownership Committee, representing 9.55% of the total number of shares of the
Employee Share Ownership Committee.

(4) Mr. Liang Jiawei (23%¥) holds 112,100 shares in Employee Share Ownership
Committee, representing 0.07% of the total number of shares of the Employee
Share Ownership Committee.

(5) The Employee Share Ownership Committee is the beneficial owner of the 90%
equity interests in Dazhong Business Management and is deemed to be
interested in 495,143,859 A Shares held by Dazhong Business Management.

Other than the information disclosed above, as at December 31,
2023, there were no beneficial interests or short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company in
any Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFOJ, required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFOJ; or (b] pursuant
to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register
required to be kept therein; or (c] pursuant to the Model Code set
out in Appendix C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period, no Directors or Supervisors had
entered into any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (excluding statutory compensation).
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EF - EFREREEAR

INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

1.

EF EFERERTEARNER

i ; - + AN 45 N N
Changes in shareholdings and remunerations 1. EREHBERRBEMER
Unit: share BAL: K
Total remuneration Whether
before tax received received
Shareholding Changes in from the Company remuneration
atthe Shareholding  shareholding during the from the
beginning of  at the end of during the Reason of Reporting Period Company’s
Name Position Gender Age Term start date  Term end date the year the year year change (RMB10thousand) related parties
BERR
RATEEH REE
FERRH BARMAE LARBA
#E BE A FR EHERRAS  EHALES FORRY  FRRRE  EH2BE EESBRR (AR%ER) BREH
Yang Guoping Chairman of Board M 67 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 2,097,861 2,097,861 0/ 31431 Yes
HET EE2RIR ] 3
Liang Jiawei Executive Director, CEO M 50 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 222,300 222,300 0/ 291.40 No
25E H7EF  THEH g A
Wang Baoping Executive Director M b4 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 0.00 No
IEY HiTEZE ] &
Shi Pingyang Non-executive Director M 50 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 0.00 Yes
£TE FHTES g I3
Jin Yongsheng Non-executive Director M 61 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 0.00 Yes
% FHTEE ] 3
Jiang Guofang Independent M b6 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 0.00 No
non-executive
Director
285 BUFRITES g &
Li Yingqi Independent F 48 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 20.00 No
non-executive
Director
FEE BUFNTES £ &
Liu Feng Independent M 56 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 20.00 No
non-executive
Director
s BUFHTES g A
Yang Ping Independent M 5 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 20.00 No
non-executive
Director
BT BUERITES g &
Li Ping Supervisor F 52 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 101.06 No
5% & ES &
Zhao Siyuan Chairman of Supervisory ~ F 52 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 0.00 Yes
Board
HER £ER ES =
Cao Jing Employee Representative ~ M 59 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 107.32 No
Supervisor
BE BIRKEZ g &
Jiang Yun Vice President, Chief M 47 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 0 0 0/ 239.78 No
Financial Officer
#E EIEE AR RS E &
Zhao Fei Board Secretary F 45 2023-06-28 2026-06-27 50,000 50,000 0/ 161.27 No
HR BEeNE ES &
Wang Kaiguo (resigned) Independent M 6l 2020-06-22 2023-06-21 0 0 0/ 20.00 No
non-executive
Director
TRE (BE) BUFRITES g &
Jin Bo [resigned] Vice President, Board M 52 2020-06-22 2023-02-17 0 0 0/ 20470 No
Secretary
SR (BfE) Had EEENE E &
Zhuang Jianhao (resigned) Chairman of Supervisory ~ M 62 2020-06-22 2023-06-28 115,000 115,000 0/ 131.50 No
Board
HRE(BE) ZEEIR g &
Totl / [ / / /
£
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EF - EFERERETEHEHAR

PROCEDURES FOR DETERMINING REMUNERATIONS EEEF EFEREREEARTHM
OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR FHEXR B EHEH
MANAGEMENT AND REMUNERATIONS PAID

I.  Remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and senior — B -EE -SAREBEABHRME
management n
Decision-making process of 1. The remuneration of the Company's independent non-executive
remunerations of Directors, Directors shall be proposed by the Board and submitted to the
Supervisors and senior management general meeting for decision;
2. The remuneration of the Directors and senior management (president,

vice president, secretary to the Board and chief financial officer) are
paid on an annual basis and linked to the Company’s operating
performance. At the beginning of each year, the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee formulates annual operating performance
appraisal objectives for the appraisees and submits to the Board for
approval. At the end of the year, the appraisees report on their work
according to the assessment objectives, and the Company conducts
annual performance assessment on them. The remunerations will be
resolved and distributed by the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee after submission to the Board for confirmation.
EE EE AAEBABBMAAR 1. QARABYFATESFNDMHEFSREARBRERNGIRE

2 2. HERARERBRMOZEZEURRAFASATEASNRMETFEFH L E
NEREEREE FFUFHEEZZE Y AR ERZHRGIE
FEBUFNEZBR REFSFANE FRESRHYRERE
ZEBETOR RRAYHEETFRENER  ERERBFWEE
REZEEERIRFEESTSHERREN -

Whether Directors abstain from Yes
discussions regarding their own
compensation matters during Board

meetings

EXHEEZTEIBRAAFTHEERRS &
(o] 38

The specific situation where the 1. The Company links the actual payment of remunerations of Directors,
Remuneration and Appraisal Supervisors and senior management to the Management
Committee or special meetings of performance appraisal plan ($&EBEBHEMEZTFE) and annual
Independent Directors make performance appraisal target (task) book (FEEMEZE IZ ((£75)
recommendations regarding the £) considered and approved by the Remuneration and Appraisal
remuneration of Directors, Committee and confirmed by the Board;
Supervisors, and Senior Management 2. The supervisors recommended by the Shareholder do not receive
personnel. remuneration from the Company, and the employee supervisors of

the company are not allowed to receive additional remuneration
except the employee remuneration from the company;

3. The allowance of the independent non-executive director is
RMB200,000 per person per year [before tax] according to the
Proposal on Adjusting the Allowance of Independent Directors (BFR
B EEEBFEZE) considered and approved by 2021 annual
general meeting of the Company.
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EF - EFREREEAR

FRERZE e BUEEHEMIERE 1.

BRES EF SREEABRH
FEEREZNABER

2.
3.
Basis for determination of 1.
remunerations of Directors,
Supervisors and senior management
2.
3.

B EF SATEASHRMETE 1.

{%7:3

ERAREDRBHMNEETNSRERAS  HREMNER XN RRES
BN EERZE R AR RETERAN(REERBEMER
HERE)AREMBTOCEEE xﬁl%’f?ﬁﬁ(ﬁ%ﬂ‘k)$>ﬁ1&ﬁ%
HRREUEBNESETERARERRH AR IEFREQRR
ERBR TSRB SN - TRRINEENEE F 3R -
RABYFATESZMRBELQF02IFFERRAGE R RAN(H
RBEBBIIFNTEFTRUENZR) BEASFARK20E T (A1)

The Company links the actual payment of remunerations of Directors,
Supervisors and senior management to the Management
performance appraisal plan (ELEBRBENEZITE) and annual
performance appraisal target (task) book [Eriaxﬁl%ﬁﬁfﬁ(f{f&)
£) considered and approved by the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee and confirmed by the Board;
The supervisors recommended by the Shareholder do not receive
remuneration from the Company, and the employee supervisors of
the company are not allowed to receive additional remuneration
except the employee remuneration from the company;
The allowance of the independent non-executive director is
RMB200,000 per person per year [before tax] according to the
Proposal on Adjusting the Allowance of Independent Directors [BER
HEB EEEIMNZEZE) considered and approved by 2021 annual
general meeting of the Company.
ERRERBHNEENSRERAL  HBRMOHER X NIZRES
EFHEER LB ER AR RKRETERAN(REERBEMER
FE)AFREMBATNKEREEREZB R (E) B) BEKE
HRREMEBNESETERARERRH AR IEFHREQRR
ERBR TSRBM SN - FRRINEINEE F 3R
REABYFATESZMRBELAF02IFFERRASEZRAN(H
RABRBIIFNTESTEIUNAR) BASFARK20E T (HAD)

Actual amount of remunerations paid to For details, please refer to the changes in shareholding and remuneration
Directors, Supervisors and senior of existing and resigned Directors, Supervisors and senior management
management during the Reporting Period.

EE EENEATEAERMNER HRAIRERBEHARIES SZFVSAEEAESREHRERHMER] -

AHBER

Total remunerations actually received  In 2023, total remunerations actually received by all Directors, Supervisors
by all Directors, Supervisors and and senior management amounted to RMB16.3134 million.

senior management at the end of the
Reporting Period

MEHALEEE EENSHABTEA 200FE 28E8F ZFNoREEBAEBERESORIMATARE
BEERESHNRMAEF 1,631.348 7T °

During the Reporting Period, no Directors or Supervisors waived or RBERARN BIBREEFHESEHEXRAER

agreed to waive any remuneration.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EMPLOYEES OF THE GROUP
General
Remuneration policies for employees

The increase of the total remunerations of employees will be based
on the growth of economic benefits; for the employees at the
Company headquarters, the “position value appraisal” approach will
be adopted on remunerations; for the management of subsidiaries,
the “five key operating indicators” approach will be adopted on
remunerations; the performance analysis system will be developed
to effectively improve production efficiency.

Training

The Company pays close attention to the corporate culture training
and education on new employees, with standardised training
contents and process for the new employees. The Company focuses
on the training in relation to policies and regulations, improves the
execution power and work dedication of staff, and designs different
training sessions in terms of levels and professional types.

() Remuneration policies

The remuneration standards of the employees of the
Company's headquarters are determined by reference to the
comprehensive consideration of the difficulty of position
management and the contribution to business operation and
management. The remuneration standards of the Company’'s
administrators must be determined by reference to the
comprehensive consideration of the investment amount,
operation and management scale, operational risk level,
business indicators during the term of office, and
management indicators of the enterprises they operate.

() Training plans

According to the Company's strategic development, and in
combination with the needs of employees, we have signed
cooperation agreements with professional training
institutions, and developed a training plan which combines
online and offline open classes. The purposes of the training
plan are enhancing the managerial capabilities of
management personnel at all levels and expand their
business perspective.

As of December 31, 2023, there were 2,817 employees in the
Group. During the Reporting Period, the salary expenditures
of the Group were RMB793,691,762.84.

EF - EFERERETEHEHAR

FRERER
—RER
1E 8 # K&

AR E B T 5 A8 58 6018 & DA K7 R ek 0 38
REESZE - REBENMANET - &6
MARRFEEZREFMETE AR TET
NAREE BETEBEREERERERT
RAERBHEMICE - RRIZILAMD T HR
BAMRERSBEEER -

B3l

NREERHEE TEEXEEINES
EFHEB T AREIAD - RIE - HIRFIE
EERITDEMFI - RIT B TRBTT H MR
XE  BEREMN BXEHNFHERT TR
BT AR

(—) FrBHBR

RABTHMITESREEZ B E LN
HOBREMHMEEEREENBREL
FETE  HMARBRMIERIAR R E S s
WIERBEREZE - RRIBEEAFIET
B HT N B L AR B R R E R
REA BT RARKEENFTME T A
BRI L R EIRIR T AERE RN
RBBIABAITEL - BRI

=) FIErEl

NRANTEE T MEALEE N IE
Al B EETAREIANR R
12 0 pnsR I E B AR - T
TRTH B THVBTT 1) A E 1R R e (i B
A M E R BRI B E R TR A
AFTXMAR -

HE2023%F 128318 A"EEHAE
2817%EE - EHRN AEBEE
Bz A AREET793,691,762.847T °
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Gender Diversity and Equal Opportunities Policy

We respect the gender, age and ethnicity of each person. As
of December 31, 2023, approximately more than 20% of our
fulltime employees [(including senior management] were
female. We will continue to focus on embracing diversity
within our Company and equal and respectful treatment of all
of our employees in their hiring, training, wellness and
professional and personal development. To this end, we have
adopted policies on compensation, dismissal, equal
opportunities, diversity and antidiscrimination. Accordingly,
our Company gives each job applicant an equal job
opportunity and we have an internal policy in place to ensure
that there is no discrimination as to gender, age and
ethnicity. In addition, we have stipulated in our internal
guidelines that decision in relation to human resource
management, which include but not limited to promotion,
salary increment and dismissal within our Company would be
based solely on the employee’s performance, experience and
capability. While we strive to provide equal career opportunity
for everyone, we will also continue to promote work-life
balance and create a happy culture in our workplace for all of
our employees.
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MR Z TTIE R FE#E R
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CHANGES IN SHARES AND INFORMATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
BRERBRREHEE

I. CHANGES IN SHARES . BRFEEER
Statement of changes in shares RAEEER T
1. Statement of changes in shares 1. RGEEEELEEX
During the Reporting Period, there were no changes in WEBRRN - QARG LR
share volume and shareholding structure. o N e
Il. SECURITIES ISSUANCE AND LISTING . BFRTHLHER
INFORMATION
1.  Securities issuance information during the 1. HEREHABFRITER
Reporting Period
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB B BE:ARE

Amounts Ending date

Type of shares and derivative Issue price approved for for

securities Issue date (rate) Issue amount Listing date listing transaction
BITER BELT RFKL

BRERETERBSNESR RITEHH (HF=) BTHE LHAM R5HE BH

Bond [including corporate bond, debenture and debt financing instruments of non-financial firms)

BEH(BRECEES AREFURESROXEBRELR)

Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities March 10, 3.37% 1 billion  March 17, 1 billion March 14,
(Group] Co., Ltd. Public issuance of 2023 2023 2026
corporate bonds to professional
institutional investors in 2023 (1st

tranche)

FERBRABEE (KE)RHARD  2023F 1087 2023 10870 20265
B0NRFEAEERBEREELH 3A10H 3A17H 3R148
BIIRAESR (F—H)

2023 super-short-term commercial July 12, 2.36% 0.5 billion  July 14, 0.5 billion  August 24,
papers (2nd tranche] of Shanghai 2023 2023 2023
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group)

Co., Ltd.

PEXRBABEE(RE)RHOEMD 20235 587 2023% S8 2023%F
AIBEEF _HBEHRESR 7H128 TR148 8H248

2023 super-short-term commercial July 3, 2023 2.58% 0.5 billion July 5, 2023 0.5 billion  September
papers (1st tranche) of Shanghai 18, 2023
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group)

Co., Ltd.

PERBRABEE (FE)RHARD  2023F Sf87L  2023%F S/ETL 2023%F
B0 FEE-—HEEHRES 7R3A 7R5A 9A18H

2023 medium-term notes commercial August 14, 2.95% 0.5 billion August 16, 0.5 billion  August 14,
papers (1st tranche) of Shanghai 2023 2023 2025
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group)

Co., Ltd.

PERBRABEE(EE)RHARD  2023F 58T 2023% ST 20254

F202BFEE B HRE 8A14H 8A16H 8A14H
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Amounts Ending date
Type of shares and derivative Issue price approved for for
securities Issue date (rate) Issue amount Listing date listing transaction
BITER BELT RFLLE
BRERHEITERSNES BITHY (FF=) BTHE LWHEH REBE BH
2023 medium-term notes commercial September 3.19% 0.5 billion  September 0.5 billion  September
papers (2nd tranche) of Shanghai 11, 2023 13, 2023 11, 2025
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group)
Co., Ltd.
LERBAREE (KB BOHERE  2023%F 5870 2023 58T 20254
B0RFEE_BPRRRE 9A118 9R138 9A11R
PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS . BERENR
Totalnumber of shareholders 1. BRRLH
Total number of holders of ordinary 144,234 HEREHRRE 144,234
shares as at the end of the Reporting AR AR R 4R B
Period (account) (P)
Total number of holders of ordinary 142,867 FEMERER 142,867
shares as at the end of the month Al E—ARK
preceding the day when the annual T AR AR R
report is disclosed [account) we(P)
Total number of preferred shareholders N/A HEmEHAREK A A
with restored voting rights as of the IRIEMRIE R E
end of the reporting period (account] TR AR R A B
(P)
Total number of preferred shareholders N/A FREBRESHER A 3E A
with restored voting rights as of the Al E—ARE
end of a month before the disclose RREIRE R E
date of the Annual report (account] TR AR R A B
(P)



CHANGES IN SHARES AND INFORMATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
BRERBRREHEE

BIEHREHRA T BRER A
T &R ERR (ERE RS
BRR) FRER &R

Particulars of the top-ten Shareholders and the 2.
top-ten Shareholders with tradable Shares (or
Shareholders not subject to selling restrictions)

as at the end of the Reporting Period

Unit: share BAL: IR
Particulars of top-ten shareholders(excluding share lend through securities lending and refinancing)
AtERRERER (F2BRERE HERSD)
Increase/
decrease  Shareholding No. of Shares
during the  at the end of held with
Name of Shareholder Reporting  the Reporting Proportion selling Nature of
(full name) Period Period (%) restrictions Pledge or moratorium Shareholder
BEERE
HRER R IR
BRREH (2H) BEARER HE L 51 (%) HBE HH FETIREBER KRRME
Status No.
R A3 R A HE
Hong Kong Securities 2,000 533,551,000 18.07 0 Unknown 0  Overseas legal
Clearing Company person
Nominees Limited
BEERREE(REA) KA BINEA
BRRA
Shanghai Dazhong 0 495,143,859 16.77 0 Pledged 282,000,000 Domestic non-state
Business Management owned legal
Co., Ltd. (EEAREE person
ERERLE)
FBRBEEEERR g RERFEEEA
NG
Shanghai Gas (Group) Co., 0 153,832,735 5.21 0 Nil 0  Domestic State-
Lid. (B8R (£E) owned legal
ARADE) person
LERE (SE)BRAF = ERBEEA
Cai Zhishuang (55 %) -346,500 12,144,735 0.41 0 Nil 0 Domestic natural
person
BEe = ERBEAA
Hong Kong Securities -2,488,957 9,781,874 0.33 0 Nil 0  Overseas legal
Clearing Company person
Limited
BEEPREEBRRA S BINEA
Yi Jicheng (5 #5X) 2,315,650 8,315,650 0.28 0 Nil 0  Domestic natural
person
PR S FRAERA
Lin Zehua (#RZ%) 0 7,020,258 0.24 0 Nil 0 Domestic natural
person
wEE S FRAERA
Shi Fulong (i 48 %) -100,000 6,900,900 0.23 0 Nil 0  Domestic natural
person
iR RS S FRAERA
Ding Xiumin (T 781 50,500 5,727,500 0.19 0 Nil 0 Domestic natural
person
T8 S FRAERA
Chen Guogian [FREIz) 2,454,900 5,137,534 0.17 0 Nil 0 Domestic natural
person
R B 5 S FRAERA
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Particulars of top-ten shareholders

AT BERERFRREFRER

Name of Shareholder

Number of
tradable
Shares held
without selling
restrictions

Type and No. of Shares

RFEERE
R4 RBER
REREMHE NEE ROEERBE
Type No.
B HE
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Nominees 533,551,000 Overseas listed 533,551,000
Limited foreign
share
EEPARABE(REAN)ERAF FEoN E TS
B
Shanghai Dazhong Business Management Co., Ltd. 495,143,859 RMB Ordinary 495,143,859
(EBARCEERFR QA share
EBRREXREEBRAT AR E B
Shanghai Gas (Group) Co., Ltd. 153,832,735 RMB Ordinary 153,832,735
(EERR (EE)ERQF) share
FERR(EE)ERAR AR E B
Cai Zhishuang (X5 &) 12,144,735 RMB Ordinary 12,144,735
share
g AR EBR
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 9,781,874 RMB Ordinary 9,781,874
share
BERRGEEBRAA AR EBR
Yi Jicheng (5 %K) 8,315,650 RMB Ordinary 8,315,650
share
ZHERK AR EBR
Lin Zehua (#REZE] 7,020,258 RMB Ordinary 7,020,258
share
MIEEE AR EBR
Shi Fulong (348 3€) 6,900,900 RMB Ordinary 6,900,900
share
IetE e AR EBR
Ding Xiumin (T F &) 5,727,500 RMB Ordinary 5,727,500
share
THEH AR EBR
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Particulars of top-ten shareholders
ATEEREFRGERRERER

Number of

tradable

Shares held

without selling

Name of Shareholder restrictions Type and No. of Shares
RFEERE
R4 RBER
REREMHE NEE ROEERBE
Type No.
B HE
Chen Guogian (FRE&) 5,137,534 RMB Ordinary 5,137,534
share
R B & AR EBR
Explanation on the securities account designated for N/A
share repurchase of the top ten shareholders
Al +BRRF EER P BN A3 A
Explanations on the voting rights entrusted by or to N/A
or waived by the aforesaid shareholders
FRABREZFARRE  ZERORE - MERREN A3 A
A
Explanation on connected relationship or acting in N/A
concert among the aforesaid shareholders
bt B PR B B R AR Sk — B AT BV R B TiE A
Explanation on preference shareholders with voting N/A
rights restored and number of shares held
thereby
FORFEME R B KRR R E 0 & A T iE
Explanation on the shareholding conditions: As of MR FFIRE A ¢ 820234
December 31, 2023, Shanghai Dazhong Business 12A318 » B BRREXERE
Management Co., Ltd. (LB RKREEEERERAF) held RARAEBEEBEAAFEL
61,178,000 H Shares, which were registered under A61,178,000BHAY - FZ D 8E
HKSCC Nominees Limited, through Shanghai-Hong REBBFREE(REAN) AR
Kong Stock Connect and other ways. As of December ANAElE T o B 1E2023412 A31
31, 2023, Shanghai Dazhong Business Management Co., H  EBRBREEXEERBRAA
Ltd. (EBAREEEE AR AA] held 556,321,859 HFFH AR 556,321,859 AR 15
Shares of the Company (including 495,143,859 A Shares (E A 1 495,143,859 B ARR A7
and 61,178,000 H Shares), representing approximately 61,178,000 HE& & 15) - 16 A Al
18.84% of the total issued Shares of the Company. BTG 4881 4918.84% ©
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BRAERBRREHAEBE

IV. PARTICULARS OF SINGLE LARGEST
SHAREHOLDER AND DE FACTO CONTROLLER

(1) Single largest shareholder

1. Legal person

Name

Person-in-charge or
legal representative

Date of establishment

Principal business

Details of controlling
interests and
investments in other
domestic and foreign
listed companies
during the Reporting

Period
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Shanghai Dazhong Business
Management Co., Ltd. (L&A
EEEEARLQF)

Zhao Siyuan (i B )

March 10, 1995

Operation management and
business management over taxi
business and related business,
investment, technical consultation,
agency, services and talent
training, transport of commodity
vehicles, retail of vehicle
components, taxi passenger
service and vehicle repair

IV. BXE—ERREERZERARR

RRE-RRBER

JEA

4 LBARERER
BRAR

BRBEAL BEN
EERERA

X3z B 2 199543 5108

TELERB HRAECERA
BEXMEEER
MEXEE &K
& B - R
B REMAZ
ol EmAENE

CRERHMT

CRELEA

CAERE -

fh O Al

HEBHER —
MBBEE
tERI
BRNGIED
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CHANGES IN SHARES AND INFORMATION OF SHAREHOLDERS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31,
Directors, the persons or entities, other than the Directors,

2023, so far as was known to the

Supervisors or chief executives of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who would be required, pursuant to

BRAERBEREFAEE

A - EERRRN AR {7 B 48 5 Bx 17 o i
FHESIRRE

MN2023F12A31H BEERA B
RABRG SKABBERD P 5 A IRIEE
H N HAEIRBIEXVER 2 M350 S5
ARARRFEBENERSIOAR - AR
BEENMEEGHIEIBIEELTRRTE
Pt B MeALREE (ELAAAFE
£ EERFEITHRAERINOT

Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required
referred to therein, were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate
percentage of

Types of interest in the relevant type of
Name Nature of interest Shares No. of Shares"®@ Company (%) Shares (%)
BERAERE  EROEEER
% BEME R 13 85l R EE M BAEDL(%) BRE DL (%)
Dazhong Business Beneficial owner A Shares 495,143,859 (L) 16.77 20.47
Management® BEmBEAA Al
KERED
Beneficial owner H Shares 61,178,000 (L] 2.07 11.46
ExEBA HRA%
Employee Share Interest of controlled A Shares 495,143,859 (L) 16.77 20.47
Ownership corporations A%
Committee® REHEERR
BIxkgo
Interest of controlled  H Shares 61,178,000 (L] 2.07 11.46
corporations Hfi%
REGEEER
Shanghai Gas Group”  Beneficial owner A Shares 153,832,735 (L] 5.21 6.36
MRERY ExEBA Al
Shenergy (Group) Interest of controlled A Shares 153,832,735 (L] 5.21 6.36
Company Limited" corporations A%
B (RE)BRARY  REHEEER
ENN Energy China Beneficial owner H Shares 129,261,000 (L) 4.38 24.22
Investment Ltd.® BEmBEAA HP&
MRERTEREER
A
ENN Energy Holdings Interest of controlled  H Shares 129,261,000 (L) 4.38 24.22
Limited® corporations Hfi%

HRERZEBRARRA

REHEEE R
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Approximate
percentage of

Approximate
percentage of

Types of interest in the relevant type of
Name Nature of interest Shares No. of Shares!"? Company (%) Shares (%)
ERRAAEE  EROEEER
£ BENE IR 43 5 R4 8B BHE D (%) BHE (%)
Wang Yusuo® Interest of controlled  H Shares 129,261,000 (L) 4.38 24.22
FEHY corporations Hi%
REGEEER
New China Asset Investment manager ~ H Shares 39,147,000 (L) 1.33 7.34
Management (Hong 1% & 4T3 H%
Kong) Limited®
NEREER(BB)R
PAERAF
New China Asset Interest of controlled H Shares 39,147,000 (L) 1.33 7.34
Management Co., corporations HZ
Limited" SRR AE RS
MEBEERRHER
AFE
New China Life Beneficial owner H Shares 39,147,000 (L) 1.33 7.34
Insurance Co., EREBA H%
Limited"
HEABRRRNDAR
AFE
Investstar Limited” Beneficial owner H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
Investstar Limited” EREBA H%
Towngas Investment Interest of controlled  H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
Company Limited 7 corporations HAR
RREEERLDF REGEEER
Hong Kong and China  Interest of controlled ~ H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
Gas Company corporations HAR
Limited” SRR AE RS
EETPERRARLDR"
Faxson Investment Interest of controlled H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
Limited” corporations HAR
Faxson Investment REHEERR
Limited"”
Henderson Land Interest of controlled H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
Development corporations HAR

Company Limited”

ERKEHEER AT

SRR AE RS
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Approximate
percentage of

Approximate
percentage of

Types of interest in the relevant type of

Name Nature of interest Shares No. of Shares!"? Company (%) Shares (%)

EANRERE AROEEER

£ BEME R 42 % 5l BR43 g B e BHE D (%) BB D%

Henderson Development Interest of controlled  H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09

Limited” corporations HER
BEEKEFERLDF REGEEER
Hopkins (Cayman) Interest of controlled ~ H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
Limited® corporations HER
REGEEER
Riddick (Cayman) Trustee H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
Limited® XA Hi%
Rimmer (Cayman) Trustee H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
Limited® XA Hi%
Lee Shau Kee Interest of controlled  H Shares 53,859,000 (L) 1.82 10.09
(S corporations HEx
REGEEER

Notes: Bt EE -

(1) [L)—long position (1) (DR SS-)

(2) As at December 31, 2023, the total number of issued Shares was (2) M20235F12A31H BB ITROHEHA
2,952,434,675, including 2,418,791,675 A Shares and 533,643,000 H 2,952,434,6750% + B 8 152,418,791,675
Shares. % AR% 533,643,000 8% HAZ -

(3) The Employee Share Ownership Committee is composed of (a) the (3) BISKEHEEQARCENES : bAE
employees of Dazhong Business Management; (b) the employees of the BRE  ROARXBHEEAK -HR
Group; and (c] the employees of Dazhong Transportation. It is the ABEEIOLRIENEZEA A - WHIR
beneficial owner of 90% equity interests in Dazhong Business BRABEEMEENMERN T HEEE
Management, and is deemed to be interested in the entire Shares % e
interests held by Dazhong Business Management.

(4) Shenergy (Group) Company Limited (FEE(EE)BEMRAE) is the (4) ML (RE) BRD B /KA EE 2 2R E
beneficial owner of the entire equity interests in Shanghai Gas Group, MERBEAAN  UHEANRREEBHMEF
and deemed to be interested in the A Shares held by Shanghai Gas BHARFEG R -

Group.
(5) ENN Energy China Investment Limited is wholly owned by ENN Energy (5) FREFRREEFEEBR AR BTRERE

Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 02688.HK). Mr. Wang Yusuo is the
controlling shareholder of ENN Energy Holdings Limited. Therefore,
each of ENN Energy Holdings Limited and Mr. Wang Yusuo is deemed
to be interested in the H Shares held by ENN Energy China Investment
Limited under the SFO.

A& B BR A B (B D5 - 02688.HK) 2 &
B TEHEEATRERIERER QA
ZIERBRE A RIEESKBEEK
Bl - REERIER AR AR T EHLE
EERERARIEERTREEGRAA
BERHRPER R -
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(6) New China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited is owned as to 60.0%
by New China Asset Management Co., Limited, and owned as to 40.0%
by New China Life Insurance Co., Limited (¥71E A SR AR A7)
[stock code:1336.HK]. New China Asset Management Co., Limited is
owned as to 99.4% by New China Life Insurance Co., Limited. Therefore
each of New China Asset Management Co., Limited and New China Life
Insurance Co., Limited is deemed to be interested in the 39,147,000 H
Shares held by New China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited.

(7) Investstar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Towngas Investment
Company Limited (& & & BR2AA]), which is wholly owned by Hong
Kong and China Gas Company Limited (BB R EHRAR DT (stock
code: 0003. HK]. Faxson Investment Limited owns 41.52% of Hong Kong
and China Gas Company Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Henderson Land Development Company Limited. Henderson Land
Development Company Limited is owned as to 72.7% by Henderson
Development Limited. Therefore each of Towngas Investment Company
Limited (ERIZEEHBR AR, the Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited, Faxson Investment Limited, Henderson Land Development
Company Limited and Henderson Development Limited is deemed to be
interested in the 53,859,000 H Shares held by Investstar Limited under
the SFO.

(8) Hopkins (Cayman] Limited, as trustee of a unit trust (the "Unit Trust’],
owns 100% of Henderson Development Limited. Rimmer (Cayman)
Limited and Riddick (Cayman] Limited, as trustees of respective
discretionary trusts, hold units in the Unit Trust. Therefore each of
Rimmer (Cayman) Limited, Riddick (Cayman) Limited and Hopkins
[Cayman) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 53,859,000 H
Shares held by Investstar Limited under the SFO.

(9) Mr. Lee Shau Kee beneficially owns 100% of each of Rimmer (Cayman)
Limited, Riddick (Cayman) Limited and Hopkins (Cayman) Limited. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lee Shau Kee is deemed to be interested in the
H Shares interest of Rimmer (Cayman] Limited, Riddick (Cayman)
Limited and Hopkins (Cayman] Limited, i.e. the 53,859,000 H Shares
held by Investstar Limited.

Other than the disclosed information above, as of December
31, 2023, the Directors were not aware of the persons or
entities, other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief
executives of the Company, who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register required referred to therein.
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(6) HELETE (BB RNEBMRARIENE
BEEBRROERAAHEE60.0%KZ A
EASRBBRHBRAE (B 1336.
HK) B 40.0% - MTELAETERMER
REAHEASRBEROHAERARES
99.4% o it - FEEEBERNDBR AT
R#EASRBBROARAASEREREE
RHELEER (BB)ROHDBBRAFEAE
#939,147, 000 B HAX P B AE 2% -

(7) Investstar Limited BEBPERRTERA
Al (DA SE - 0003 HK) ZEMARER
BEERRABHEETFRA - Faxson
Investment Limited# B BRI EHEEFR
RAIZETARBERERRERDFN
41.52% - BEIKFEMEBR AR HEEK
EBRAREET2.7% At - RIFFH K
HEERD - ERIREBRAF  BERE
A BMRAA - Faxson Investment
Limited ~ BEKEMEFR AR REEIK
(XERAFAZBHEBR R/ RInveststar
Limited$# A 953,859,000 H A% = i 7 #

(8) Hopkins (Cayman) Limited{EA—{EE {5
FRBuERDOZEA BHEEEKE
AR DB E LR o Rimmer [Cayman)
Limited 2 Riddick (Cayman) Limited{E%
ZEEREETENETEA  HEELETED
B A BEZHFLBEKL -
Rimmer (Cayman) Limited * Riddick
[Cayman] Limited &2Hopkins [(Cayman]
Limited & B #48 A1 Investstar Limited#
A #953,859,000 I HAL A % o

(9) FIRE L EE ¥ BRImmer (Cayman)
Limited * Riddick (Cayman] Limited }
Hopkins (Cayman) Limited & B &) & 30 1&
o BIBEH R EGRD - ZIRELER
B AR Rimmer (Cayman) Limited *
Riddick (Cayman]) Limited & Hopkins
(Cayman) Limited®HA&R (Blinveststar
Limited ¥ #)53,859,000 4% HA% ) = ¥ 5 1%

2% o

m

Br bt % 58 & b - 702023512 A 31
B BFWTAREREMALTSER
(EARRFEE EERFTETHAE
Br oM A AN BIR% 19 3 4B A B 10 H 75
BERBES KBGO EXVHBE2RS
DB SC/AR [R AR A B BE B R B sk
B REREES KBS GG 3361
BB E TS o



PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS

I. CORPORATE BONDS

1.  Profile of corporate bonds

LFIRGHBER

. DEIR%
1. QAEZERFER

Unit: 100 million; Currency: RMB B BT ®E: AR
Arrangement Is there any
to ensure the risk of
suitability of terminating
Interest Interest rate  Repayment of investors Trading listing and

Name of bond Abbreviation ~ Code lssue date accrual date  Maturity date Balance (%) principal and interest Trading place  [if any) scheme trading
REE
EEERH REREAL

R5ER iR K&  BfA BEA HuA BHHE Rzl BAFERR p& L (%) REEH tHxsHER

2018 corporate bonds (2nd 18 Gongyong 04 143743 July 18, 2018 July 18, 2018 July 18, 2023 68 489 The interest of this bond is ~ Shanghai Stock / Bidding, No
tranche) type 2 of Shanghai calculated annually, and Exchange quotation,

Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry and
(Group) Co., Ltd last interest will be paid protocol
together with the
principal.

LEARAREE (RE)ROER  182R0 16373 2018F7A18E  2018FTA1BE  20BFTA18R 68 489 BERE BENE-R  LEERRSH / GE-BE- &
DENIBERRRTARES RE-SHaRAE -2 AEMNGE
(F-8)(RE) Xffe

2021 corporate bonds [1st 21 Gongyong 01 175800 Mar 5, 2021 Mar 9, 2021 Mar 9, 2024 10 387 The interest of this bond is ~ Shanghai Stock / Bidding, No
tranche) of Shanghai calculated annually, and Exchange quotation,

Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry and
(Group) Co., Ltd last interest will be paid protocol
together with the
principal.
biﬁ%‘ﬁmi%(%@)ﬁ%%w NRA0 175600 2021F3858  2021F3A9R  20UEIAIE 10 387 BEHE BEME-R  LEIFRSF / R BE- &
RANNERREAARES BE-HH8ERE -k AERGE
(-8) xfte

Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities 23 Gongyong 01 138999 Mar 10,2023 Mar 14,2023 Mar 14, 2026 10 337 The interest of this bond is ~ Shanghai Stock / Bidding, No
(Group] Co., Ltd. Public calculated annually, and Exchange quotation,
issuance of corporate bonds paid once annually. The enquiry and
to professional institutional last interest will be paid protocol
investors in 2023 (1st together with the
tranche) principal

b@,ﬁ%ﬂmﬁ%(%@ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ BRRAN 138999 203F3A108 0BFIAUE 202653 14R 10 337 BERE - BENE-R-  LEEHRRSH / GE-BE- &

RANBFANETEERERE RE-SHaRAE -2 AENRE
EDRBTARGES (F-5) Xffe

Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities 24 Gongyong 01 240539 January 30, February 1, February 1, 9 285 The interest of this bond is ~ Shanghai Stock / Bidding, No
[Group) Co., Ltd. Public 2024 2024 2027 calculated annually, and Exchange quotation,
issuance of corporate bonds paid once annually. The enquiry and
to professional institutional last interest will be paid protocol
investors in 2024(1st together with the
tranche) principal

biﬁ%‘ﬁmi%(%@;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ URA0T 20539 W4FT1ANB WUFIAIB 00F2A18 9 285 WERE BEME-R  LEIFRSF / #EBE- &

RANUFAMEZERRE BE-HH8ERE - AERGE
ERRETLTES (B-8) xfte
Interest payment of corporate bonds AIES 7.8 52 (T182

Name of bond

BxEW

Payment of interest

13 B 5 A 185 B9 3t B

2018 corporate bonds (2nd tranche) type 2 of
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co.,
Ltd

FERZABER(EE)RHBRAQF2018FAH
BORRMER (EZH) mEC

2021 corporate bonds [1st tranche] of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.

EBRZARER (KE) B AR AR20214FAFH
BOIREES (B—H)

The last annual interest and the bond principal of
the current period accrued from July 18, 2022
to July 17 2023 had been paid on July 18, 2023.

F20234F7 A18 B X B 202247 18 B £ 20234 7
A7 BN RE—EFENMEMNARESFLE -

The interest accrued from March 9, 2022 to
March 8, 2023 had been paid on March 9, 2023.
2023F3 A998 X FE20229F3F9H 202343 A
SR EIFMF S o
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PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS
LFIRFHRER

2. The strike and execution of issuer or investor 2. BITARREZFBERGER
option clauses and investor protection clauses REERERARNIBENBIT
B
N/A. @A -
3. Intermediaries providing services for bond 3. REFBRTRTFEBERRERM
issuance and duration business BR 7% Y 1 ST 4B
Name of
Name of signing Contact
intermediary Office Address accountants person Telephone
BFEEHED
PAEEEE 3D ik HE BEiEA BBEF
Haitong Securities  5/F, Block B Haitong Bund / Liu Lei, 021-23187486
Company Finance Plaza, No. 888 South Huang Shan
Limited Zhongshan Road, Huangpu
District Shanghai
BRESBRMOAER LETEBRBILAEKSHEE / 2% =M 021-23187486
NGl BN D BE S BIROE
China Chengxin 31F, Block E, Han Street / Li Zhuanbo, 027-87339288
International Headquarter International, Zhang Yifei
Credit Rating Wuchang District, Wuhan,
Co., Ltd. Hubei
FREERERT BitARETHREREGRNE / FEN - 027-87339288
REREERT BReFE31[E RIRIE
BDO China Shu 9/F, No.61 Nanjing East Road  Lin Shengyu, Li Lin Shengyu, 021-23280000
Lun Pan Certified Huangpu District Shanghai Jingya Li Jingya
Public
Accountants LLP
MVEEGFEEBR LETEBRBERREKIFNE MET - MREEF 021-23280000
(RHHREBRER) FHH FE I
Jin Mao Partners  Room 1301, K11 No. 300 / You Guang, 021-63872000
Middle Huaihai Road Zhang
Huangpu District Shanghai Bowen
SXIBEME LETEHRMEEPIKI005E  / MR - RIEX 021-63872000
B P KITKE1301=E
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PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS
LFIRGFHRER

4. Use of proceeds at the end of Reporting Period 4L BEHARERELSFEAEBER
Unit: 100 million Currency: RMB BA B BE: AR
Whether it is

consistent with
the purpose,

Operation of Correction of plans and other
special account noncompliance provisions
Total Utilised Unutilised for proceeds use of proceeds committed in the
Name of bond proceeds amount amount (if any) (if any) prospectus
REHERHBE
BE5EcEE EBEEE2ER A#ENER-
BE5¥ES RFEFER CRANBRER EAFERHEM
BE BB BeE CHAZE AKEASE (wH) (%) HE-B
2018 corporate bonds (2nd 6.8 6.8 0/ / Yes

tranche) type 2 of
Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.
LEXRAREX(RE) 6.8 6.8 0/ /
%15 78 B2 R 20184 12
BIRAES (F2H)
mE—

Ao

2021 corporate bonds (1st 10 10 0/ / Yes
tranche] of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd.

LERRLBER(ER) 10 10 0/ /
&t B R A 820215 R
BOARES (E—H)

il

Shanghai Dazhong Public 10 10 0/ / Yes
Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.
Public issuance of
corporate bonds to
professional institutional
investors in 2023 (st
tranche)
PEXRBAREE(RE) 10 10 0/ /
& 13 7 B A R 2023 E 7]
EERBEREELRMET
NEESF(E—H)

bl
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PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS
LFIRGHBMRER

INSTRUMENT ON INTER-BANK BOND MARKET

NON-FINANCIAL CORPORATE DEBT FINANCING

1.  Profile of non-financial corporate debt financing

METR
1. FEREEEERMETARER

SHMITRRSTRIFEMERREE

instrument B
Unit: 100 million; Currency: RMB BB ®RE: AR
Arrangement Is there any
to ensure the risk of
suitability of terminating
Interest Interest rate Repayment of Trading investors Trading listing and
Name of bond Abbreviation Code Issue date accrual date Maturity date Balance (%) principal and interest place (if any) scheme trading
REZ
BERRE REFEAL
BEEE l: RE BfR EEH L] EEBE A% BAFRAR 8% (WA Z58H  LHRENER
2021 medium-term notes [1st 21 Shanghai Dazhong 102100865  Apr 26, 2021 Apr 28, 2021 Apr 28, 2023 b 34 The interest of this bond is Inter-bank ~ / Bidding, No
tranche] of Shanghai MTNOO1 calculated annually, and market quotation,
Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry
(Group) Co., Ltd. last interest will be paid
together with the
principal.
FEARAAEE(SE)RG 21 HEARMINGG 102100885 2021F4A2R  200154A88  2023F4A28R 6 34 BEHS SENE-R- BANRZ [ GE HE- A
BRARNNFEE S BE-HMSHAS-& W5 R
RS xffe
2021 medium-term notes (2nd 21 Shanghai Dazhong 102101030 Jun 2,2021 Jun 4,2021 Jun 4,2023 5 34 The interest of this bond is  Inter-bank ~ / Bidding, No
tranche] of Shanghal MTN002 calculated annually, and market quotation,
Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry
(6roup) Co., Ltd last interest will be paid
together with the
principal.
PEARARFE(EE)RG 21 LBARMING? 102101030 20156828 20015648 2003F6ALA 5 34 REHS BERE-K- BOMRS BEBE T
BRAFNNFEE =S Bk-HAgHAe-&  T5 R
B2 xffe
2021 medium-term notes (3rd 21 Shanghai Dazhong 102101267  Jul 7 2021 Jul 92021 Jul 92023 5 336 The interest of this bond is ~Inter-bank ~ / Bidding, No
tranche] of Shanghai MTN003 calculated annually, and market quotation,
Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry
(Group) Co., Ltd. last interest will be paid
together with the
principal.
LEARRAEE(EERA 20 LEXRMINGG 102101267 02157ATE 02157898 0BE7A9E 5 336 REHE SFEME-K- BOMZS [ HE#HE B
BRAANNEREEZHH BRE-HNSHAR-E @5 HE
e fte
2022 medium-term notes [1st 22 Shanghai Dazhong 102281060  May 5,2022 May 9,2022 May 9,2025 5 3.1 The interest of this bond is ~Inter-bank ~/ Bidding, No
tranche) of Shanghai MTNOO1 calculated annually, and market quotation,
Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry
(Group) Co., Ltd. last interest will be paid
together with the
principal.
FEARAAEE(SE)RG  2HEATMINGG 102281060 20225858 202255898 205%5A9A 5 31 BEHS SENE-R BANRZ [ GE HBE- A
BRARNNFREE S BE-HMSHAS-& W5 R
AE8 xffe
2022 medium-term notes (2nd 22 Shanghai Dazhong 102282103  Sept 16, 2022 Sept 20, 2022 Sept 20, 2024 3 248 The interest of this bond is Inter-bank ~ / Bidding, No
tranche] of Shanghal MTN002 calculated annually, and market quotation,
Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry
(6roup) Co., Ltd last interest will be paid
together with the
principal.
PEARRAREE(EE) KRG 2LBARMING 102282103 202F9A16A 2022598208 204594208 3 28 BEFE BERE-K BHARS BEBE T
BRAFNNNFEE =S Bk-HAgHAe-&  T5 R
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PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS
NGBS L

Arrangement Is there any
to ensure the risk of
suitability of terminating
Interest Interest rate Repayment of Trading investors Trading listing and
Name of bond Abbreviation Code Issue date accrual date Maturity date Balance (%) principal and interest place (if any) scheme trading
REE
BERRE RERFELL
B548 Ll KE Bf7A BRA L ERNEAA RBEH 2584
2022 medium-term notes (3rd 22 Shanghai Dazhong 102282639  Dec 8, 2022 Dec 8, 2022 Dec 8, 2024 The interest of this bond is  Inter-bank Bidding,
tranche] of Shanghal MTNOO3 calculated annually, and market quotation,
Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry
(Group) Co., Ltd. last interest will be paid
together with the
principal.
LEABRAAER(RE)RA  2LBRBMINGG 102282639 2022F12A8R  202F12A88  204F12A8R 2 BEGEBERE-R ROHRS #E #E-
BRARNNERE=HH Bik-HHSHAE-R T% AE
LiES Rffe
2023 super-short-term 23 Shanghai Dazhong 012382528 Jul 3,2023 Jul £,2023 Sept 19, 2023 8 Principal and interest paid in Inter-bank Bidding,
commercial papers [1st SCPOO1 full together market quotation,
tranche] of Shanghai enquiry
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd
LEABRAAER(RE)RA  2BLBARSCPO0T 01238258 NBETAIE  NVFTALE  0BFIANEA —RERRE RITARS #E #HE-
BRARNDBERE-HH 2] AE
BERER
2023 super-short-term 23 Shanghai Dazhong 012382618 Jul 12,2023 Jul 13,2023 Aug 25, 2023 6 Principal and interest paid in  Inter-bank Bidding,
commercial papers (2nd SCPO02 full together market quotation,
tranche] of Shanghai enquiry
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd
LEABRAAER(RE)RA  28LBARSCPO2 012382618 NBETAR NVFETABE 0BF8ALA —RERRE RITARS #E #HE-
BRAFNBFES =M w5 Bl
BERER
2023 medium-term notes (1st 23 Shanghai 102382079 Aug 14,2023 Aug 15,2023 Aug 15, 2025 5 The interest of this bond is  Inter-bank Bidding,
tranche] of Shanghai DazhongMTNOO1 calculated annually, and market quotation,
Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry
(Group) Co., Ltd. last interest will be paid
together with the
principal.
LERZAAER(RE)RA  BLBKRRMINGI 102382079 203%F8A14R  0B%8A15H  2005%8A15R 5 REGE - BENE-R BOHRS HE#HE B
ARARNBEREE B BRE-HNSHAZ-E 05 HE
EiES xffe
2023 medium-term notes (2nd 23 Shanghai 102382444 Sept 11,2023 Sept 12,2023 Sept 12, 2025 9 The interest of this bond is  Inter-bank Bidding,
tranche] of Shanghai DazhongMTN002 calculated annually, and market quotation,
Dazhong Public Utilities paid once annually. The enquiry
(6roup) Co., Ltd. last interest will be paid
together with the
principal.
LEARAAER(RE)RG  BLBARMING 10238244 0BFIANA  0BEIA12E  05FIA12A 9 EHE BEME-R BOHZS wE-HE B
ERAANBFRE-HF BE-HNSKAS-E W5 e

%t
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PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS
LFIRFHRER

Interest payment of corporate bonds during the

Reporting Period

Name of bond

EaR=L

REHANEZFNELMNER

Description of interest payment

B RAER B A

2021 medium-term notes [1st tranche] of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.

FPERBAREE(RE)RNDARAR 20211 FESE—H
hHIRR

2021 medium-term notes (2nd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd

EBABRLAER(RE)BRHARAF2021FEE 5
hHIRR

2021 medium-term notes (3rd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.

EBARBLAER (RE) BRHARAR2021FEE=H
hHIRR

2022 medium-term notes [1st tranche] of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.

FPERBAREE (RE)RNDARRAR2022FEE—H
hHIRR

2022 medium-term notes (2nd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd

EBARBLAER (RE) BRHARAR2022FEE -1
hHIRE

2022 medium-term notes (3rd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.

EBARBLAER(RE) BRHARAR2022FEE=H
hHIRR

2023 super-short-term commercial papers (1st
tranche] of Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd

EBRROREER (KE) BMHBRAF2023FEE —H
HEHRE s

2023 super-short-term commercial papers (2rd
tranche) of Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd

EBABRLAER(RE) BRHARAR2023FEE 5
HEHRE s
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The interest and principal had been paid on
April 28, 2023.
RR2023F4 A28 BB AT R ©

The interest and principal had been paid on
June 4, 2023.
MR2023F6 A4HBANE -

The interest and principal had been paid on
July 9, 2023.
M2023F7TA9HBANE -

The interest and principal had been paid on
May 9, 2023.
M20235F5 A9AXZFIHE -

The interest and principal had been paid on
September 20, 2023.
P2023F9 A20 B A FIR o

The interest and principal had been paid on
December 8, 2023.
P2023F 1208 A X H 8 -

The interest and principal had been paid on
September 19, 2023.

RR2023F9 B19REARM R ©

The interest and principal had been paid on
August 25, 2023

N2023E8 25 HEAR B o



PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS

Intermediaries providing services for bond
issuance and duration business

Name of
intermediary

REBEE

Office Address

¥ 3t

2.

Name of
signing
accountants
BT IR
"A

LFIRGFHRER

RESBRITRFERMERREM
iR 3:0REg - F

Contact
person Telephone

BBA BBEF

BDO China Shu
Lun Pan Certified
Public
Accountants LLP

SRR EBE
(BHRERER)

Bank of Shanghai
Co. Ltd
EBRITRMHEAR

NG

Shanghai Pudong
Development
Bank co. Ltd

PEERERIRTT
Pin B R A A

Bank of Ningbo
Co., Ltd.

BRIRITRD B R

NG

China Chengxin
International
Credit Rating
Co., Ltd.

RS BR{E AT
RBRETRAT]

31F, Block E, Han
Street
Headquarter
International,
Wuchang
District, Wuhan,
Hubei

SR INEEMSE
P

9/F, No.61 Nanjing East Road
Huangpu District Shanghai

bPEmEREERRECRNE

168 Yincheng Middle Road,
Shanghai
LIS TSR B8 1685%

9/F, Pu Fa Building, No.29
Bailianjing Road, Pudong
New Area, Shanghai

EETIRRE A 29508
BIRTTREIE

No. 345, Ningdong Road,
Yinzhou District, Ningbo,
Zhejiang Province, China

T & B R T 28N [ B R B 345
5%

China Chengxin International
Credit Rating Co., Ltd.

HilbE R & RREEEE
RePE31E

31F, Block E, Han Street
Headquarter International,
Wuchang District, Wuhan,
Hubei

LT E A RS P B 3005k
KIMKE1301E

Lin Shengyu, Li
Jingya

MEETF
FHH

/

/

/

Lin Shengyu, Li 021-23280000
Jingya

MEETF 021-23280000
TR

Lv Jing 021-34762917

aiE 021-34762917

Bao Wenhao 021-31887296

B E 021-31887296
Yao Qinyi 0574-81873407
o ST 1= 0574-81873407

Li Zhuanbo 027-87339288

FEE 027-87339288
You Guang 18801911612
i E 18801911612
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PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS

LFIRFHRER

3. Use of proceeds at the end of Reporting Period

Unit: 100 million; Currency: RMB

Total
proceeds

Utilised

Name of bond amount

BERES
BEAEEW BEE CHEASHE

Unutilised
amount

REAEH

3. HREMRBEESERRBR

Operation of
special account
for proceeds
(if any)

BEESER
REEFEER
(%)

[=1=) 'f_\_

B BT

Correction of
noncompliance
use of proceeds
(if any)

BREETER
ERANERER
(%)

®iE: ARK

Whether it is
consistent with
the purpose,
plans and other
provisions
committed in the
prospectus
REHERHBE
RENAR -
R EIREAM
HE-B

2021 medium-term notes (1st 6 6
tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd.

FERBRLABEE(RE) 6 6
BRIDBERRF2021FE
E-HPHER

2021 medium-term notes 5 5
(2nd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd.

PERBRREE(KE) 5 5
BIDBRAR20216F
E_HPHRRE

2021 medium-term notes 5 5
(3rd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group] Co., Ltd.

PERRAREE(RE) 5 5
M1 B IR 2 R12021 F E 5
ZHREER

2023 super-short-term 5 5
commercial papers (1st
tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd

BREYNYINGES J€ ) 5 5
W5 B B A R 20235 2
F-HBEEHRES

2023 super-short-term 5 5
commercial papers (2rd
tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd

EERRLBER(REA) 5 5
Bin BRAR2023FE
FoHHEEHRES
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Yes
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Name of bond

BE5E AW

Total
proceeds

S 3 o
BeE

PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE BONDS
LFIRGFHRER

Utilised
amount

CHEAEHE

Unutilised
amount

REAEH

Operation of
special account
for proceeds
(if any)

BERESHE
REBERR
(tnh)

Correction of
noncompliance

use of proceeds

(if any)

BRESER

ERANERER

(m%)

Whether it is
consistent with
the purpose,
plans and other
provisions
committed in the
prospectus
REHEEHBE
RENAE -
R EIREAM
HE-B

2022 medium-term notes
(2nd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd

LEBRBRRAREX(RE)
BRIDBERR F2022FE
FTHRHRE

2022 medium-term notes
(3rd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd.

FERBRLBER(EH)
R n BRARI2022F %
F-HhHRE

2022 medium-term notes (1st
tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group] Co., Ltd.

EBRBRAAEE(KE)
i BRAR20225
E—HhBEE

2023 super-short-term
commercial papers (1st
tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd

FERRLBEX(ER)
B3 B B A R 20235 2
F-HhERE

2023 medium-term notes
(2nd tranche) of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd

IERRLBER(ER)
RN BB A F2023F
F_HPHRRE

3

/

/

Yes

Ao

Yes

bl

Yes

bl

il

Yes

il

KBAH 208FFEH 129



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
% 3L 1% BB 3

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

BDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHANGHAI
UTILITIES (GROUP) CO., LTD.
(EBABRAREXR(RE) ROARLIF)
lincorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited
liability)

DAZHONG PUBLIC

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (the "Company”] and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 139 to 304,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting
Standards”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds 50%
voting rights

Refer to note 5(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on note 4(b).

As at 31 December 2023, the Company holds a 50% equity interests
in two subsidiaries, namely Shanghai Dazhong Gas Group Co., Ltd.
("Shanghai Dazhong Gas”) and Nantong Dazhong Gas Co., Ltd.
("Nantong Dazhong Gas”) (together as “50% Subsidiaries”]). The
directors of the Company considered that the Company has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of 50% Subsidiaries,
which demonstrates the Group has power over 50% Subsidiaries,
exposure to variable returns from 50% Subsidiaries and ability to
use its power to affect its variable returns throughout the year
based on all relevant facts and circumstances. Therefore, the
Company is able to consolidate these entities in the consolidated
financial statements. The determination of the Company has
control over 50% Subsidiaries is a key audit matter due to the
significant judgment involved and the potential financial impact is
significant to the presentation of consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to assessment of appropriateness
of consolidation of 50% Subsidiaries included:

o obtained and reviewed those relevant terms in the
shareholders’ agreements and articles of association of 50%
Subsidiaries;

o obtained and reviewed minutes of the board meeting of 50%
Subsidiaries;

o discussed with management of the Company concerning the
basis for consolidation of financial statements of 50%
Subsidiaries; and

. attended interviews with the directors of 50% Subsidiaries, and
enquired certain facts and circumstances concerning the
consolidation of 50% Subsidiaries.
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Significant influence over investees

Refer to note 5(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on note 4(c).

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had investments in four
entities, namely Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd. ("Shenzhen
Capital Group”), Shanghai Electronic Intelligence System Co., Ltd.
("SEISYS”), Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited ("Suchuang Gas”)
and Vietnam Investment Securities Company ("IVS”) in which the
Group held 10.80%, 16.63%, 19.31% and 12.02% of their equity
interests, respectively. The directors of the Company considered
that the Group has significant influence over these four
investments since the Group actively participates in these four
entities’ operating and financial policies, and thus investments in
these four entities are accounted for as associates of the Group
using the equity method. The determination of the Group has
significant influence over these investments is a key audit matter
due to the significant judgment involved and potential financial
impact is significant to the presentation of consolidated financial
statements.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to assessment of the existence of
significant influence over investees included:

o obtained and reviewed those relevant terms in the
shareholders’ agreements and articles of association of these
four entities;

o obtained and reviewed minutes of the board meetings of these
four entities;

o discussed with management of the Company concerning the
basis of these four entities accounted for as associates in the
consolidated financial statements; and

o attend an interviews with the directors of these four entities
and enquired relevant facts and circumstances concerning
the significant influence over these four entities.
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Lease receivables impairment assessment

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on note 4(j)(ii).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's gross lease receivables
balance amounted to approximately RMB1,001,428,000 and the
expected credit ("ECLs")
RMB53,072,000.

losses were approximately

The assessment on ECLs relies on the analysis and judgment by
the management. The key factors includes the debtors’ and
guarantors’ financial and operating conditions, any other pledged
assets, the liquidity of the collaterals of the leases and loans and
the cash flow forecast of the debtors’ business with reasonable
discount rates. The assessment on ECLs on lease receivables
mainly depends on the external macroeconomic conditions and
internal credit risk management. The ECLs determined by the
Group had also included the review on historical loss experience
and other adjusting factors.

Since the Group’s management involves complex and significant
judgments in identifying and accruing impairment of receivables,
we determine that the impairment of lease receivables is a key
audit matter.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to ECLs assessment on lease
receivables included:

o assessed the methodologies and inputs adopted by the
management of the Group in estimating the expected credit
loss of lease receivables;

o checked to lease agreements and subsequent repayments of
the lease receivables; and

o checked to the accuracy of records and evaluated the
reasonableness of management’s judgement on collateral
held and credit worthiness of the debtors.
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Fair value measurement for financial assets

Refer to note 48(b) to the consolidated financial statements and
accounting policies on note 4(j).

As at December 31, 2023, the Group has financial assets of
RMB3,119,865,000 measured at fair value, and which
RMB2,944,872,000 are measured at fair value with level 3 inputs.
Level 3 inputs for financial assets and liabilities are not based on
active market prices, nor based on observable market data.

Management has applied valuation techniques to determine the
level 3 fair value of financial assets that are not quoted in active
markets. These valuation techniques such as market approach and
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process. The audit committee of the
Company assists those charged with governance in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

3 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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J conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide with those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FelRZEREtEZEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &% 20234 12 A31 H ILFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARYET T ARBTT
Revenue g &= 7 6,335,775 5,812,621
Cost of sales $HE KA (5,405,132) (5,020,915)
Gross profit EF 930,643 791,706
Other income and gains, net H At A e U 55 % 28 8 208,642 237,397
Selling and distribution costs SHE R 5 A (203,289) (199,499)
Administrative expenses THRAX (519,076) (402,700)
Investment income and gains, net & & YA N UL ZSF 5 9 (67,297) (385,964)
Finance costs BMERA 10 (294,689) (326,499
Impairment loss on financial TREEREREE
assets (27,541) (89,515)
Share of results of associates PaN sy AN 24 324,201 3,060
Share of result of a joint venture D {E&EDEEE 25 51,286 72528
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATSBIFAZ AR R,
expense (EB#H) 12 402,880 (299,486)
Income tax (expensel/credit sl (Ax) e 15 (99,245) 45,417
Profit/(loss) for the year FRER(FE) 303,635 (254,069)
Other comprehensive income, Hih2EUER - MIERFIIE
net of tax:
ltems that may be reclassified Higngaimohsieaan
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH :
Share of other comprehensive SIEEE R R RE &
income of associates and a FEE M EmEmRES (7]
joint venture (recycling] 51 4%) 603 4,066
Changes in fair value of BRARBEFAEME
financial assets at fair value HWmmNEeREER
through other comprehensive REEZH (FTEE)
income (recycling) (22) (18]
Exchange differences on BREBINEBZER
translating foreign Z58
operations 4,077 32,135
ltems that will not be reclassified BT E@EFDEEEZ 2
to profit or loss: A :
Re-measurement losses on AREBMAEEHE
defined benefit obligations E51E (1,010) (381)
Changes in fair value of equity RAREEFAHME
instruments at fair value HMmmER TAR
through other comprehensive R EEZE (T
income (non-recycling) =] #) (13,025) (10,602)
Share of other comprehensive EfhEEE AR RE &
income of associates and a EHEME2mE (RA]
joint venture (non-recycling) 51 4%) (32,339) (18,247)
Other comprehensive income for FRE M2 E K E - MR
the year, net of tax BiE (41,716) 6,953
Total comprehensive income FREEWZETE
for the year 261,919 (247,116)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FERRREMZENZ R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #£2023F 12 A31 B ILFE

Profit/(loss) for the year BUT FE 4G & RSB R,
attributable to: (B]) :
Owners of the Company RRARER A (332,591)
Non-controlling interests JEFE R R 78,522

(254,069)

Total comprehensive income for LA T FE{5F R 2 H K =

the year attributable to: FCE
Owners of the Compan KRAREA A (323,456)
76,340

RMBAR¥(0.11)7T




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FeEMEBERRE

As at 31 December 2023 722023412 831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M 5 AR®T T ARBFIT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB K& 18 5,300,888 5,241,330
Investment properties wEYZE 19 236,364 242,648
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 76,094 88,465
Goodwill B 21 12,737 12,737
Intangible assets mAE 22 120,063 127,633
Investments in associates REEE R AR E 24 7,151,080 7,061,519
Investment in a joint venture NG EEENRE 25 37,195 117,766
Lease receivables HErEKHIEA 27 320,832 518,073
Financial assets at amortised cost REEK AT EN SR
BE 32 203,621 336,371
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFAHEMEE
other comprehensive income W SR &EE 32 58,031 71,012
Trade and bills receivable B 5 WA R E W R R 26 89,064 97,128
Amount due from a grantor FEUR T AFKIB 28 753,778 802,983
Employee defined benefits BETAEREH 41(b) 6,120 6,943
Long-term prepayment REIFE(N RRIA 801 7,337
Deferred tax assets BAETIAE E 29 31,124 54,856
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 14,397,792 14,786,801
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 30 41,530 52,185
Trade and bills receivable B 5 WA &R W R R 26 457,383 447,630
Lease receivables HErEKHIEA 27 627,524 573,581
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE R E Ath FE R IR 31 187,131 394,315
Amount due from a grantor FEUIX T ATRIR 28 42,922 40,300
Financial assets at amortised cost REEK AT EN SR
BE 32 489,265 577,569
Financial assets at fair value through profit &2 EEFT ABZEA
or loss TREE 32 3,061,834 3,372,780
Restricted bank deposits PR ISR 1T 17 3K 33 26,303 46,380
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EEBY 33 3,190,003 2,954,382
Total current assets mEEEAE 8,123,895 8,459,122
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= & M Bk &

As at 31 December 2023 7A2023412H831H

Current liabilities REBEE

Borrowings fa

Corporate bonds, medium-term bonds N ARIES  FHES
and short-term bonds payable FEHES

Trade and bills payable B FRNFIBRENEE

Other payables H fth &~ /IR

Deferred income EEHA

Lease liabilities HERE

Contract liabilities aRAaE

2022

20224
RMB'000
ARETT

3,465,884

2,549,227
1,732,558
821,165
219,791
12,290
490,308
31,865

9,323,088
(863,966)
13,922,835

463,300

2,356,995
293,790
127,721
876,291

77,632
9,936
196,770

4,402,435
9,520,400




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5 & M5k &

As at 31 December 2023 722023412 831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Equity
Share capital 2,952,435 2,952,435
Reserves 5,310,356 5,228,142

8,262,791 8,180,577
Non-controlling interests 1,417,718 1,339,823

Total equity 9,680,509 9,520,400

On behalf of the directors




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEERBEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #£2023F 12 A31 B ILFE

Investment revaluation reserve

RAE(RE
FYTOCH
FrTocl Teserve Non-
Share Capital ~~ Statutory ~~ Exchange reserve [non- Special Other ~ Retained controlling
capital Tesene resee resene  [recyelingl  recycling] resenve reserie - eamnings TOTAL  interests TOTAL
BAABET RDAEEH
Al Bk
MR 2ENE
WEE  HEE
Re  EAEE  fRER  ENER  (TRE) (FUEE)  WRRE  ReER  REEN At FERER &it
[ote 43 [note éfall [note o) [note 4hlcll  [note 4élel] (note ald)  [note 4hlel] [note il [note Ll
(W) () (k) (Witadd)  (Witadd) ()  (Hwl) (Rl (Wiadg)
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBUND
ARBTT ARBTR ARRTT ARETR ARMTR ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR

19068 195 11843 (36,031)

319341
(332.591)

[14,181]

(86101

(191

8,659,560
(332,591]

(14181)

[8428)

1%

(191

1300467
1852

(199

9,360,032
(254,069)

(14181)

(10,6201

1%

(31

[l

(3 )

(147622

(17,080]

(323458)

(147822

[7910)

(61,972]

25000
(1

[247.1¢)

(147,622

(51.972]

25000
(1922

109068 13 1200419

(6,680] 189,041

8,180,577

1339803

9,520,400




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeEQERE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &% 20234 12 A31 H ILFE

Investment revaluation reserve

REEHER
FvToct
FvToct reserve Non-
Share Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange reserve (non- Special Other ~ Retained controlling
capital resrve reserve reserve  [recycling]  recycling) reserve reserve earnings TOTAL interests TOTAL
ROAEET ROAEE
AEft AEft
hE  2EhE
Witk il

RE  ExEE  iERE  EXEE  (AER) (FUER)  RARE  RfER  REEH ai FERER i
(note 43) (note 4dlal]  (note d4lbl) [note 4élcl)  (note kéld)) (note 4éldl)  (note dhlel)  [note 4lfl (note 4élg))
(Wtad)  (abasla))  (RFaboalol)  (RfEbealc))  (Ribsdle))  (Rabasld))  (Wsbadlel)  (RfRadln)  (WEdlg)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARMTr ARXTn ARBTR ABMTr ARETn ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETRL ARBTR

At 1 January 2023 HOBEIA1B 2952435 127366 1201419 [1,89) b14 (8,680) 4330 56,950 269041 8180577 1,309,823 9,520,400
Profit for the year ERgi = = = - - - - - 2,564 256 91,001 303,635
Other comprehensive income for the ~ EREH2ENE:

year
Share of other comprehensive income of ~ AEBERFRAELFE

assaciates and joit venures f2EsE = = = = = = = (31,736) = (31,736) = [31,736)
Change n fai value of financial assets  sFAEMAEMAENEHE

through other comprehensive ENEESD

income - - = = [22) 13123) = = = (13,145) 98 (13047)
Exchange differences on translating BEBSHNESZR

foreign operations = = O 40m = = = = O 40m = 4077
Re-measurement losses on defined RERlAEENEER

beneft obligations note &1(o) (sEe1tel) = = = = = = = (505) = (505) (505) [1,010)
Total comprefensie ncome for the year A2 ENELEE - - = 4m 23 - [ sk MBS 0 26191
2022 final dvidend paid note 14 NERENRERE

(Rizk1e) = = - = - - - - (88,573) (88,573) - (88,573)

Dividend paid to non-coniroling K TEARERNRE

interests - - - - - - - - - - 13,453) (13,453)
Transfer statutory resenve EEhEER = = 112 - = = = = (1m.2) = = =
Others ) - (1,305) kil = = = 438 1 36 (448) 066 L)
At 31 December 2023 HABE12ANA 2952435 1276059 1,218729 2,181 592 (21,803) 4,768 TN 2805109 8262791 1417718 9,680,509
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEeEHEeRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H E2023F 12 A31HILFE

Profit/(loss) before income tax expense
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Share of result of a joint venture

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of investment properties

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment loss on financial assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on disposal of financial assets

Impairment on inventories

Impairment of intangible assets

Changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Dividend income

Exchange gain

Financial income from wastewater
treatment income

Bank interest income

Operating profit before working capital

changes

Decrease/lincrease) in lease receivables

Decrease/lincrease) in inventories

(Increase]/decrease in trade and bills
receivable

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and
other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank
deposits

Decrease/lincrease) in net defined
retirement plan assets

(Decreasel/increase in trade and bills
payable

Increase/(decrease] in other payables

Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

Decrease in deferred income

146 DazZhong Public Utilities Annual Report 2023

BRETSHEXANER (BE)
BATIRB LA

BERA
DB E RRIRE
DEARERERFEE
ME - BEERBINTE

BREWMENE
EREEENE
TREEMNRERBIR
HEWE - BE k&RERS

4
FERE

A R

BN BB ABRN S REE
MARBEED

SO

e

557K B 2 B B A A

RITAEHA

BEESHBAIKEET

& e W R IR R A (45 )

FER L, (HEm)

B 5 R RIA R EREE
(),

FEAS RIA Ne B At & W R TR
B,/ ()

RRBIRITEFORD, (B h0)

RERKFEFEERD
(3&n)

B RN FTERENEE
(4,1 hn

H e I, O 4)

AHaEEm Crd)

i JE U AR,

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBET T
402,880 (299,486)
294,689 326,499
(324,201) (3,060)
(51,286) (72,528)
10,308 11,028
328,403 319,326
6,284 6,220
11,944 14,716
27,541 89,515
(16,413) (25,329)
(1,657) (3,465)
423 2,617
— 5,100
341,482 783,426
(272,528) (393,997)
(21,855) (110,917)
(50,244) (51,979)
(66,982) (27,283)
618,788 570,403
135,602 (103,114)
10,232 (12,096)
(1,783) 791,010
76,870 (574,645)
20,077 (22,291)
823 (6,943)
(189,802) 125,071
69,148 (75,718)
70,224 (99,713)
(83,402) (112,546)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H IEFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Cash generated from operations REMEERS 726,777 479,420
Bank interest income RITH B U A 66,982 27,283
Income taxes paid B TS (103,926) (89,274)

Net cash flows generated from operating R FEFELRERERE
activities 689,833 417,429

Cash flows from investing activities RETHFMELERERE
Proceeds from disposals of investments and H&E&E k& BEESHIE
financial assets 2,594,053 5,710,424

Payments for acquisition of new e B 37 1R & B9 PR
investments (1,879,134) (5,061,185)
19,589 10,472
10,000
46,583 22,528
(393,227) (314,215)
(648) (845)

(56,153]

397,216 311,025



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HFEBRaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #£2023F 12 A31 B ILFE

Cash flows from financing activities BETEHNEESRE

Acquisition of new bank borrowings BSHIRITRER

Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITEFAEHIAE

Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER

Repayments of bonds BERES

Interest paid BEARFE

Dividends paid B S

Repayments of capital element of lease BEHAEABEERHS
liabilities

2022
20224
RMB'000
ARETT

3,586,437
3,395,600
(3,661,677)
(2,679,078)
(307,882)
(147,622)

(4,680)
(36,972)

(7,712)
136,414

864,868
70,996

2,018,518

2,954,382



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") on 1 January 1992, as a join-stock limited
company. On 4 March 1993, the Company was listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Its registered office and the
principal place of business activities is located at No. 518,
Shang Cheng Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC
and 10/F, Building 1, Zhongteng Building, No. 2121 Longteng
Avenue, Xuhui District, Shanghai, the PRC, respectively.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "SEHK") on
5 December 2016.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding
during the year. The principal business activities of the Group
during the vyear included piped gas supply, wastewater
treatment, public infrastructure projects, investments,
transportation services and financial services.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company is Shanghai Dazhong Business Management Co.,
Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC, and the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company is Shanghai Dazhong
Business Management Employee Share Ownership
Committee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 3R =P X

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS”)

2.1 ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS — EFFECTIVE
1 JANUARY 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new or revised
IFRS Accounting Standards”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”), which are
relevant to and effective for the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on
1 January 2023:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practices
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 12

Insurance contracts

Accounting policies,
changes in accounting
estimates and errors:
Definition of
accounting estimates

Presentation of financial
statements and
making materiality
judgements:
Disclosure of
accounting policies

Income taxes:Deferred
Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising
from a Single
Transaction

Income taxes:
International tax
reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

Except for the Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements summarised below, the
other new or amended IFRS Accounting Standards has
no material impact on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior period and on
accounting policies. The Group has not applied any new
and revised IFRS Accounting Standards that are not yet
effective for the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 45 R B 5

31 December 2023 20234124318

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL . BREBEMEREENSEER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS ACCOUNTING (IEBRR RS54 |)
STANDARDS”) (Continued) (#8)

2.1 ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRS 21 HANH2023F181ABENK
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS — EFFECTIVE B HEE S CHE R S
1 JANUARY 2023 EREsHER (8)

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial EIfR i1 BRI E 1 958 & 7Y
Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making 23 REIER AT B &R & F

Materiality Judgements [Disclosure of Accounting BRI BB E IS E B E
Policies] ZWZ A (EE BRI R E)

The IASB issued IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making 2021463 A - BIFR & 5 % Bl 2
Materiality Judgements in March 2021 to provide F g WM BRI RS ER T
entities with non-mandatory guidance on how to make EREBBRE2RELEREE
materiality judgements when preparing their M HE - REREEERYK

HEENSHERRRBAVY




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 35 R B 5

31 December 2023 20239124318

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS”) (Continued)

2.2 New or amended IFRS Accounting Standards that
have been issued but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRS Accounting Standards, that has been
issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Liability in a Sale and
Leases' Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of

R4 [ B B 96 5 E R EE RN
Efﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬂj)

2.2 CEME N REKRN BRI
e EREFTER

A ER B 1 R R 55 B 75 3R 3K PR
THIE M (B R AERZ #ra] &
RIEFTBIR MBS RE L Gt E
Al

BIPR B S SRR
ARG R R
Flo(BFTA) HEAE
HE'

Bl R mEKIERE




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards ["IASs”] and Interpretations [(hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “IFRS Accounting
Standards”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values as explained in the material accounting
policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
Each entity within the Group maintains its books and
records in its own functional currency. The functional
currency of the Company is RMB.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Rt 35 R = B &E

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 3R =P X

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the vyear are in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

included

income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates
of disposal, as appropriate. Where
adjustments are made to the financial statements of

necessary,

subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired set
has the ability to produce outputs.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’'s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to owners of
the Company. Profit or loss and each component of
other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (1] power over the investee, (2] exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (3] the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in

any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

o the size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

o substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting

rights;
. other contractual arrangements; and
o historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 3R =P X

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’'s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors” interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions are eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IFRS
9. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing a part interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate are recognised on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest it that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.

cost less

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

o Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only

the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

o Joint operations: where the Group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities
of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

o the structure of the joint arrangement;

o the legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

o the contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

o any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 3R =P X

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e]

Joint arrangements (Continued])

The Group accounts for its interest in a joint venture in
the same manner as investments in associates [i.e.
using the equity method — see note 4(c)).

The Company’s interest in a joint venture is stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any. Result of a joint
venture is accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on
the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is first
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro-rata basis on the carrying amount
to each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated of
each asset will not reduce the individual asset’'s
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of
disposal (if measurable] or its value in use ([if
determinable], whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is
not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 8-50 years
Leasehold improvements 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years
Gas pipelines and machinery 3-30 years
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 1-20 years

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate classes of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready
for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 35 R B 5

31 December 2023 20239124318

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost and
would comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability);

(i)  any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a
cost model. Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Rt 35 R = B &E

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

4. EXEEHEE(])

(h)

HE (#)
(&

£ REEEN SRR A ERIL A
B

(Il ¥FAEHERENSE
(RTXERBEEREAK
M EETHER)

(i) RFA%A A HIs 2 ATYEH I (E
] FH & 5 BB 2 R E (E ]
HE R

lii) AEAEENEAOZEE
BAS + R

(iv) A ARBRE GRS 51
HEMIBR T2 8B EBERA
EERSELNGBEX
Ao BRIFLERATIREE
TF &M ELERIBRSN

AEBEFAAAENF 2 E AR
BE - REKXAEN - NEEIZ
XA A (0] R 5T & RAERE
EBEFTECRE YHHEERE
MEMEHAEFELHE -

AEBERBEHERREEST
YR BAKEBTHE - ER
HARFEANEE L RBT
AN B EEER - Wit -
ERZATNNEELNEREE
ERFTERAINIR -

XBAH 2023FF®R 161



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 35 R B 5

31 December 2023 20239124318

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leases (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any
lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the
revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying
value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining (revised)
lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a
lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one
or more additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the s